
Town of Colchester, Connecticut 
127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415 

Gregg Schuster, First Selectman 

Board of Selectmen Agenda 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, May 2, 2013 
Colchester Town Hall 

Meeting Room 1 -7:00PM 

__,.. 

:;?; 
·-~0 
z-:: 
.~~?> 
'~!co 
-"'-..1::;::::] 

....-!:,..., 
~~- .... 
.-

-~> f:l 
-< qc. 

1. Call to Order 

2. Additions to the Agenda 

3. Approve Minutes of the April 18, 2013 Regular Commission Chair Meeting 

4. Approve Minutes of the April 18, 2013 Regular Board of Selectmen Meeting 

5. Approve Minutes of the April 25, 2013 Special Board of Selectmen Meeting 

6. Citizen's Comments 

7. Boards and Commissions- Interviews and/or Possible Appointments and Resignations 

"J 

= 
c.....,) 

~ 
u 
:::::t:l 
w 
C> 

::t:.. 
3:: 

\:.0 

Ul 

t-:' 
(~ 
r-
CJ::D 
--r fT1 
M·o 
(J)~ --;:::::: 
~''n .:Co 
·0 

a. Open Space Advisory Committee. Member re-appointment for a three-year term to expire 
10/01/2016. John Henley to be interviewed. 

b. Commission on Aging. Alternate appointment for a three-year term to expire 12/31/2016. 
Joe Menhart was interviewed on 04/18/2013. 

c. Agriculture Commission. Alternate appointment to fill a vacancy. Allen Zimmerman to be 
interviewed. 

d. Agriculture Commission. Alternate appointment to fill a vacancy. Olivia Duska to be 
interviewed. 

e. Fire Department Task Force. David Martin to be interviewed. 

f. Fire Department Task Force. John Knapp to be interviewed 

g. Fire Department Task Force. Bob Holdsworth to be interviewed. 

8. Budget Transfers 

9. Tax Refunds & Rebates 

10. Discussion and Possible Action on John Jones Appreciation Day 

11. Discussion and Possible Action on Land Transfer 

12. Discussion and Possible Action on Connecticut State Police Resident Trooper Contract 



Town of Colchester - Regular Board of Selectmen Agenda 05/02/13 
Room I -7:00p.m. 

13. Discussion and Possible Action on Youth Services Registration and Data Tracking Program 

14. Discussion and Possible Action on License Agreement- Commuter Parking Area- 300 Old 
Hartford Road 

15. Discussion and Possible Action on Personnel Policies 

16. Citizen's Comments 

17. First Selectman's Report 

18. Liaison Report 

19. Executive Session to Discuss Senior Center Director Candidates 

20. Discussion and Possible Action on Senior Center Director Hiring 

21. Adjourn 

















 



Town of Colchester, Connecticut 
127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415 

Gregg Schuster, First Selectman 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Selectmen 

Cc: 

From Gregg Schuster, First Selectman W 
Date: 4/29/13 

Re: Captain John Jones Appreciation Day 

On 6/15/13, the Colchester-Hayward Volunteer Fire Company will be honoring John Jones for 
his 50 years of active service. This is a tremendous achievement and we should all be proud to 
have someone dedicate so much of his time to our community. 

In recognition of this milestone, I am recommending that the Board of Selectmen designate June 
15, 2013 as Captain John Jones Appreciation Day. 

Recommended Motion- "Move that Colchester designate June 15, 2013 as Captain John 
Jones Appreciation Day." 

Page 1 of 1 





Town of Colchester, Connecticut 
127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415 

April24, 2013 Sheet 1 of2 

To: 
From: 
Re: 

Colchester Planning & Zoning Commission F ;/ J . 
Salvatore Tassone P.E.- Town Engineer ~ ~ 
CGS 8-24 referral to transfer Town owned land at intersection ofRoute 16 and 
Route 149 to private entity. 

Dear commission members, 

During a recent review of town land records (Town Meeting Minutes) to supplement and 
update the Town Road acceptance file, I discovered that at a special town meeting held 
on September 29, 1977 (minutes attached) the town accepted a property deed from 
Robert G. & Victoria Clark "of property contributed to the Town of Colchester consisting 
of property at the intersection ofRoute 16 and 149" as described on warranty deed 
recorded on land records volume 118, page 1117 (copy attached). 

There is no clear indication of the purpose or intent of this land acquisition, however~ it 
appears it did occur. In fact, acceptance of the deed to this parcel was repeated at a 
special town meeting held on December 27, 1977. 

A review of the deed description and tovvn clerk map drawer 7, sheet 23B dated 
November 1963, (copy attached) indicate this parcel of land to be approximately 0.10 
acres m s1ze. 

A review of the town assessor's maps and boundary maps from the building file for 738 
Middletown Road do not reflect this 0.10 acre parcel as being town owned land. The 
assessor's maps (aerial map copy attached) instead appear to show this parcel as part 
of the 738 Middletown Road parcel known as Quick Stop Convenience Store Inc. (This 
site contains the Valero Gas Station). 

Further review of the town's GIS aerial photos overlayed on the assessor's boundary 
maps shows a paved parking area and access drive onto Route 149 located over and upon 
this apparently town owned parcel of land. 

Discussions with the assessor's office and review of deeds for the 738 Middletown Road 
site confirm that this town owned parcel is not included in the site acreage, yet it is being 
used for parking and vehicular access onto a state roadway by a private entity. 



Sheet 2 of2 

The given circumstances present some potential concerns for the town. I believe this 
existing condition, whereby a private parking area and driveway over town owned land 
used to access a state roadway (at a less than desirable location), leaves the town exposed 
to liability with regards to potential traffic accidents. 

FOLLOW UP ACTION/RECOMMENDATION BY TOWN STAFF: 

Based on follow up meetings with the First Selectman, Public Works Director, ZEO, and 
Assessor and follow up discussions by town staff with past owners of the subject parcel 
(Ron Clark and his mother Mrs. Clark) it was determined that the Clarks, had sold off all 
their property at that time (1977) and were moving out oftown when they realized that 
they still had this small piece of land left. Mrs. Clark stated that her husband, 
Robert, who has since passed, originally thought that they had conveyed this to the 
property owner of the (currently used as) gas station but when they realized they still 
owned it they chose to give it to the town. 

In consideration of this infonnation, it was agreed by town staff that it may be in the best 
interest of all parties to have the town proceed with transferring this land to the current 
owner of738 Middletovm Road. In discussion and email correspondence with Mike 
Malinosky (current owner), he has indicated he is in favor of accepting the land from the 
Tovm. 

Copy: 
Gregg Schuster- First Selectman 
James Paggioli- Public Works Director 
Craig Grimord - ZEO/ Assistant planner 
John Chaponis- Assessor 



TOWN OF COLCHESTER, CT.- ZONING AND PLANNING COMMISSION APPLICATION 

ZONING AND PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

f.;s11J3 -o~10:·· 

--. __.-

This application ( 1 form and 5 sets of 
plans) shall be submitted to the Zoning 
and Planning Commission Office no later 
than noon on the Thursday before the next 
regularly scheduled meeting (the lst and 
3rd Wednesday of the month excepting 
Holiday periods). 

TOWN: Col cles'l~ ZIPCODE: ~6lff) TELEPHONE: {{6o-'737-?2/('(-

OWNEROFRECORDONCOLCHESTERLANDRECORDS: /Ow!l/ oF Co lc..Ctescfl~ 

STREET/ROAD ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: {\/I vJ ( C:o 1<. AIM o:f ;1..:re ( b J- /(re l if 1 

ASSESSOR'S MAP: tJ I A LOT#: tJJ/A- ZONE: CoNMifC.r.k( 
j 

NAME, ADDRESS & TELEPHONE OF PERSON TO WHOM CORRESPONDENCE AND 
INQUIRIES 

SHOULD BE DIRECTED: C i A:. l 'f G, G 12. t--~ o I cf< TELEPHONE: f 6 (} - ) 5?- 7 29'{

b/l r /1. J Gvt -h r c en t:Jt r o -t:--? £c.~ 
APPLICATION IS FOR (Check one of the following): 

I. Zone Change from Zone to __ Zone (Public Hearing). 

2. Amendment to Section(s) of the Zoning Regulations (Public Hearing). 

3. Special Exception to Section(s), ______ of the Zoning Regulations (Public Hearing). 

4. Site Development Plan. 

5. Filing for Subdivision. 

6. Filing for Re-subdivision (Public Hearing). 

~Other (describe in detail) C G S '%-:Z if It e.::f-u-/'A: [ ;:;:,.1_ /'t'( A ,,J S' ,.C~ 
oF 'roVJAJ \) \A/i"Ve J LA--dJ ru Jirrc/+z--e t:>1rrly . _ 

// SIGNATURE(S) i2 
TillS A_fPtlCA TIO~S~' SIGNED BY THE APPLICANT AND THE OWNER OF THE 
PRO RTY ANJ)'§unM;it D ALONG WITH FIVE (5) SETS OF THE PLANS. 

/ 

f£~ Tf/e- r;iwrJ <SYP 
&/cift!0 f-e/L 

* ;; reverse for fee schedule. 

Rev. 05/04 

E:\zpc\Fonns\PZAPP.doc 

OWNER(S) 





·' 

TU'f.LA•Jl ---•.., • ...... _... ... 

_.........------~-
1117 

FO/IJI 11M CONNECTICUT. WIJ.UNTY DEE.D 
.uv. 1/11 

~nofn 1]c, 'i!iqnt WE, ROBERT G. CLARK and VICTORIA CLARK, both 

of the Town of Colchester, County of New London,•State of Connec-

ticut, . · 
for the consideration of ONE ($1. 00) DOLLAR and other good and valuable 

considerations, 

rc.c~iued to our full •atisfaction of the TOWN OF COLCHESTER, a municipal 

corpo_ration, located in the County of New London, State of Connec-

ticut, .~ -·. ····- _ .. _ .. _. ··- ·--· ----
do giue, grant, bargain, sell and confirm unto th~ said . TOl-IN OF COLCHESTER, 

its successors and assigns, 

A tract of land situated at the intersection of Route 16 and Route 
_149 in the Town of Colchester, County of New London, State of Con-
nect-icut, bounded as follows: 

On the·North 90.10 feet by land now or formerly. of Donald Clark;' 
on the East eleven (lll feet by Connecticut Route 1491 on the Southea t 
114.35 feet by Route 16; and on the West 95.35 feet by other land 
no~ o~o~rly of ~ober~lar~. 

'U:o ~-buc nnl:l .to ~-1olll the aboue granted and bargained pr~m~<S. with thc.appurt~ 
nances thereof~ .unto · the &aid grautee its ~;-;~<. suc-
cessors and assigns forever. to its a,W. . their own prop·er usc and behoof. 

c~n.h nl11~. we ihc &aid grantor s do· for ourselves, our heir.. 

executor& and administr::;.tors. c;vcnont un"ch the &aid grantee, its . 
succ~ssors. h:.ix.s<and cssigns. that cc ond until the ~nscolint:of tJt.cS;c prcst;nts. we are 

· . well seized of the pr.:mis.:&. as a cood indefeasible estate'!" FEE Sl.\JfLE; a:'-d 
h " good nght to bargain and sell the same "' manner and form as IS abouc wnllen_; and 

?'ha'1 the same is free from all incumbrance• whatsoever, except a.s hereinbefore mcnttoned... 

c~nD J.~url1IcrnuJrc, we the ,atd grantor s do "by thc:&e P_rcscnts bind 
ourscl vcs and our heirs. cxcc~.;.tor .. and adminidratar. fouvcr to 

WARRANT AND DEFEND th~ aboue granted and bargained premises to. . tbc 
raid gr<tntcc , its . succcs£ors. hrJ/ .. -5· and o.sstgns. a.t;a:nst all clatm .. and de-
mands whatsocuct, except 01 hcrcinb.._ .. (orc mentioned. 

haue her<unto set our-- hand s 
.July in th~ year of our Lord nirut.un 

2Jn Jiliin.cnG ;illl]crcof, wa 
and scals:his 18 t:h day of 
hundred and sever.cy-sevcn. 
icr~d. Scaled and D.:liucred in prcs~nce of 

I 

Robert G. clar_k I 

_fk4~. Oj.L£-,_j/ £«//A( f:? __ / 1' 
U Victoria Clark 

------~~----------PI~:~t-h-is __ d_o_c_u __ mc_n_t_•_n __ th __ c_p_r_c_sc_n_c_e~o={=t~w~o~w=i=tn~c~s~s~c=s=a~n~d--a~-N~o-la-~--~P-u~b-1-,c--w-h-o--~j 
&hould complete the ackr..owlcdgmcnt and a/fix his or her impression seal and the date upon . 
which ·his or her commission c~pirc&. Under the &i[:n.:J.tu.rcs of the witnesses an.d thl! f{otarr~ 
their names should be either printed or typed in.. Tnc Notary may &erue a.1 on~ o/ the two wst· • 
~~u~u~~ I 
ffi!.ll!c o-f <Conncclicu!, 1 · ' Ga •. Gr_ocon July 18, A. D. 19 ~~ 

----H~....J'WJUlllu _of_ New_Loncoa'--------.l.------'-------------------------' 
Personally Appeared . 

ROBERT G. CLARK lu'ID VICTORIA CLARK 

Signers and Scalers of tM foregoing Instrunu:nl, and acJmowlcdccd tht sam~ to be their 
free act and deed • 
be[ort au:. · 

Lotut 

ll:fty{I'([O fOR RECORD AT COX.[.S'f!.~ Ci'Of'trt.. 
o'V<J.(,.Jq17 Ar:.:ts .._ 
a:-t,.c:;: john 0.. f...G.sa.,. To-wn 0...- • 

address ·of Grantee: . . 
Commissioner of t:he Superior Cou 

No- and Street--,_---------





Town of Colchester, Connecticut 
127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415 

Gregg Schuster, First Selectman 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Selectmen 

Cc: 

From Gregg Schuster, First Selectman ~/ 
Date: 4/29/13 

Re: Resident Trooper Contract 

Attached is the two year contract to participate in the Resident Trooper Program. We did not 
identify any changes from the existing contract. 

Recommended Motion - "Move to execute the Resident Trooper contract with the State of 
Connecticut, Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection and authorize the 
First Selectman to sign any and all documents." 

Page 1 of 1 





0 -0 -i A08:38 RCV 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY SERVICES AND PUBLIC PROTECTION 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 

Gregg B. Schuster, First Selectman 
Town Office Building 
127 Norwich Ave. 
Colchester, CT 06415 

March 28,2013 

Dear First Selectman Gregg B. Schuster: 

Enclosed is a proposed renewal copy of the Resident Trooper Contract, for the period 
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015. 

Enclosure 

cc: Colonel Danny Stebbins 
Lt. Col. Robert Corona 

Sincerely, 

1111 Couno:v Club Road 
MiddletmFn, CT 06457 

Phone: (860) 685-8000/Fax: (860) 685-8354 
An Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer 





CONTRACT BETWEEN THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT DEPARMENT OF 
EMERGENCY SERVICES AND PUBLIC PROTECTION, DIVISION OF STATE 

POLICE AND THE 

TOWN OF: Colchester 

TOWN ADDRESS: 127 Norwich Ave. 
Colchester, CT 06415 

FOR THE SERVICES OF RESIDENT STATE POLICE TROOPERS 

TOWN FEIN#: 06-6001974 AGREEMENT NUMBER: 2000/654 

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015 

In consideration of the Town of Colchester (hereinafter the "Town"), acting 
through its Chief Executive Officer (hereinafter the "Town CEO"), duly authorized, 
paying all costs pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes Section 29-5 and other good 
and valuable consideration, the Depmiment of Emergency Services and Public 
Protection, Division of State Police (hereinafter the "State Police"), acting through its 
Commissioner, duly authorized, hereby agrees to provide the Town of Colchester with 
the services of one (1) Resident State Police Trooper(s) during the above-referenced 
contract period. 

This Contract is subject to the following additional terms and conditions: 

I. Law Enforcement Operations and Activities 

A. Authority Over Police Operations. The Town hereby delegates to the State 
' Police the authority to supervise and direct the law enforcement operations of 

appointed constables and police officers in the Town as set forth below. 

1. Except for terms and conditions that conflict with the Town's obligations 
under the Connecticut Municipal Employee Relations Act (hereinafter 
"the MERA") and/or are contained within any collective bm·gaining 
agreement between the Town and the town police officers' or constables' 
collective bargaining representative, all town police officers and 
constables shall be subject to applicable provisions of the cunent Resident 
State Trooper Program Administration and Operations Manual of the 
Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection (hereinafter the 
"Manual"). Copies of the Manual shall be provided to the Town CEO and 
each police officer or constable of the Town who shall be responsible for 
compliance therewith. The Town shall ensure that each police officer or 



constable in the Town provides a signed copy of the form attached hereto 
as Exhibit A evidencing such town police officer's or constable's receipt 
of the Manual and his or her understanding that he or she is responsible for 
adhering to its provisions, excepting only those terms and conditions that 
conflict with the Town's obligations under the MERA and/or are 
contained within any collective bargaining agreement between the Town 
and the constables' or officers' collective bargaining representative. 

2. The Town shall promptly advise the State Police in writing of any terms 
and conditions of the cunent Manual which the Town reasonably believes 
conflict with any provision of any collective bargaining agreement 
between the Town and the constables' or officers' collective bargaining 
representative and shall provide a copy of any such agreement to the State 
Police. 

3. During collective bargaining, the Town shall attempt to negotiate terms 
and conditions consistent with the performance standards and other 
provisions of the Manual. 

B. Patrol Activities and Assignments 

The Resident State Police Supervisor or Trooper, as applicable, assigned to 
each Town shall be responsible for making all patrol and special activity 
assignments for Town police officers or constables, including the law 
enforcement duties to be perfonned, taking into consideration the needs of the 
Town after consultation with the Town CEO, sound police practices, and any 
rights of the Town police officers or constables as specified in any collective 
bargaining agreement between the Town and the constables' /officers' 
collective bargaining representative and the Town's obligations under the 
MERA. 

C. Investigative Methods 

The use of investigative methods, including but not limited to the conduct of 
all criminal investigations, application for and execution of all anest and 
search wanants, use of force, vehicular pursuits, related activities, and 
reporting procedures, in the Town shall be in accordance with the provisions 
of the Manual. 

1. Serious crimes, serious InJury crimes and most complex incidents that 
involve in-depth, follow-up investigation, crime scene processing, seizure 
of evidence, application fqr and execution of search warrants, and out-of
town investigative work shall be conducted by the Resident State Police 
Supervisor or Trooper, as applicable, by State Police personnel assigned to 
the area State Police Troop, respective State Police major crime unit or 
any other State Police investigative unit deemed appropriate by the State 

2 



Police. The State Police may, in its sole discretion, make exceptions to 
this policy on a case-by-case basis. A serious or complex investigation 
may be assigned to a town police officer or constable by the State Police 
after taking into consideration the nature of the case, requirements of the 
investigation, the shift resources, response time, and the experience and 
training of the Town police officer or constable. 

2. Every effort will be made by the State Police to allow a Town police 
officer or constable to remain involved in self-initiated, serious criminal 
investigations to the extent consistent with sound law enforcement 
investigative principles and practices. 

D. Reports and Records 

All Town police investigative records shall be maintained by the Depmiment 
of Emergency Services and Public Protection. All investigative reports shall 
be prepared, formatted and submitted in the manner approved by State Police. 
The Town shall be responsible for providing network access to the State 
Police records management system in accordance with the requirements of the 
State Police. 

E. Chain of Command 

Resident State Police Supervisors or Troopers, where applicable, shall directly 
supervise the law enforcement operations of all Town police officers or 
constables. The Town CEO of a resident trooper town shall have reasonable, 
direct access to the area State Police Troop Commander, the Resident Trooper 
Supervisor and Resident State Police Troopers for regulm· and on-gomg 
communications regarding law enforcement problems in the Town. 

1. In the absence of the assigned Resident State Police Supervisor or 
Trooper, where applicable, the chain of command for Town police officers 
or constables shall progress to the area State Police Troop Commander, or 
his duly assigned on-duty shift supervisor, and to the State Police District 
Commander. 

2. The intent of this contract is to provide positive direction for the working 
relationship between town police officers/constables and State Police 
personnel. All significant conflicts between Town police 
officers/constables and State Police personnel shall be referred to the next 
senior officer in the State Police chain of command. 

F. Telecommunications 

The Town shall follow all State Police procedures regarding use, access and 
maintenance of State Police supplied telecommunications equipment and 

3 



technology. If the Town operates its own radio system and dispatch function, 
Town police officers/constables, when dispatched to respond to an incident by 
such dispatch center, shall immediately notify the Troop State Police dispatch 
center of the incident to which they are responding. 

G. Use of Police Canines by Town Police Officers/Constables 

The use of police canines by Town police officers/constables shall be 
consistent with State Police policies and procedures. Towns electing to use 
alternative programs for training and certification or recertification of police 
canines shall assume all costs and liabilities associated with such programs. 
In the event a Town police canine is employed in a manner inconsistent or 
contrary to policies and procedures of the Department of Emergency Services 
and Public Protection, the Town assumes all liability for any injuries or 
damages caused thereby. 

H. Overtime 

The State Police retains the right to make ove1iime assigmnents of State 
Police personnel in accordance with the prevailing State Police collective 
bargaining agreement and state law. Overtime assigmnents in the Town that 
require state police services outside the scope of this agreement and 
Connecticut General Statutes Section 29-5 such as those that fall within the 
scope of Connecticut General Statutes Section 7-284 shall be assigned in 
accordance with the prevailing State Police collective bargaining agreement 
and paid for by the Town in accordance with the prevailing rates for private 
contractor extra duty overtime assigmnents. This provision is intended to 
apply only to overtime performed by state police personnel and is not intended 
to limit the rights of local officers or constables under any applicable local 
collective bargaining agreement. 

II. Administrative Responsibility 

A. The Town shall retain administrative responsibility for its personnel, including 
but not limited to, ensuring compliance with entry level standards for newly 
hired police officers or constables and training and certification requirements 
established by the Police Officer Standards and Training Council (POSTC) in 
accordance with the provisions of Connecticut General Statutes Section 7-
294a et seq. and associated Regulations of Cmmecticut State Agencies or as 
otherwise required by law, compensation for services rendered, hours or shifts 
to be worked, and provisions of uniforms and equipment. 

1. Resident State Police Supervisors or Troopers, as applicable, shall 
cooperate with the Town by scheduling Town police officers and 

4 



constables so as to enable them to meet these requirements in a timely 
manner. 

B. Administrative Investigations/Discipline 

All misconduct or performance issues on the part of Town police officers or 
constables which cannot reasonably be resolved through counseling or the 
issuance of a Perfmmance Observation Report by the Resident State Police 
Supervisor or Trooper, if applicable, and which may warrant the imposition of 
discipline, however minor, or the need for additional remedial training, shall 
be promptly reported to the Town CEO. The Town CEO shall be kept 
apprised of any counseling or the issuance of any Perfmmance Observation 
Reports. 

1. Allegations of misconduct on the part of Town police officers or 
constables which cannot reasonably be resolved through counseling or the 
issuance of a Perfo1mance Observation Report by the Resident State 
Police Supervisor or Trooper, if applicable, and which may wanant the 
imposition of discipline, however minor, shall be investigated by the State 
Police in a manner consistent with the provisions of the Manual and with 
any collective bargaining agreement between the Town and the 
constables' /officers' collective bargaining representative, if any. The 
State Police may recommend the imposition of appropriate disciplinary 
measures and/or remedial training for Town police officers/constables. 
Imposition of discipline, if any, upon Town police officers/constables, or 
assignment for additional training to remedy performance deficiencies on 
the part of Town police officers/constables, shall be the responsibility of 
the Town. 

C. Evaluations 

In accordance with its obligations under the MERA and consistent with the 
tem1s of any 'collective bargaining agreement between the Town and 
constables' or police officers' bargaining representative, the Town shall 
implement a work performance evaluation system for all ofthe Town's police 
officers or constables. Such work performance evaluations shall be issued at 
least annually. 

1. The Town recognizes that evaluations are: 1) an effective supervisor's 
tool; and 2) that they identify superior or substandard work perfonnance. 

2. Consistent 'Yith the te1ms of any collective bargaining agreement between 
the Town and the constables' or officers' collective bargaining 
representative, the Resident State Police Supervisor or Trooper, if 
applicable, and the Department of Emergency Services and Public 
Protection shall provide recommendations to the Town CEO conceming 

5 



the periodic evaluation of the work performance of Town police officers 
or constables. 

3. The Town shall make the final disposition on all work perfonnance 
evaluations. Copies of completed work perfonnance evaluations shall be 
filed in each Town police officer's/constable's official persom1el files 
which shall be available to Resident State Police Supervisors and 
Troopers, as applicable, upon request. 

III. Payment for Services Rendered 

A. Costs and Schedule of Payments 

The Town agrees to reimburse the State Police for the cost of compensation, 
maintenance and other expenses, including reasonably necessary overtime 
costs, for its assigned Resident State Police Supervisor or Trooper(s), as 
applicable, consistent with the provisions of Connecticut General Statutes 
Section 29-5, in accordance with the following: 

1. The State Police shall invoice the Town on an annual basis, in mTears, for 
the accrued costs of services rendered under this Contract with the 
exception of overtime which shall be invoiced on a quarterly basis, in 
arrears. 

2. The Town shall pay the State Police for the invoiced costs of services 
rendered under this Contract within thirty (30) days of receipt of each 
invoice. If the Town disputes all or a pmiion of a pending invoice, it shall 
be the responsibility of the Town CEO to notify the State Police in writing 
before payment is due. 

3. The State Police shall have the right to assess a late fee in the amount of 
five percent (5%) of the unpaid balance of each invoice for which 
undisputed amounts remain unpaid after sixty (60) days. In calculating 
unpaid amounts, partial payments shall first be applied to the oldest 
outstanding balances, and then to each successive outstanding balance 
until fully paid. 

IV. Risk of Loss and Indemnification 

A. The Town assumes the risk of loss for any and all activity involving full or 
part-time Town constables, municipal police officers, other municipal 
employees providing police services, law enforcement officers providing 
police services pursuant to a mutual aid agreement with the Town, and Town 
police canines, and hereby agrees to hold hmmless the State of Com1ecticut 
and the Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection, its officers, 
agents and employees, from any cause or action arising out of the activity of 

6 



such full or part-time Town constables, police officers or other municipal 
employees providing police services, or if applicable, the activity of any town 
police canine, and to indemnify the State of Com1ecticut and the Depatiment 
of Emergency Services and Public Protection, its officers, agents and 
employees, from any liability resulting from the same. 

The Town shall hold harmless and indemnify the State of C01mecticut and the 
Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from any liability resulting from a cause or action founded 
either upon respondeat superior or supervisory liability arising from the acts 
or omissions of full or pati-time Town constables, police officers or other 
municipal employees providing police services, or, if applicable, the activity 
of a11y town police canine, made pursuant to a provision of the collective 
bargaining agreement between the Town and the constables' or officers' 
collective bargaining representative, that is in conflict with a provision of the 
Manual. 

Additionally, the Town shall hold harmless and indemnify the State of 
Connecticut and the Depatiment of Emergency Services and Public 
Protection, its officers, agents, and employees, from any liability resulting 
from any cause or action founded either upon respondeat superior or 
supervisory liability arising from the acts or omissions of a constable or 
officer that has refused or failed to execute Exhibit A, attached hereto. 

1. For the period covered by this Contract, the Town will insure itself and its 
employees with a $1,000,000.00 combined single limit police professional 
liability or law enforcement liability insurance policy, or its equivalent, 
naming the State of Connecticut and the Department of Emergency 
Services and Public Protection, its officers, agents and employees, as an 
additional insured with respect to any liability for acts of Town constables, 
municipal police officers or other municipal employees providing police 
services, law enforcement officers providing police services pursuant to a 
mutual aid agreement with the Town, or, if applicable, the activity of any 
town police canine, and submit a ce1iificate of insurance (or self
insurance) to the Department of Emergency Services and Public 
Protection prior to the effective date of this Contract. 

2. It is understood and agreed by the parties that each Resident State Police 
Supervisor or Trooper, as applicable, exercising his or her police power or 
perf01ming services pursuant to this Contract is an employee of the State 
of Com1ecticut and not of the Town and that, except to the extent limited 
by law, the State of Connecticut, and not the Town, is responsible for such 
Resident State Police Supervisor or Trooper's actions while in the 
perfonnance of their assigned duties. 

7 



V. Notices 

Any written notices required under this Contract shall be delivered as follows: 

If to the Town: 

Name 
Street 
City/Town, Connecticut 

If to the Depmiment of Emergency Services and Public Protection: 

Commissioner 
Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection 
1111 Country Club Road 
Middletown, CT 06457-9294 

VI. Governor's Executive Orders 

This Agreement is subject to the provisions of Executive Order No. Three of 
Governor Thomas J. Meskill, promulgated June 16, 1971, concerning labor employment 
practices, Executive Order No. Seventeen of Governor Thomas J. Meskill, promulgated 
February 15, 1973, concerning the listing of employment openings and Executive Order 
No. Sixteen of Governor John G. Rowland promulgated August 4, 1999, concerning 
violence in the workplace, all of which are incorporated into and are made a part of the 
Agreement as if they had been fully set forth in it. This agreement may also be subject to 
Executive Order No. 7C of Governor M. Jodi Rell, promulgated July 13, 2006, 
concerning contracting refmms and Executive Order No. 14 of Governor M. Jodi Rell, 
promulgated April 17, 2006, concerning procurement of cleaning products and services, 
in accordance with their respective terms and conditions. 

VII. Termination 

This Contract shall remain in full force and effect for the entire term of the 
Contract period stated above unless sooner terminated by either the Town or the State 
Police by providing thirty (30) days prior VvTitten notice of its intent to te1minate the 
Contract. 

Town of Colchester 

By __________________ __ 

8 

State of Connecticut 
Depmiment of Emergency Services 
and Public Protection 

By ____________________ ___ 



Its 
Duly Authorized 

Date: --------------------

Approved as to Form: 

Assistant Attorney General 
Office of the Attorney General 

Date: ------------------

Commissioner 

Date: ----------------------

9 





Exhibit A 

RESIDENT STATE TROOPER ADMINISTRATION & OPERATIONS MANUAL 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT 

I, , have received a copy of the Resident State Trooper 
Administration and Operations Manual and understand that as a local officer/constable in 
the Town of Colchester, I am responsible for complying with the provisions ofthis 
Manual not governed by either any collective bargaining agreement between the Town 
and the constables' or police officers' collective bargaining representative or te1ms and 
conditions that conflict with the Town's obligations under the Connecticut Municipal 
Employee Relations Act. 

Signature Date 

cc: Official Personnel File 

10 





Youth Services Bureau 

To: Board of Selectmen 

From: Valerie Geato 

!Date: April 26, 2013 

Re: YSB Registration and Data Tracking Program 

Recommended Motion 

Approve entering into an agreement with nFocus Solutions to implement 
TraxSolutions® Kid Trax, Outcome Measurement and Money Trax programs, and 
authorize the First Selectman to sign any related documents. 

nFocus Solutions' TraxSolutions® KidTrax® will provide us with an effective way to track, 
manage and analyze participation in youth programs. This web-based solution combines ID 
cards, scanning technology, a link to school district databases, reporting capabilities and a 
variety of other tools that make it possible to connect the data we collect with the 
outcomes we need. 

The TraxSolutions Outcome Measurement Toolkit (OMT) is a real-time solution that 
utilizes an easy-to-use logic model for data collection and automated reports and charts to 
analyze how and why your programs are working. 

The nFocus Solutions' MoneyTrax® is a tool for managing fees and providing 
comprehensive payment and invoicing services. As a component of the TraxSolutions 
suite, MoneyTrax provides an integrated way to process membership enrollment, 
participant intake and fee payment. Providing on-line registration and credit card payments 
will offer families the modern conveniences they often request. 

This program has been developed to meet our reporting needs for the State Department of 
Education. In an effort to get as many YSB's on this program as possible, the State Dept of 
Education has approved use of our Enhancement grant to fund the project. The grant will 
cover the entire cost and annual maintenance fees. I will use the Enhancement grant to 
pay for the annual maintenance fee in the future as well. The quote is attached. 

127 NdRWICH AVENUE, SUITE 205 (+COLCHESTER, CT 06415 •) (860) 537-7255 •) FAX (860) 537-0547 

A Member of Connecticut Youth Services Association 





ltlltocus 
bridging the gap~ 

Colchester Youth & Social Services 

127 Nol\vick Ave. 
Colchester, CT 06415 
Attn: Valerie Geato 

vgeato@colchesterct.aov 

860-537-7255 

Sales Manager 
Jim Birney 

Licenses 

Trax Admin License 

ITEM NAME 

TraxSolutions® Site License (1 Orbit® Scanner & 5 user log-on's) 

Quote# 
DATE 
EXPIRATION DATE 

QT20130426 
April 26, 2013 
May 26, 2013 

TrOll solutaons' 
I Phone I Email 
I soz.954.9557 I jbimey@nfocus.com 

QTY UNIT PRICE DONATION ! LINE TOTAL 

s 2.100.00 

s 2.250.00 2,250.00 

~~~-n-ni-n-gl_1_o_o_u_s_e_r_ca_p_)----------------------~------~----------~--------S-9_o_o_.o_o+-_________ g_o_o_.o_o~ 
s 500.00 

s 900.00 

s 750.00 

~License and Online Registration 

~v1anagement Module 

~x Module -facility 

Annual Maintenance & Support Agreement (MSA) 

Trax® Admin Annual MSA 

Trax® Site Annual MSA 

Trax® Century Annual MSA 

Outcome Measurement Toolkit Annual MSA (waived) 

MoneyTrax® MSA 

Trax® Case Management Annual MSA 

Hardware 

Additional Orbit® Scanners (Includes Trax Attendance ivigr) 

Data Hub (Connects up to 8 scanners to 1 PC) 

Services 

Standard Data Import (Per database) 

Additional Users (5 Pack) 

TraxSolutions License Transfer 

TraxSolutions Reactivation Database Set Up 

Implementation/Training 

Implementation Training (One 60 minute phone consultation & Two 60 minute custom online 
training sessions) 

One 60 minute custom online training session (MoneyTrax) 

Two 60 minute custom online training sessions 

On-Site Trax® Training 

Travel and Expenses for on-site trainings 

We look forward to being of service. 

s 750.00 

s 1.100.00 1,100.00 

s 1.500.00 

s 1,000.00 

s 500.00 

s 649.00 

s 649.00 649.00 

s 325.00 

s 200.00 $200.00 200.00 

s 200.00 200.00 

s 300.00 

s 550.00 

$ 750.00 

s 300.00 

s 400.00 

s 545.00 

s 400.00 

$ 499.00 $499.00 499.00 

s 199.00 199.00 

$ 349.00 

$ 1.500.00 

$ 1.000.00 

Subtotals $1,599.00 s 5,997.00 

Quote Total $ 4,398.00 

nFocus Solutionse 6225 North 24th Street, Suite GL 100, Phoenix, AZ. 85016 p. 866.954.9557 f. 602.954.9559 wvJw,nfocus.com 

This documen~ may contain information deemed PrOprietary by nFocus Solutions; therefore, it shall not be disclosed to sources othe.r than the party for whom it is intended 
and for.no purpose other than the review and evaluation of its~ contents:'Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution of this document in whole. or in part 

"~~~~~()~tt~;,~~~~;s~~~e"c~t~~t. ~~~~~.~~t'.t~o~i~ll:~,~!oited.,·.·~ {i ·c·~~•:.~~ . ··J.£~~:1.~~~~;; ... .~.~,.~ .•. · .•.. ~... .L.·.··• ... 





s ® 

KidTrax 

Manage Data. Show Results. Prove Impact. 
nFocus Solutions' TraxSolutions" KidTrax" offers easy, effective ways for your organization to track, manage and 
participation in youth programs. This web-based solution combines ID cards, scanning technology, a link to school district 
databases, reporting capabilities and a variety of other tools that make it possible to connect the data you collect with the 
outcomes you seek. 

TraxSolutions in Action 
TraxSolutions is designed to save you and your staff valuable time. 

Once you login, you're able to obtain data and analyze almost all 

facets of your operations. This allows you to answer important 

questions regarding your facility or facilities, including: 

What percentage of youth members, on average, are visiting the 

regularly? 

·How many schools are represented in your rnember database? 

·Which youth members belong to the same household? 

Which children have parent permission to walk home or use 

the internet? 

Who still has unpaid balances on their accounts? 

Some of these answers will be vital during the grant-writing 

process; others will make for more organized day-to-day 

operations and smoother transitions from one fiscal year to 

the next. 

TraxSolutions Admin Edition 
Gathering data is one thing. Knowing how to handle it is 

another. With Trax Admin Edition, organizations with multiple 

TraxSolutions' sites can manage reporting capabilities and 

accessibility. TraxSolutions allows nonprofits to use accurate 

information to make decisions about programs, and 

outcomes. It enables them to demonstrate the results of their 

beneficial work and show these results to potential donors. 

Reports can be run for individual sites, all sites or any 

combination of sites. Program effectiveness can be and 

compared in a similar way. Trax Admin Edition also provides access 

and login management features. 

Online Registration 
Online Registration with MoneyTrax offers your participants and 

families the ability to register for activities anytime from any 

computer. You can designate which of your program's 

activities will support online registration and set your own 

convenience fees. 

Team and Activity Tracking 
TeamTrax allows you to set up teams by activity, assign coaches 

and volunteers, manage enrollment, create waiting lists and track 

team players within the KidTrax application. 



System Requirements: 

WindowsXP 
1 GHz Processor 
512MB RAM 
500MB available HD Space 
Broadband Internet Connection 
Internet Explorer 8.0 or Higher 

Windows Vista/ 7 
1 GHz Processor 
1 GB RAM 
500MB available HD Space 
Broadband Internet Connection 
Internet Explorer 8.0 or Higher 

Outcome Measurement Toolkit 
Now that you have your data, use it to prove your organization's impact! The TraxSolutions Outcome 

Measurement Toolkit provides you with a simple, intuitive tool for organizing, tracking and 

reponing outcomes. 

By choosing outcomes, indicators and measurements specific to your organization, you can 

generate reports and graphics that will show your progress and demonstrate the impact of 

your programs. 

This information will 

effectiveness to donors. 

and programs. 

give you the comprehensive reports you need to prove your 

It also will provide your organization with insights for new strategies 

Mobile Handheld Scanning 
The Trax Mobile Handheld Scanner allows you to obtain your organization's data from any location, at 

any time. 

Weighing under seven ounces and only seven inches high, this device is easily transported and extends your 

scanning capabilities during off-site program offerings. 

In addition to scanning IDs, staff can view emergency information, attendance data, membership status and 

a variety of other member information. 

Web-Based Surveys 
From program participants to staff, volunteers and donors, you can use TraxSolutions Survey Manager to 

address the right people, gathering the feedback you need to make program management decisions and 

measure your organization's impact. 

The surveys, which are directly integrated with your TraxSolutions data, can be accessed from any computer 

and you will be able to choose from a library of existing survey templates. You also will have the option of 

modifying templates or using the built-in, point-and-click Survey Builder to customize your surveys. 



Trax solutions® 

Instant insight into program effectiveness. 
Program quality and value can be measured. The TraxSolutions Outcome Measurement Toolkit (OMT} is a real-time solution that 
utilizes an easy-to-use logic model for data collection and automated reports and charts to analyze how and why your programs 
are working. 

Its user-friendly framework captures the inputs, activities and outputs of programs and services. This enables you to identify and 
track trends, allowing you to measure and monitor program success. Such data leads to recognizable, results-based 
accountability. 

2 Full Time Tutors 

5 Volunteer Homework 

100 Reading 
Comprehension 
Workbooks 

1 00 Algebra/Pre-Calc 
Workbooks 

Resources your program 

uses, including staff, 

volunteers, workbooks 

and computers. 

Daily Homework Help! 
Sessions 

Math Olympics 

Reading Instruction 
Courses 

Service, programs and 

events that your organi

zation provides, including 

homework clubs, reading 

groups and sports camps. 

Total Enrollment 
Surpasses 100 

Greater than 75% 
Attendance 

The number of youth who 

participate in the various 

activities your organiza

tion provides as well as 

the frequency of these 

activities. 

Improved Math Grades 

Increased School 
Engagement 

Improved Language & 
Writing Scores 

Benefits that participants 

experience as a result of 

these programs. Benefits 

include higher test scores 

and increased engage

ment vvith school and 

learning. 



System Requirements: 

WindowsXP 
1 GHz Processor 
512MB RAM 
500MB available HD Space 
Broadband Internet Connection 
Internet Explorer 8.0 or Higher 

Windows Vista/ 7 
1 GHz Processor 
1GB RAM 
500 MB available HD Space 
Broadband Internet Connection 
Internet Explorer 8.0 or Higher 

TraxSolutions Outcome Measurement Toolkit 

~Attract additional funding by implementing a proven outcome tracking model 
·Minimize training requirements because of the intuitive, easy-to-use interface 

Deliver high-level analysis reporting and detailed statistical data 
Immediate access to critical operational and outcome metrics 

·Provide detailed, real-time outcome reports for organizations, programs and individuals 
·Align local resources to community needs 
·Improve resource allocation and service delivery 



TrQl( solutions® 
MoneyTrax 

Track Fees. Manage Payments. Ensure Accuracy. 
nFocus Solutions' MoneyTrax"' is a powerful tool for managing fees and providing comprehensive payment and invoicing 
services. As a component of the TraxSolutions suite, MoneyTrax provides an integrated way to process membership enrollment, 
participant intake and fee payment. 

A Simple Fee Management Solution 
MoneyTraxs enables organizations to track all fees, payments and 

credits for individuals, households and teams for any kind of 

program. Simplify the enrollment process with the ability to enroll 

participants, manage billing and produce detailed reports from 

one software application. 

Create, manage and charge fees for: 

• Registration 

• Membership 

·Monthly dues 

, Activity participation 

·Team enrollment 

·Team uniforms and equipment 

Keep accurate records by tracking charges, payments, 

credits and overdue balances. You can trust MoneyTrax to fit your 

organizational needs with the same reliability of more 

sophisticated accounting software. And because it's an extension of 

TraxSolutions, all of your data is stored in one secure location. 

Accepts payments from all major credit cards. 

TeamTrax 
TeamTrax gives you the power to enroll participants into programs 

or activities, and then separate participants into small groups or 

teams. You can set up teams by activity, assign coaches and team 

volunteers, manage team enrollment and track team players. 

With TeamTrax, organizations can also: 

Assign registered participants to a team 

Create team types, such as intramural or traveling teams 

Sort registered participants by name, age, registration date, 

school, gender and other criteria as defined by the registration 

requirements 

Create and export comprehensive reports that include team 

reports with team/coach rosters, contact information and 

balance due information 

Assign logins to the coach portal, which provides coaches with 

different levels of access regarding each team 



System Requirements: 

Windows XP 
1 GHz Processor 
512MB RAM 
500MB available HD Space 
Broadband Internet Connection 
Internet Explorer 8.0 or Higher 

Windows Vista/ 7 
1 GHz Processor 
1GB RAM 
500 iVIB available HD Space 
Broadband Internet Connection 
Internet Explorer 8.0 or Higher 

Online Registration 

The Online Registration Portal ensures that participants and families have 24 hour access to the most current 

information from their programs, teams and organizations. With an interactive web presence, users can 

register for programs and activities from anywhere in the country. 

Participants and their families are provided with the ability to view and manage a wide range of data 

encompassing individual and household memberships, demographics, enrollments and more. 



nfocus 
bridging the gap™ 

nFocus Solutions 
End User License Agreement 

6225 N. 24th Street 
Suite GL 100 

Phoenix, AZ 85016 
602.954.9557 (voice) 

602.954.9559 (fax) 
www.nfocus.com 

This document may contain information deemed proprietary by nFocus Solutions; therefore, it shall 
not be disclosed to sources other than the party for whom it is intended and for no purpose other than 
the review and evaluation of its contents. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution of 
this document in whole or in part without the express written consent of nFocus Solutions is 
prohibited. 



Table of Contents 

End User License Agreement (EULA) ..................................................................................... 1 
1.0 Scope ............................................................................................................................... 1 
2.0 Grant of License ................................................................................................................. 1 
3.0 Limitations on Use .............................................................................................................. 1 
4.0 Ownership and Title ........................................................................................................... 1 
5.0 Licensee Confidentiality Responsibility ............................................................................... 2 
6.0 Patent, Trademark, And Copyright Indemnification ............................................................ 2 
7.0 Limited Warranty ................................................................................................................ 2 
8.0 Limitation Of Liability .......................................................................................................... 2 
9.0 Indemnification .................................................................................................................... 3 
10.0 Transfers ............................................................................................................................ 3 
11.0 Term And Termination ....................................................................................................... 3 
12.0 Relationship ....................................................................................................................... 3 
13.0 Force Majeure ..................................................................................................................... 3 
14.0 Notices ............................................................................................................................... 3 
15.0 United States Government Licensing Provisions ................................................................ 3 
16.0 Licensor Security And Confidentiality Standards ............................................................... .4 
17.0 General .............................................................................................................................. 4 

17.1 Copyright Notices ............................................................................................... 4 
17.2 Insurance ............................................................................................................. 4 
17.3 Compliance With Laws ............................................................................................. 4 
17.4 Waivers .................................................................................................................... 4 
17.5 Assignments ............................................................................................................. 4 
17.6 Successor ................................................................................................................. 4 
17.7 Dispute Resolution ..................................................................................................... 4 
17.8 Governing Law ......................................................................................................... 4 
17.9 Representations And Warranties By Licensor .............................................................. 4 
17. 1 0 Precedence .............................................................................................................. 4 
17.11 Severability .............................................................................................................. 5 
17.12 Survival .................................................................................................................... 5 
17.13 Entire Agreement And Amendment.. ........................................................................ 5 

Maintenance and Support Agreement (MSA) .......................................................................... 6 
1.0 Definitions .......................................................................................................................... 6 

1.1 Support Call (Level 1) ................................................................................................ 6 
1.2 Support Call (Level 2) ................................................................................................ 6 
1.3 Support Call (Level 3) ................................................................................................ 6 
1.4 Response Time ......................................................................................................... 6 
1.5 Response Center and Contact Procedure ................................................................. 6 

2.0 Term and Termination ........................................................................................................ 6 
3.0 Maintenance and Support Services .................................................................................... 6 

3.1 Basic Maintenance .................................................................................................... 6 
3.2 Levels of Maintenance and Support .......................................................................... 6 
3.3 On-Site Assistance .................................................................................................... 7 
3.4 Causes Which Are Not Attributable to Licensor ......................................................... 7 

4.0 Responsibilities of Licensor ................................................................................................ 7 
5.0 Maintenance and Support Fee ........................................................................................... 8 
6.0 Assignment of duties .......................................................................................................... 8 

Addendum A- Understanding of Purchase and Implementation Process .............................. A1 



End User License Agreement (EULA) 

Software License Agreement for Trax® Software Products 

SWMG Productions, Inc., doing business as nFocus Solutions ("Licensor"), a Texas corporation, having a place of 
business at 6225 N. 241

h Street, Suite GL 100, Phoenix, Arizona 85016 and Colchester Youth & Services 
("Licensee"), having a place of business at 127 Norwick Ave .. Suite 205, Colchester. CT 06415, hereby enter into this 
End User License Agreement ("Agreement"). For good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

Section 1.0 SCOPE 

Licensor will provide proprietary software license and other electronic products ("Products") to Licensee. All such 
software that is owned by Licensor is referred to as "Software." Product and Software documentation that specifies 
technical and performance features and capabilities, and the user/operation/training manuals for the Software 
(including all physical or electronic media upon which this information is provided) are collectively referred to as 
"Documentation." This Agreement contains the terms and conditions pursuant to which Licensor shall license, and 
Licensee may use, the Software and Documentation. 

Section 2.0 GRANT OF LICENSE 

Licensor hereby grants to Licensee a non-transferable (except as permitted in Section 10 below), limited, and non
exclusive license under Licensor's applicable proprietary rights to use the Software (see Annex A- Maintenance and 
Support Agreement) and related Documentation for the purposes for which they were designed and in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The license granted authorizes Licensee to use the Software only in 
object code format and does not grant any rights to source code. 

Section 3.0 LIMITATIONS ON USE 

3.1 Licensee may use the Software only for Licensee's internal business purposes and only in accordance with the 
Documentation. Any other use of the Software is strictly prohibited. Licensee may not, for any reason, decompile, 
otherwise reverse engineer or attempt to reverse engineer, derive source code, create derivative works from, 
adapt, translate, merge with other software, copy, reproduce, distribute or export any Software or permit or 
encourage any third party to do so. Licensee must reproduce all copyright and trademark notices on all copies of 
the Documentation. 

3.2 Concerning Licensor's usage of, access to or installation of Products on client owned and operated equipment, 
Licensee must purchase a license for each physical site location. Licensee's use of Products or Software at an 
authorized physical site location does not entitle Licensee to use or access the Products or Software at 
additional, non-licensed physical site locations. Upon Licensor's written request, Licensee must provide to 
Licensor a written list of all physical site locations where Licensee installs or intends to install Products or access 
the Software. Each site Software license provides access for no more than five authorized users. Site licenses 
may be maintained in individual or multi-site databases at Licensee discretion. Century Software licenses limits 
participant data maintenance to 1 00 members. All Software licenses are provided with Software maintenance 
and support under the terms and conditions set forth in Annex A. 

Section 4.0 OWNERSHIP AND TITLE 

Title to all licenses of Software will not pass to Licensee at any time, but remains vested exclusively in Licensor. 
Licensor owns and retains all of its proprietary rights in any form concerning the Software and Documentation, 
including all rights in patents, patent applications, inventions, copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks, trade names, and 
other intellectual properties (including any corrections, bug fixes, enhancements, updates or modifications to or 
derivative works from the Software whether made by Licensor or another party). Nothing in this Agreement is 
intended to restrict the proprietary rights of Licensor or to grant by implication or estoppel any proprietary rights. All 
intellectual property developed, originated or prepared by Licensor in connection with providing to Licensee Software, 
Products, Documentation or related services remain vested exclusively in Licensor, and this Agreement does not 
grant to Licensee any shared development rights of intellectual property. This Agreement does not involve any 
software that is a ''work made for hire." 

1 of8 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative. ____ _ 



Section 5.0 LICENSEE CONFIDENTIALITY RESPONSIBILITY 

Licensee acknowledges that the Software and Documentation contain Licensor's valuable proprietary and 
confidential information and trade secrets. Licensee will take necessary and appropriate precautions to maintain and 
guard the confidentiality of the Software and Documentation, using at least the same degree of care that Licensee 
applies to its own confidential information, but not less than reasonable care. Precautions will include informing 
Licensee's employees and agents who are authorized to use the Software and Documentation that such information 
is confidential and may not to be disclosed to others. Licensee will not disclose the Software and Documentation to 
any third party, except as permitted by this Agreement or expressly in writing by Licensor. Licensee will limit access 
to the Software and Documentation to Licensee's employees and agents who need to know and are authorized to 
use the Software and Documentation as permitted by this Agreement. 

Section 6.0 PATENT, TRADEMARK, AND COPYRIGHT INDEMNIFICATION 

Licensor shall defend, indemnify, and hold Licensee, Licensee's officers, agents, employees, and customers 
harmless against all claims and liabilities, including costs, for infringement of any United States patent, trademark, or 
copyright by any Products delivered under this Order or, at Licensor's option and expense, Licensor shall obtain such 
licenses as are necessary to remove such infringement, provided that Licensor is reasonably notified of such claims 
and liabilities. 

Section 7.0 LIMITED WARRANTY 

7.1 The warranty period for the Software credentials will commence upon acceptance of this Agreement and will 
continue for 90 days unless Licensor has agreed to a different warranty period in a separate agreement that has 
been mutually executed by Licensor and Licensee, in which case, the warranty period will be as stated in such 
agreement. 

7.2 During the applicable warranty period, Licensor warrants that the unmodified Software, when used properly and 
in accordance with this Agreement, will be free from a reproducible defect that eliminates the functionality or 
successful operation of a feature critical to the primary functionality or successful operation of the system. 
Whether such defect occurs will be determined solely with reference to the Documentation. Licensor does not 
warrant that Licensee's use of the Software or Products will be uninterrupted or error-free or that the Software or 
the Products will meet Licensee's particular requirements. 

7.3 Before the expiration of the applicable warranty period, Licensee must notify Licensor in writing if the Software or 
Product does not conform to this warranty. Upon receipt of such notice, Licensor will investigate the warranty 
claim. If this investigation confirms a valid warranty claim, Licensor will (at its option and at no additional charge 
to Licensee) repair the defect, replace the defective Product with the same or equivalent Product or refund the 
prorated portion of the purchase price of the defective Software or individual Product for which it was provided. 
Such action will be the full extent of Licensor's liability and Licensee's sole remedy for a breach of this warranty. 
If the investigation indicates the warranty claim is not valid, then Licensor may invoice Licensee for responding to 
the claim on a time and materials basis using Licensor's current labor rates. 

7.4 LICENSOR DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THE 
TRANSACTION COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT IS A LICENSE AND NOT A SALE OF GOODS; 
THEREFORE, IT IS NOT COVERED BY THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE. 

Section 8.0 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

EXCEPT FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, LICENSOR'S TOTAL LIABILITY, WHETHER FOR BREACH OF 
AGREEMENT, WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY IN TORT or OTHERWISE, WILL BE LIMITED TO 
LICENSEE'S DIRECT DAMAGES RECOVERABLE UNDER LAW, BUT NOT TO EXCEED THE PRICE FOR THE 
SOFTWARE, THE PRODUCTS PROVIDED BY LICENSOR or THE SERVICES SPECIFICALLY RELATED TO THE 
SOFTWARE WITH RESPECT TO WHICH LOSSES OR DAMAGES ARE CLAIMED. ALTHOUGH THE PARTIES 
ACKNOWLEDGE THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES, THEY AGREE THAT LICENSOR WILL 
NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY COMMERCIAL LOSS OR INCONVENIENCE; LOSS OF USE, TIME, DATA, GOOD 
WILL, REVENUES, PROFITS OR SAVINGS; OR OTHER SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT or CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES ARISING FROM THIS AGREEMENT OR THE SALE OR USE OF ANY SOFTWARE OR PRODUCTS. 
This Limitation of Liability provision will survive the termination of this Agreement. Licensee must bring any action 
under this Agreement within one ( 1) year after the cause of action arises. 

Rev. 10/12 2 of8 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative ____ _ 



Section 9.0 INDEMNIFICATION 

Licensee agrees to protect, defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Licensor from and against any and all claims, damages, 
liabilities, losses, and expenses, arising out of any alleged or actual failure of Licensor to comply with any governmental law, 
statute, ordinance, administrative order, rule, or regulation as well as acts or omissions of Licensor, its employees, agents, or 
subcontractors to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

Section 10.0 TRANSFERS 

Licensee may not transfer Software license to any third party without Licensor's prior written consent, which consent 
may be withheld in Licensor's reasonable discretion and may be conditioned upon the transferee paying all applicable 
license fees and agreeing to be bound by this Agreement. 

Section 11.0 TERM AND TERMINATION 

Licensee's right to use the Software will begin when this Agreement is mutually executed by both parties and will 
continue in perpetuity unless Licensee breaches this Agreement, in which case it shall be terminated immediately 
without notice by Licensor. In addition to termination, Licensor shall be entitled to all available remedies at law or in 
equity (including immediate injunctive relief without proving damages and repossession of all Documentation unless 
Licensee is a federal agency of the United States Government). Licensee acknowledges that its breach of this 
Agreement will result in irreparable harm to Licensor for which monetary damages would be inadequate. Within thirty 
(30) days after termination of this Agreement, Licensee must certify in writing to Licensor that all copies of the 
Software and Documentation have been returned to Licensor or destroyed and are no longer in use by Licensee. 

Section 12.0 RELATIONSHIP 

This Agreement is entered to establish a supplier business relationship based on the terms outlined herein and is not 
intended to and does not constitute, create, give effect to or otherwise recognize a joint venture, partnership, or formal 
business entity of any kind, and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be limited to those expressly set forth herein. 
Each Party hereto is an independent Contractor and shall not, except as specifically authorized and provided by herein, act 
as an agent for the other Party for any purposes whatsoever. Neither Party nor third party shall have the authority to bind the 
other or make any commitment or incur any costs or expenses for or in the name of the other Party. 

Section 13.0 FORCE MAJEURE 

Neither party shall be held liable for failure to fulfill its obligations hereunder if such failure is due to flood, extreme weather, 
fire, or other natural calamity, acts of governmental agency or similar such causes beyond the control of such party. 

Section 14.0 NOTICES 

Notices required under this Agreement to be given by one party to the other must be in writing and either delivered in 
person or sent to the address shown below by certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid (or by a 
recognized courier service with an asset tracking system, such as Federal Express, UPS or DHL), and shall be 
effective upon receipt. Any change of address must be in writing to the other party. 

Licensor 
Attn: Licensing 
nFocus Solutions 
6225 N. 24th Street 
Suite GL 100 
Phoenix, AZ 85016 

Licensee 
Administrator name: 
Organization name: 
Address: 
Address 2: 
City, State Zip: 

Gregg Schuster 
Town of Colchester 
127 Norwich Avenue 

Colchester, CT 06415 

Section 15.0 UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT LICENSING PROVISIONS 

This product is comprised of commercial technical data and/or computer data bases and/or commercial computer 
software and/or commercial computer software documentation, as applicable, and was developed exclusively at 
private expense by nFocus Solutions, 6225 North 24th Street, Suite GL 100, Phoenix, Arizona, 85016. U.S. 
Government rights to use, modify, reproduce, release, perform, display or disclose these technical data and/or 
computer data bases and/or computer software and/or computer software documentation are subject to the limited 
rights restrictions of DFARS 252.227-7015(b)(2)(June 1995) and/or subject to the restrictions of DFARS 227.7202-
1(a)(June 1995) and DFARS 227.7202-3(a)June 1995), as applicable for U.S. Department of Defense procurements 
and the limited rights restrictions of FAR 52.227-14 (June 1987) and/or subject to the restricted rights provisions of 
FAR 52.227-14 (June 1987) and FAR 52.227-19 (June 1987), as applicable, and any applicable agency FAR 
Supplements, for non-Department Federal procurements. 

Rev. 10/12 3 of8 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative. ____ _ 



Section 16.0 LICENSOR SECURITY AND CONFIDENTIALITY STANDARDS 

16.1 Licensor maintains the highest level of confidentiality and security for all processes and systems. Licensor's 
employees undergo a national criminal background check. Written policies are published and enforced requiring that 
every effort must be made to ensure the confidentiality and security of client data. For example, all data transferred 
between the server and client browsers is encrypted. Licensor ensures that any printed material, the useful life of 
which has expired, is secured and destroyed at an off-site facility. 

16.2 All data is transferred using 128-bit encryption Secure Sockets Layer (SSL). 

16.3 Licensor does not sell, rent, exchange or license data that identifies the licensee and/or any individual associated with 
the licensee to any third party, except under extreme and unusual circumstances when Licensor may be required to 
disclose collected information in order to cooperate with law enforcement, protect or defend our rights or property or 
protect the interests of our clients .. 

Section 17.0 GENERAL 

17.1 COPYRIGHT NOTICES. The existence of a copyright notice on the Software will not be construed as an 
admission or presumption that public disclosure of the Software or any trade secrets associated with the 
Software has occurred. 

17.2 INSURANCE. In the event that Licensor, its employees, agents or subcontractors enter premises occupied by or 
under the control of Licensee in the performance of the Agreement, Licensee agrees that it will maintain public liability 
and property damage insurance in reasonable limits covering the obligations set forth herewith. 

17.3 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Licensee will comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including export 
laws and regulations of the United States. Licensee will not, without the prior authorization of Licensor and the 
appropriate governmental authority of the United States, in any form export or re-export, sell or resell, ship or 
reship or divert, through direct or indirect means, any item or technical data or direct or indirect products sold 
or otherwise furnished to any person within any territory for which the Unites States Government or any 
agency thereof, at the time of such action, requires an export license or other governmental approval. Violation 
of this provision shall be a material breach of this Agreement, permitting immediate termination by Licensor. 

17.4 WAIVERS. Failure or delay by either party to exercise any right or power under this Agreement will not 
operate as a waiver of such right or power. For a waiver of a right or power to be effective, it must be in writing 
signed by the waiving party. An effective waiver of a right or power shall not be construed as either a future or 
continuing waiver of that same right or power or the waiver of any other right or power. 

17.5 ASSIGNMENTS. Licensor may assign any of its rights or subcontract any of its obligations under this 
Agreement or encumber or sell any of its rights in any Software, without prior notice to or consent of Licensee. 

17.6 SUCCESSOR. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their 
successors and assigns. 

17.7 DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any dispute arising out of or related to this Agreement, including the breach, termination, 
or validity hereof, will be resolved by a sole arbitrator in accordance with the CPR Institute for Dispute Resolution 
Rules for Non-Administered Arbitration in effect. Arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. 
§§ 1-16, and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered by any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. The place of arbitration shall be Phoenix, Arizona. Either Party may apply to the arbitrator seeking injunctive 
relief until the arbitration award is rendered or the dispute is otherwise resolved. Either Party may, without waiving any 
remedy under this order, seek interim or provisional relief that is necessary to protect the rights or property of that 
Party, pending the arbitrator's determination of the merits of the dispute. 

17.8 GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the United States to the extent that they 
apply and otherwise by the laws of the State to which the Software or Products are shipped if Licensee is a 
sovereign government entity or the laws of the State of Arizona if Licensee is not a sovereign government 
entity. 

17.9 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY LICENSOR. Licensor warrants, represents, covenants, and agrees 
that it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the state of Texas, that it has all 
necessary power and has received all necessary approvals to execute and deliver the Agreement, and the individual 
executing the Agreement on behalf of Licensor has been duly authorized to act for and bind Licensor. 

17.10 PRECEDENCE. Any conflict between the terms and conditions of this agreement and those appearing in related 
documentation, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail. Additional provisions implemented by legal 
documentation, not in conflict with this Agreement, will apply. 

Rev. 10/12 4of8 Initials of Ucensee's 
Authorized Representative ____ _ 



17.11 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or otherwise unenforceable, that provision will be severed and the remainder of this Agreement will 
remain in full force and effect. 

17.12 SURVIVAL. All rights, obligations and duties which by their nature extend beyond the expiration, termination 
or cancellation of this Agreement shall remain in effect beyond any expiration, termination or cancellation, 
including and without limitation, protection of Proprietary Information, Patents, Trademarks, and Intellectual 
Property, Warranty, access rights to Information pertaining to this Agreement and Indemnification. 

17.13 ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties 
regarding Licensee's use of the Software and may be altered, amended or modified only by a written 
instrument signed by an authorized representative of each party, except that Licensor may modify this 
Agreement as necessary to comply with applicable laws and regulations. This Agreement will be fairly 
interpreted in accordance with its terms and conditions and not for or against either party. 

In witness whereof, the parties have caused duly authorized representatives to execute this 

End User License Agreement effective beginning the 15th day of May, 2013. 

Licensee: Town of Colchester 
127 Norwich Avenue 

Colchester. CT 06415 

Signed By: ______________ _ 
Name:Greqg Schuster 
Title: First Selectman 

Date: _______________________ ___ 

Licensor: SWMG Productions, Inc. dba nFocus Solutions 
6225 N. 24th Street 
Suite GL 100 
Phoenix, AZ 85016 

Signed 

Presirle11l 

Date: April 30, 2013 

Rev. 10/12 5of8 



Maintenance and Support Agreement (MSA) 

Software License Agreement for Trax® Software Products 
Annex A: Maintenance and Support Agreement 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 

1.1 "SUPPORT CALL (LEVEL 1 )" means a reported problem in the Software which causes the system to be down 
with no obvious work-around. 

1.2 "SUPPORT CALL (LEVEL 2)" means a reported problem in the Software, not considered as a Level 1 support 
problem, as defined in 1.1 above, which causes serious disruption of a function, however the system is still 
operational. 

1.3 "SUPPORT CALL (LEVEL 3)" means a reported problem in the Software which is not affecting the Software's 
ability to perform substantially in accordance with the user documentation. 

1.4 "RESPONSE TIME" means the elapsed time between the receipt of a service call and the time when Licensor 
begins the Maintenance and Support, including a verbal or written confirmation to the Licensee thereof. 

1.5 "RESPONSE CENTER AND CONTACT PROCEDURE" shall mean: 

Address 
6225 N. 241

h Street 
Suite GL 100 
Phoenix, AZ 85016 
www.nfocus.com 

Contact Information 
Tel: (602) 954-9557 
E-mail: support@nfocus.com 
Fax: (602) 954-9557 attn: Client Support 

2.0 TERM AND TERMINATION 

Standard Hours of Operation 
Monday- Friday 
(excluding public holidays) 
7:00am-6:00pm (Phoenix, AZ time) 

Licensor's provision of Maintenance and Support to Licensee will commence on date payment is received by 
Licensor and will continue for a term of one (1) year. Maintenance and Support will renew when payment is received 
by Licensor on or before the annual renewal date. Licensee's failure to pay the then-current renewal rate on or before 
the renewal date will result in the following: 

1) Termination of Licensee's Maintenance and Support Agreement with Licensor; and 
2) Termination of hosting for Licensee's data. Licensee will be provided a then-current copy of Licensee's 

data in Microsoft Access format within five (5) business days of termination. 

3.0 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

Maintenance and Support will be provided only with respect to versions of the Software that are being supported by 
Licensor, according to the following schedule: (a) a Major Update will be supported for two (2) years after the 
commercial release of the next Major Update, provided always that Licensee makes use of the last Minor Update and 
Update of the first mentioned Major Update and (b) a Minor Update will be supported for one (1) year after the 
commercial release of the next Minor Update, provided always that Licensee makes use of the last Update of the 
related Major Update. 

3.1 BASIC MAINTENANCE. Basic Maintenance means that Licensor will provide support during Licensor's 
standard hours of operation: (i) Major Updates and Minor Updates, when and if available, and related on-line 
Documentation, and (ii) telephone assistance with respect to the Software, including (a) clarification of 
functions and features of the Software; (b) clarification of the Documentation; (c) guidance in the operation of 
the Software; and (d) error verification, analysis and correction to the extent possible by telephone and/or 
electronic communication methods. 

3.2 LEVELS OF MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT. Maintenance and Support is available at the following 
Response Times: (i) Support Call (Level 1 ): response time two (2) hours, patch or work-around next day, fixed 
or documented in next major product release; (ii) Support Call (Level 2): response time six (6) hours, patch or 
work-around within five (5) days, fixed or documented in next major product release; (iii) Support Call (Level 
3): one (1) business day, problem documented and input for consideration in next major product release. 

Rev. 10/12 6of8 Initials of Ucensee's 
Authorized Representative ___ _ 



Licensor agrees to use its best efforts, at a level consistent with services providing a similar level of service in the 
information technology industry, in the performance of the services called for hereunder. 

3.3 ON-SITE ASSISTANCE. At Licensor's discretion, Licensor may deem it necessary to provide Maintenance 
and Support at the Licensee's site. In such event, Licensee will reimburse Licensor for all reasonable and 
necessary related travel expenses and reasonable and necessary costs for board and lodging. 

3.4 CAUSES WHICH ARE NOT ATTRIBUTABLE TO LICENSOR. Maintenance and Support will not include 
services requested as a result of or with respect to, causes which are not attributable to Licensor. These 
services will be billed to Licensee at Licensor's then-current rates. Causes which are not attributable to 
Licensor include, but are not limited to: 

3.4.1 modification, alteration or addition or attempted modification, alteration or addition of the Software 
undertaken by persons other than Licensor or Licensor's authorized representatives; 

3.4.2 software programs made by Licensee or other parties which affect the normal operation of the Software. 

4.0 RESPONSIBILITIES OF LICENSEE 

Licensor's provision of Maintenance and Support to Licensee is subject to the following: 

4.1 Licensee shall provide Licensor with access to Licensee's personnel and equipment during normal business 
hours as required to maintain and support the software and approved equipment. 

4.2 Licensee shall provide supervision, control and management of the use of the Software. In addition, Licensee 
shall implement procedures for the protection of information and backup in the event of errors or malfunction of 
the Software or Equipment. 

4.3 Licensee shall document and promptly report all errors or malfunctions of the Software to Licensor. Licensee 
shall take all steps necessary to carry out procedures for the rectification of errors or malfunctions within a 
reasonable time after such procedures have been received from Licensor. 

4.4 Licensee shall properly train its personnel in the use and application of the Software and the Equipment on 
which it is used. 

4.5 Licensee is required to provide written notice of its intent not to renew the Maintenance and Support 
Agreement. Licensee must provide such notice at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the then
current term. 

5.0 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT FEE 

The Maintenance and Support Fee for each calendar year will be as published and communicated to the client prior 
to the purchase/renewal date. The Maintenance and Support Fee is due and payable in full and in advance of 
delivery of the Software and subsequent renewal dates (refer to Section 2.0 of this Agreement). Each calendar year, 
the Maintenance and Support Fee may be modified by Licensor. If Licensee once elects to discontinue Maintenance 
and Support for any reason, Licensee may renew only upon payment of the annual Maintenance and Support Fee for 
the coming year, applicable administrative fees, and 100 percent of Maintenance and Support Fees that would have 
been paid had Licensee not terminated Maintenance and Support, which entitles Licensee to all features, services, 
and benefits which have been released during the same period. 

6.0 ASSIGNMENTS. 

Licensor may assign any of its rights or subordinate any of its obligations under this Agreement or encumber or sell 
any of its rights in any Software, without prior notice to or consent of Licensee. 

Rev. 10/12 7of8 Initials of Ucensee's 
Authorized Representative, ____ _ 



In witness whereof, the parties have caused duly authorized representatives to execute this 

Maintenance and Support Agreement effective beginning the 15th day of May, 2013. 

Licensee: Colchester Youth & Services 
127 Norwick Ave. 
Suite 205 
Colchester. CT 06415 

Signed By: --------------
Name: Greff Schuster 
Title: First Selectman 

Date: ________________ ___ 

Signed 

SWMG Productions, Inc. dba nFocus Solutions 
6225 N. 24th Street 
Suite GL 100 
Phoenix, AZ 85016 

Presmer~l 

Date: April 30. 2013 

Rev. 10/12 8of8 



Addendum A- Understanding of Purchase and Implementation Process 
(Required for new clients only) 

To ensure that you have been made aware of all products and services Licensor provides, please check each 
item. If you have a question regarding any items on or missing from your invoice, please notify your account 
representative immediately. This file will be stored with your agreement for future reference. Your initials on this 
page indicate that the authorized purchasing /deployment staff members have reviewed the content of this 
page. 

Licensee understands/believes/agrees/confirms that: 
o All appropriate staff/board members have attended a product presentation. 

o Licensee has been made aware that StaffTrax™, VolunteerTrax®, Case Management, MoneyTrax®, 

Online Registration, and TeamTrax® are sold separately and may require additional paperwork. 

o Data import services (standard/custom) are available at additional cost. 

o Custom data import prices vary depending on the scope of work. 

o A renewable subscription service fee is due annually for each licensed site. 

o The subscription renewal(s) will be due 1 year from date of purchase. 

o Licensee is responsible for implementing the use of the services provided by Licensor. Licensee is 

responsible for the annual subscription services renewal fee from the date of purchase regardless of 

the services/benefits used. Licensee understands any process or service requested by licensee, that is 

not included on the original invoice, must be billed and purchased separately. 

o Licensor is not responsible for the content of online data stored within web-based account(s). 

Account Setup I Data Import: 
o An End-User License Agreement (EULA) must be on-file to receive service. 

o An Online Registration Agreement (ORA) must be on-file when MoneyTrax is purchased to receive service. 

o Licensee shall complete and return all applicable account setup forms for each licensed site. 

o Licensee must mark "Yes" on the account setup form if the site plans to use the Advanced Education 

feature. 

o School and Grade information shall NOT be imported if licensee chooses the Advanced Education 

feature. 

o Licensee must populate a template provided by Licensor for the standard data import, OR 

o Licensee must provide a copy of our data in the approved format according to our invoice for custom data 

import. 

D Additional fees may be charged to change/update data import issues. Scanning Technology Requirements 

Vista/7 Operating System with 1 GB RAM 
Training and Data Entry: 
o Licensee understands training is required prior to account access. 

o Licensee will not enter data in old systems after data has been sent 

for import. 

o Licensee will use the web-based account after the account is setup. 

Rev. 10/12 Addendum 1 of 1 

and 1 GHz Processor -or-
XP Operating System with 512MB RAM and 

1 GHz Processor 

Available COM port or COM-to-USB adapter for 
automated ID scanning 

Web Browsing Requirements 

Microsoft Internet Explorer 8 or higher and 
Internet connection 

Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative'-----





nfocus 
bridging the gapTM 

Online Registration Agreement 
(USA) 

Service Agreement for Accepting Credit Card 
Payments in Trax® Software Products 

6225 N. 24th Street 
Suite GL 100 

Phoenix, AZ 85016 
866.954.9557 (voice) 

602.954.9559 (fax) 
www.nfocus.com 

This document may contain information deemed proprietary by nFocus Solutions; therefore, it shall not 
be disclosed to sources other than the party for whom it is intended and for no purpose other than the 
review and evaluation of its contents. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution of this 
document in whole or in part without the express written consent of nFocus Solutions is prohibited. 



Table of Contents 

1.0 Contract Services .................................................................................................. 1 
1 .1 Services ........................................................................................................ 1 
1.2 Non-Exclusive ............................................................................................... 1 

2.0 Term of Agreement ............................................................................................... 2 
2.1 Term ............................................................................................................. 2 
2.2 Survival ......................................................................................................... 2 

3.0 Independent Contractor ........................................................................................ 2 
4.0 Services to be Performed by nFocus Solutions .................................................... 2 

4.1 Reporting ...................................................................................................... 2 
4.2 Automated KidTrax® ..................................................................................... 3 

5.0 Fee and Payment Schedule .................................................................................. 3 
5.1 FeeSchedule ................................................................................................ 3 
5.2 Payment Schedule ........................................................................................ 3 

6.0 Ownership of Program Materials ........................................................................... 3 
6.1 Ownership ..................................................................................................... 3 
6.2 Ownership lnterest ........................................................................................ 3 
6.3 Warrant ......................................................................................................... 4 

7.0 Protection of Proprietary Materials ........................................................................ 4 
7.1 Protection ...................................................................................................... 4 
7.2 Trade Secret ................................................................................................. 4 

8.0 Warranties ............................................................................................................. 4 
9.0 lndemnification ...................................................................................................... 4 

9.1 lndemnification .............................................................................................. 4 
9.2 Originality ...................................................................................................... 5 
9.3 Program Materials ......................................................................................... 5 
9.4 Confidentiality ............................................................................................... 5 

9.4.1 nFocus Solutions Confidentiality ........................................................ 5 
9.4.2 Licensee Confidentiality ..................................................................... 5 

10.0 General ........................................................................................................... 6 
10.1 Entire Agreement .......................................................................................... 6 
10.2 Governing Law .............................................................................................. 6 
10.3 Force Majeure ............................................................................................... 6 
1 0.4 Notices .......................................................................................................... 6 
10.5 Contact lnformation ....................................................................................... 6 
10.6 Site information ............................................................................................. 6 

11 .0 Online Registration Feature ................................................................................... 7 

Addendum A - Site Set-up Information for Online Registration Services .................................... A 1 

Rev: 05/09/2012 



Service Agreement 

Service Agreement for Accepting Credit Card Payments in Trax® Software Products 

This Service Agreement ("Agreement") will be effective upon signature between: 

Town of Colchester (hereinafter "Licensee"), having a principal Place of Business at (address) 127 
Norwich Ave. Colchester. CT 06415. 

and 

nFocus Solutions, having a principal place of business at 6225 N. 24th Street, Suite GL 100, Phoenix, 
AZ 85016. 

Whereas, Licensee desires that nFocus Solutions provides certain web hosting services to host and 
manage an online registration and Point-of-Sale (POS) feature (such software, including all know
how, documentation, Trade Secrets, copyrights, and patentable inventions being hereinafter referred 
to, collectively, as the "Program Materials"); and 

Whereas, both Licensee and nFocus Solutions desire to set forth in writing the terms and conditions 
of their dealings, including rights as to the Program Materials; now therefore, in consideration of the 
premises hereof and the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sum sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 

1.0 CONTRACT SERVICES 

1.1 Services 

On the terms and conditions set forth herein, Licensee hereby engages nFocus Solutions to provide 
hosting services for the online registration and POS feature, as well as to provide for and manage all 
online transactions undertaken by Licensee staff, members, clients, donors, and others associated 
with Licensee. nFocus Solutions agrees to use its best efforts, at a level consistent with services 
providing a similar level of service in the information technology industry, in the performance of the 
services called for hereunder. 

1.2 Non-Exclusive 

Nothing herein shall be deemed to preclude Licensee from retaining the services of other persons or 
entities undertaking the same or similar services as those undertaken by nFocus Solutions. 

Rev: 05/09/2012 1 of7 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative. __ _ 



2.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT 

2.1 Term 

This Agreement will become effective upon signature and will continue in effect through the renewal 
of the organizations Annual Maintenance and Support Agreement. This Agreement will be renewed 
at the end of the initial term and any subsequent term for a renewal term of one (1) year unless 
Licensee has provided nFocus Solutions with a written notice of its intention not to renew at least 
ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the then-current term. Termination of the Online Registration 
Agreement will not affect the End User License Agreement of the Software. 

2.2 Survival 

In the event of any termination of this Agreement, Sections 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10 hereof shall survive and 
continue in effect. 

3.0 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Intention of Parties 

nFocus Solutions agrees that it shall act as an independent contractor and shall not be considered or 
deemed to be an agent, employee, joint venture, or partner of Licensee. nFocus Solutions shall have 
no authority to contract for or bind Licensee in any manner and shall not represent itself as an agent 
of Licensee or as otherwise authorized to act for or on behalf of Licensee. Nothing in the Agreement 
shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of employer and 
employee between Licensee and either nFocus Solutions or any employee or agent of nFocus 
Solutions. nFocus Solutions, or any employee or agent of nFocus Solutions, shall have no status as 
employee or any right to any benefits that Licensee grants to its employees. 

4.0 SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY nFOCUS SOLUTIONS 

4.1 Reporting 

nFocus Solutions will provide Licensee a monthly statement indicating, at a minimum: 

a) Type of transaction; 
b) Amount of transaction; 
c) Fees per transaction; 
d) Number of transactions; 
e) Net amount due to Licensee. 

In addition, Licensee will have access to reporting tools as furnished within the KidTrax® Membership 
Management System. 

Rev: 05/09/2012 2of7 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative __ _ 



4.2 Automated KidTrax Transactions 

nFocus Solutions shall enable the onsite POS feature (in addition to online POS transaction 
capabilities) if the Licensee so indicates on Addendum A 

5.0 FEE AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

5.1 Fee Schedule 

Description Amount 

Transaction Fee ( 1 00 or fewer transactions/month) $1.50 
Credit Card Fee ( 100 or fewer transactions/month) 5% 
Transaction Fee (101- 999 transactions/month) $1.25 
Credit Card Fee (101 - 999 transactions/month) 5% 
Transaction Fee (1000 or more transactions/month) $1.00 
Credit Card Fee ( 1 000 or more transactions/month) 5% 
Chargeback Fee (per charge back, non-refundable) $25.00 

5.2 Payment Schedule 

nFocus Solutions will disburse funds via a company check on or about the 20th of each month 
following the month in which funds are received. Funds associated with chargeback transactions will 
be delayed and/or deducted until the chargeback has been resolved and funds have been credited to 
the account. Example: January funds, less fees and chargeback dollars, will be paid on or about 
February 20. 

Payments will include all funds remitted to Licensee by their donors, members, family members, staff, 
etc., less applicable fees listed in Section 5.1 of this document. 

6.0 OWNERSHIP OF PROGRAM MATERIALS 

6.1 Ownership 

Licensee agrees that all Program Materials, reports and other data or materials generated or 
developed by nFocus Solutions under this agreement or furnished by nFocus Solutions to Licensee 
shall be and remain the property of nFocus Solutions. Licensee specifically agrees that all 
copyrightable material generated or developed in support of the services provided under this 
agreement shall not be considered works made for hire and that all such material shall, upon 
creation, be owned exclusively by nFocus Solutions. 

6.2 Ownership Interest 

If and to the extent Licensee may, under applicable law, be entitled to claim any ownership interest in 
the Program Materials, reports and other data and materials generated or developed by nFocus 
Solutions in support of the services provided under this agreement, Licensee hereby transfers, 
grants, conveys, assigns and relinquishes exclusively to nFocus Solutions all of Licensee's right, title 
and interest in and to such materials, under patent, copyright, Trade Secret, and trademark law, in 
perpetuity or for the longest period otherwise permitted by law. 

Rev: 05/09/2012 3 of7 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative __ _ 



6.3 Warrant 

Licensee hereby represents and warrants that it has full right and authority to perform obligations and 
grant the rights and licenses herein granted and that it has neither assigned nor otherwise entered 
into an agreement by which it purports to assign or transfer any right, title, or interest to any 
technology or intellectual property right that would conflict with its obligations under this agreement. 

7.0 PROTECTION OF PROPRIETARY MATERIALS 

7.1 Protection 

From the date of execution hereof and for as long as the information or data remain Trade Secrets, 
Licensee shall not use, disclose, or permit any person to obtain any Trade Secrets of nFocus 
Solutions, including any materials provided or generated hereunder (whether or not the Trade 
Secrets are in written or tangible form), except as specifically authorized by nFocus Solutions. 

7.2 Trade Secret 

As used herein, 'Trade Secret" shall mean a whole or any portion or phase of scientific or technical 
information, design, process, procedure, formula, or improvement relating to the development, 
design, construction, and operation of computer applications and systems that are valuable and not 
generally known outside Licensee or nFocus Solutions. The parties mutually acknowledge that 
'Trade Secret" is not intended to include works or ideas in the public domain. 

8.0 WARRANTIES 

Return: nFocus Solutions represents and warrants that it is under no obligation or restriction nor will 
it assume any such obligation or restriction which would in any way interfere with, be inconsistent 
with, or present a conflict of interest concerning the services to be provided by nFocus Solutions 
under this agreement. 

9.0 INDEMNIFICATION 

9.1 Indemnification 

Licensee agrees to protect, defend, hold harmless, and indemnify nFocus Solutions from and against 
any and all claims, damages, liabilities, losses, and expenses, arising out of any alleged or actual: 

a) Failure of nFocus Solutions to comply with any governmental law, statute, ordinance, 
administrative order, rule, or regulation. 

b) Acts or omissions of nFocus Solutions, its employees, agents, or subcontractors to the 
maximum extent permitted by law. 

Rev: 05/09/2012 4of7 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative. __ _ 



9.2 Originality 

nFocus Solutions represents and warrants the originality of the Program Materials prepared for or 
submitted to Licensee under this agreement and that no portion of such Program Materials, or their 
use or distribution, violates any copyright or similar right of any third party. 

9.3 Program Materials 

nFocus Solutions represents and warrants that all Program Materials, 

a) have been or shall be prepared by nFocus Solutions with professional diligence and skill, 
b) will function on the machines and with networks and operating systems for which they are 

designed, and 
c) will conform to the specifications and requirements agreed to by the parties hereunder. 

9.4 Confidentiality 

9.4.1 nFocus Solutions Confidentiality 

nFocus Solutions shall maintain, in strict confidence, and shall use and disclose only as 
authorized by Licensee all information of a competitively sensitive or proprietary nature which it 
receives in connection with the work performed for Licensee. nFocus Solutions shall require its 
personnel to do likewise. These restrictions shall not be construed to apply to: 

a) information generally available to the public; 
b) information released by Licensee generally without restrictions; 
c) information independently developed or acquired by nFocus Solutions or its 

personnel without reliance in any way on other protected information of Licensee; or 
d) information approved for the use and disclosure of nFocus Solutions or its personnel 

without restrictions. 

9.4.2 Licensee Confidentiality 

Licensee shall maintain, in strict confidence and shall use and disclose only as authorized by 
nFocus Solutions, all information of a competitively sensitive or proprietary nature which it 
receives in connection with the work performed by nFocus Solutions. Licensee shall require its 
personnel to do likewise. These restrictions shall not be construed to apply to: 

a) information generally available to the public; 
b) information released by nFocus Solutions generally without restrictions; 
c) information independently developed or acquired by Licensee or its personnel without 

reliance in any way on other protected information of nFocus Solutions; or 
d) information approved for the use and disclosure of Licensee or its personnel without 

restrictions. 

Rev: 05/09/2012 5of7 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative __ _ 



10.0 GENERAL 

1 0.1 Entire Agreement 

This agreement is intended, by the parties hereto, to be the final expression of their agreement and it 
constitutes the full and entire understanding between the parties with respect to the subject hereof, 
notwithstanding any representations, statements, or agreements to the contrary heretofore made. 

This agreement may be amended only in writing, signed by the parties to this agreement. 

1 0.2 Governing Law 

This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the United States to the extent that they apply 
and otherwise by the laws of the State to which the Software or Products are shipped if 
Licensee is a sovereign government entity or the laws of the State of Arizona if Licensee is not a 
sovereign government entity. 

1 0.3 Force Majeure 

Neither party shall be held liable for failure to fulfill its obligations hereunder if such failure is due to 
flood, extreme weather, fire, or other natural calamity, acts of governmental agency or similar such 
causes beyond the control of such party. 

1 0.4 Notices 

Any notices to be given hereunder by either party may be effected either by personal delivery in 
writing or by mail or by electronic mail. 

1 0.5 Contact Information 

These individuals will receive the Online Registration and web site set-up, entry code and 
documentation. 

Executive Director 
Name: Gregg Schuster 
e-mail: townhall@colchesterct.gov 
Phone: (860) 537-7200 

10.6 Site Information 

Information T echnology/Webmaster Contact 
Name: 
e-mail: 
Phone: 

The Licensee will provide all necessary information for each POS site on Addendum A 

Rev: 05/09/2012 6of7 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative __ _ 



11.0 ONLINE REGISTRATION FEATURE 

Licensee acknowledges that nFocus Solutions has offered the MoneyTrax® Online Registration 
Feature. 
Please check one box below 

D Licensee accepts the MoneyTrax® Online Registration feature. Completion of Addendum A 
is required. 

D Licensee declines the MoneyTrax® Online Registration feature. Licensee acknowledges 
and understands that the Online Registration feature may be activated at a future date at the 
Licensee's written request under the following conditions: 

a) The Licensee has a valid organization website address, and 
b) The Licensee's subscription to the Annual Maintenance and Support Agreement is in 

good standing for all TraxSolutions® applications, and 
c) The Licensee agrees to and signs the Service Agreement for TraxSolutions® Online 

Registration and Point-of-Sale Features, and 
d) The Licensee pays the then-current rate to activate the Online Registration and 

Point-of-Sale features. 

This agreement is enforceable only by Licensee and nFocus Solutions. The terms of this agreement 
are not a contract or assurance regarding compensation, continued employment or benefit of any 
kind to any of nFocus Solutions' personnel assigned to Licensee's work. 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be fully executed on the day 
and the year of the Licensee's signature below. 

Accepted and agreed to: 

Name: Gregg Schuster Date 
Title: First Selectman 
Organization: Town of Colchester 

nFocus Solutions 

Siglli!d 

Presidert1 

Date: April 30, 2013 

Rev: 05/09/2012 7of7 



Addendum A- Site Set-up Information for Online Registration Services 

Site 1 Information Site 5 Information 
Site Name: Site Name: 
Address: Address: 
Address 2: Address 2: 
City, State Zip City, State Zip 
URL: URL: 
Contact Name: Contact Name: 
Phone: Phone: 
e-mail: e-mail: 
Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNa Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNa 
Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNa Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNa 

Site 2 Information Site 6 Information 
Site Name: Site Name: 
Address: Address: 
Address 2: Address 2: 
City, State Zip City, State Zip 
URL: URL: 
Contact Name: Contact Name: 
Phone: Phone: 
e-mail: e-mail: 
Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNa Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNa 
Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNa Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNa 

Site 31nformation Site 7 Information 
Site Name: Site Name: 
Address: Address: 
Address 2: Address 2: 
City, State Zip City, State Zip 
URL: URL: 
Contact Name: Contact Name: 
Phone: Phone: 
e-mail: e-mail: 
Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNa Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNa 
Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNa Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNa 

Site 4 Information Site 8 Information 
Site Name: Site Name: 
Address: Address: 
Address 2: Address 2: 
City, State Zip City, State Zip 
URL: URL: 
Contact Name: Contact Name: 
Phone: Phone: 
e-mail: e-mail: 
Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNa Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNa 
Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNa Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNa 

Rev: 05/09/2012 Addendum A- Page 1 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative 



Addendum A- Site Set-up Information for Online Registration Services (continued) 

Site# Information Site Name: 
Site Name: Address: 
Address: Address 2: 
Address 2: City, State Zip 
City, State Zip URL: 
URL: Contact Name: 
Contact Name: Phone: 
Phone: e-mail: 
e-mail: Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNo 
Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNo Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNo 
Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNo 

Site# Information 
Site# Information Site Name: 
Site Name: Address: 
Address: Address 2: 
Address 2: City, State Zip 
City, State Zip URL: 
URL: Contact Name: 
Contact Name: Phone: 
Phone: e-mail: 
e-mail: Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNo 
Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNo Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNo 
Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNo 

Site# Information 
Site# Information Site Name: 
Site Name: Address: 
Address: Address 2: 
Address 2: City, State Zip 
City, State Zip URL: 
URL: Contact Name: 
Contact Name: Phone: 
Phone: e-mail: 
e-mail: Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNo 
Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNo Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNo 
Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNo 

Site# Information 
Site# Information Site Name: 
Site Name: Address: 
Address: Address 2: 
Address 2: City, State Zip 
City, State Zip URL: 
URL: Contact Name: 
Contact Name: Phone: 
Phone: e-mail: 
e-mail: Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNo 
Enable KidTrax POS feature? DYes DNo Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNo 
Enable online registration & POS? DYes DNo 

Site# Information 

Rev: 05/09/2012 Addendum A - Page 2 Initials of Licensee's 
Authorized Representative 





Town of Colchester Interoffice Memorandum 

To: Gregg Schuster, First Selectman 
From: James Paggioli, L.S., Director of Public Works 
CC: 
Date: April12, 2013 
Re: Authorization to Enter into License Agreement- Commuter Parking Area 300 Old Hartford Road 

I have reviewed the proposed License Agreement between the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation and the Town 
of Colchester Agreement No. 1.03-01(13). 

In general, the document is a continuation of the existing lease for the Commuter Parking Lot adjacent to the Public Works 
Garage at 300 Old Hartford Road. The existing lot is presently maintained by the Town of Colchester and the new License 
Agreement does not propose any conditions for maintenance that the Town does not already provide for. Other conditions are 
standard items that the Town already includes within language on any and all projects that the Town receives State and Federal 
funds for. 

Under the terms for Insurance in Appendix "A" determination should be made to either submit the documentation of self 
insurance or if the location would fail under the general liability policy of the Town. In either case the License accepts each for 
Indemnification. 

Recommended Motion: 

That the Board of Selectmen approve License Agreement No. 1.03-01 (13) between the State of Connecticut and the Town of 
Colchester for the continued use of a commuter parking area adjacent to 300 Old Hartford Road, and authorize the First 
Selectman to sign all necessary documents. 





LICENSE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AND THE 
TOWN OF COLCHESTER 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, concluded at Newington, Connecticut, this day 
of 2013, by and between the State of Connecticut, Department of Transportation, James 
Redeker, Commissioner, acting herein by Thomas J. Maziarz, Bureau Chief, Bureau of Policy 
and Planning, duly authorized, hereinafter referred to as the "Licensee" or "State," and the Town 
of Colchester, located at 127 Norwich Road, Colchester, Connecticut 06415, acting herein by 
Gregg Schuster, First Selectman, duly authorized, hereinafter referred to as the "Licensor" 
and/or the "Second Party'', collectively the "Parties". 

WITNESSETH, THAT: 

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the Licensee that certain scheduled motor 
carrier service is required for the future growth and development of the State of Connecticut; and 

WHEREAS, the Licensor has agreed to permit the Licensee the continued use of 
the Colchester Town Highway Garage, located at 300 Old Hartford Road in Colchester, as a 
commuter parking area from which established motor carrier service can be conducted; and 

WHEREAS, the_Licensee, pursuant to Section 13b-36(b) of the General Statutes 
cif Connecticut, as revised, is authorized to acquire this License. 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW YE THAT THE PARTIES HERETO MUTUALLY 
AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

The Licensor hereby grants to the Licensee, and the Licensee hereby accepts 
from the Licensor, a License to use, as a commuter parking area during the time that the 
scheduled motor carrier service is in operation, the specific location hereinafter described, 
subject to all the hereinafter specified conditions and covenants. 

1. Lot Usage Rights. The Licensee is hereby permitted to use, including ingress 
thereto and egress therefrom, 57 parking spaces at the Colchester Town Highway Garage, 
located at 300 Old Hartford Road in Colchester, and the various drives, aisles and other areas 
designated by the Licensor as passways, which is hereinafter referred to as the "Commuter 
Parking Area". 

2. Term of License Agreement. The term of this License Agreement shall be for 
a ten (10) year period of time commencing July 1, 2012, and ending June 30, 2022, unless the 
same has been previously terminated as provided herein or modified by a written extension of 
this License Agreement. 

1 



Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

3. Payment to the Licensor. By mutual agreement of the Parties, no payment 
shall be made by the Licensee to the Licensor for the use of the aforementioned Commuter 
Parking Area during the term of this License Agreement. 

4. Nonexclusivity. The Licensee's use of the Commuter Parking Area shall be 
nonexclusive. 

5. Signage. The Licensee may erect and/or install signs around and within the 
Commuter Parking Area at no cost to the Licensor. 

6. Lot Maintenance. The Licensor shall at all times during the term of this License 
Agreement maintain the Commuter Parking Area in continuously good repair in a manner that is 
compatible at all times with the proper and safe operation of the Commuter Parking Area. It is 
understood and agreed by the Licensor that the maintenance to be provided shall include but not 
necessarily be limited to: 

a. The preservation of the wearing surfaces, intact and suitable for 
vehicular traffic; 

b. The establishment and the re-establishment as necessary, of 
adequate and visible line striping; 

c. The cleaning and repair of appropriate storm drainage facilities; 

d. The operation of existing illumination and the provision of the 
electrical energy involved therewith. Illumination of the lot shall be 
provided to coincide with the normal hours of bus and commuter 
services in the Commuter Parking Area; 

e. The prompt and adequate control of ice and snow and the control of 
dust and residue remaining after the use of ice and snow control 
materials. Whenever possible and practical, snow removal shall 
begin as soon as the snowfall amount reaches two inches (2") and 
the Licensor will use its best efforts to maintain the lot clear of snow 
for the duration of each snowstorm; and 

f. The maintenance shall be such as to keep the Commuter Parking 
Area in a reasonably clean condition and no waste shall be allowed 
to accumulate thereon. 

7. Pavement Markings. The Licensor shall provide adequate and suitable 
pavement markings to direct proper traffic flow to and from the Commuter Parking Area. 

8. Termination. Either party may terminate this License Agreement at any time 
for any reason whatsoever upon ninety (90) days written notice to the other party. 

Additionally, the Licensee reserves the right to terminate, suspend, abandon or 

2 



Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

postpone this License Agreement, with cause, upon delivery to the Licensor of written notice of 
termination or suspension, citing any one of the following reasons: 

(a) The Commuter Parking Area has not been maintained in accordance 
with Article 6 of this License Agreement. 

(b) The Licensor has, for any reason, failed to provide the required 
number of parking spaces cited in Article 1 of this License 
Agreement. 

9. Existing Lot Condition. The Licensee has examined the Commuter Parking 
Area (including the various drives, aisles, and areas designated as passways) and accepts 
same. 

10. Responsibility Upon Termination. The Licensee shall not be obligated to 
construct or reconstruct the Commuter Parking Area in any manner. However, upon expiration 
or termination of the License Agreement, the Licensee shall remove all signs erected or installed 
by the Licensee and shall repair any damage to the Commuter Parking Area caused as a direct 
result of the removal of said signs. 

11. Title in Commuter Parking Area. No legal title or leasehold interest in the 
Commuter Parking Area shall be deemed or construed as having been created or vested in the 
Licensee by the grant of this License. 

12. Obligation of the Licensee. The Licensee shall incur no obligation under this 
License Agreement until the same has been approved as-to-form by the Attorney General, State 
of Connecticut. 

13. Notice. It is mutually understood and agreed by the Parties hereto that any 
"Official Notice" from one such party to the other party (or parties), in order for such Notices to be 
binding thereon, shall: 

(a)- Be in writing (hardcopy) addressed to: 

(i) When the Licensee is to receive such Notice -

Commissioner of Transportation 
Connecticut Department of Transportation 
P.O. Box 317546 
Newington, CT 06131-7546; 

(ii) When the Licensor is to receive such Notice-

the person(s) acting herein as signatory or successors for the 
Licensor receiving such Notice; 

(b) - Be delivered in person with acknowledgement of receipt or mailed by 

3 



Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

the United States Postal Service - "Certified Mail" to the address recited herein as being the 
address of the party(ies) to receive such Notice; and 

(c) - Contain complete and accurate information in sufficient detail to 
properly and adequately identify and describe the subject matter thereof. 

The term "Official Notice" as used herein, shall be construed to include, but not be 
limited to, any request, demand, authorization, direction, waiver, and/or consent of the party(ies), 
as well as any document(s), including any electronically-produced versions, provided, permitted, 
or required for the making or ratification of any change, revision, addition to or deletion from the 
document, contract, or agreement in which this "Official Notice" specification is contained. 

Further, it is understood and agreed that nothing hereinabove contained shall 
preclude the Parties hereto from subsequently agreeing, in writing, to designate alternate 
persons (by name, title, and affiliation) to which such Notice(s) is (are) to be addressed; alternate 
means of conveying such Notice(s) to the particular party(ies); and/or alternate locations to 
which the delivery of such Notice(s) is (are) to be made, provided such subsequent 
agreement(s) is (are) concluded pursuant to the adherence to this specification. 

14. Administrative and Statutory Requirements. The Licensor hereby agrees to 
comply with the provisions contained in Appendix "A" entitled "Administrative and Statutory 
Requirements", a copy of which is attached hereto and hereby made part of this License 
Agreement. 

15. Entire License Agreement. The terms and provisions herein contained 
constitute the entire License Agreement between the Parties hereto and shall supersede all 
previous communications, representations, or agreements, either oral or written, between the 
Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof; and no agreement or understanding 
varying or extending the same shall be binding upon either party hereto unless in writing signed 
by both Parties hereto; and nothing contained in the terms or provisions of this License 
Agreement shall be construed as waiving any of the rights of the Licensee under the laws of the 
State of Connecticut. Nothing contained in this License Agreement shall be construed as an 
agreement by the Licensee to directly obligate the Licensee to creditors or employees of the 
Licensor. 

4 



Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals on the 
day and year indicated. 

WITNESSES: 

Sign: 
Print Name: 

Sign: 
Print Name: 

WITNESSES: 

Sign: 
Print Name: 

Sign: 
Print Name: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Attorney General 
State of Connecticut 

Date:----------

5 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
JAMES REDEKER, COMMISSIONER 

By __________________ __ 

Thomas J. Maziarz 
Bureau Chief 
Bureau of Policy and Planning 

Date: ____________ _ 

Town of Colchester 

By __________________ ___ 

Gregg Schuster 
First Selectman 

Date: ________________ _ 



 



Town of Colchester 

Definitions: 

Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

APPENDIX UA u 

Administrative Requirements 

The following definitions shall apply to this Agreement and Appendix A: 

"Claims" shall mean all actions, suits, claims, demands, investigations and 
proceedings of any kind, open, pending or threatened, whether mature, unmatured, 
contingent, known or unknown, at law or in equity, in any forum. 

"Records" shall mean all working papers and such other information and 
materials as may have been accumulated by the Licensor in performing the Agreement, 
including but not limited to, documents, data, plans, books, computations, drawings, 
specifications, notes, reports, records, estimates, summaries, memoranda and 
correspondence, kept or stored in any form. 

"State" shall mean State of Connecticut, including the Department of 
Transportation ("Department"), and any office, department, board, council, commission, 
institution or other agency or entity of the State. 

"Licensor Parties" shall mean a Licensor's members, directors, officers, 
shareholders, partners, managers, principal officers, representatives, agents, servants, 
consultants, employees or any one of them or any other person or entity with whom the 
Licensor is in privity of oral or written contract and the Licensor intends for such other 
person or entity to perform under the Agreement in any capacity. 

1. Insurance. With respect to the operations performed by the Licensor under the 
terms of this Agreement and also those performed for the Licensor by its 
subcontractor(s), the Licensor will be required to carry the insurance coverage included 
in paragraph (a) below and it shall ensure that its subcontractor(s) carry the insurance 
coverage included in paragraph (a) below, for the duration of this Agreement, and any 
supplements thereto, with the State being named as an additional insured party for 
paragraph (a) below, at no direct cost to the State. In the event the Licensor secures 
excess/umbrella liability insurance to meet the minimum requirements specified in 
paragraph (a) below, the State of Connecticut shall be named as an additional insured. 

(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance including Contractual Liability 
Insurance, providing for a total limit of not less then One Million Dollars ($1 ,000,000) 
single limit for all damages arising out of bodily injuries to, or death of all persons in 
any one accident or occurrence, and for all damages arising out of injury to, or 
destruction of, property including the loss of use thereof in any one accident or 
occurrence. Subject to that limit per accident or occurrence, the policy shall provide a 
total or aggregate coverage of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for all damages 
arising out of bodily injuries to or death of all persons in all accidents or occurrences 
and out of injury to or destruction of property during the policy period. 

Page 1 of 6 



Town of Colchester Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

APPENDIX "A " 
Administrative Requirements 

The Licensor shall produce, within five (5) business days, a copy, or copies of all 
applicable insurance policies requested by the State. In providing said policies, the 
Licensor may redact provisions of the policies that are proprietary. This provision shall 
survive the suspension, expiration, or termination of this Agreement. 

If the Licensor elects to be self-insured rather than acquiring coverage from an 
insurance company, the Licensor shall ensure to the State that it is adequately protected. 
The Licensor shall submit a notarized statement from an authorized representative 
providing the following information: 

1) That the Licensor is self-insured. 

2) That the Licensor has established a reserve fund that satisfies the minimum 
requirements set forth in the Agreement for the payments of claims. 

3) That the Licensor shall indemnify and hold the State harmless. 

4) The name, title, and address of the person to be notified in the event of a 
claim. 

If requested by the State, the Licensor must provide any additional evidence of 
its status as a self-insured entity. If such self-insurance program is acceptable to the 
State, in its sole discretion, then the Licensor shall assume any and all claims as a self
insured entity. 

2. Indemnification. (a) The Licensor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
State and its officers, representatives, agents, servants, employees, successors and 
assigns from and against any and all (1) Claims arising, directly or indirectly, in 
connection with the Agreement, including the acts of commission or omission 
(collectively, the "Acts") of the Licensor or Licensor Parties; and (2) liabilities, damages, 
losses, costs and expenses, including but not limited to, attorneys' and other 
professionals' fees, arising, directly or indirectly, in connection with Claims, Acts or the 
Agreement. The Licensor shall use counsel reasonably acceptable to the State in 
carrying out its obligations under this section. The Licensor's obligations under this 
section to indemnify, defend and hold harmless against Claims includes Claims 
concerning confidentiality of any part of or all of the Licensor's bid, proposal or any 
Records, any intellectual property rights, other proprietary rights of any person or entity, 
copyrighted or uncopyrighted compositions, secret processes, patented or unpatented 
inventions, articles or appliances furnished or used in the performance. 

(b) The Licensor shall not be responsible for indemnifying or holding the State 
harmless from any liability arising due to the negligence of the State or any other person 
or entity acting under the direct control or supervision of the State. 

Page 2 of 6 



Town of Colchester Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

APPENDIX "A" 
Administrative Requirements 

(c) The Licensor shall reimburse the State for any and all damages to the real or 
personal property of the State caused by the Acts of the Licensor or any Licensor 
Parties. The State shall give the Licensor reasonable notice of any such Claims. 

(d) The Licensor's duties under this section shall remain fully in effect and 
binding in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, without being 
lessened or compromised in any way, even where the Licensor is alleged or is found to 
have merely contributed in part to the Acts giving rise to the Claims and/or where the 
State is alleged or is found to have contributed to the Acts giving rise to the Claims. 

(e) The Licensor shall carry and maintain at all times during the term of the 
Agreement, and during the time that any provisions survive the term of the Agreement, 
sufficient general liability insurance to satisfy its obligations under this Agreement. The 
Licensor shall name the State as an additional insured on the policy. The Department 
shall be entitled to recover under the insurance policy even if a body of competent 
jurisdiction determines that the Department or the State is contributorily negligent. 

(f) This section shall survive the termination of the Agreement and shall not be 
limited by reason of any insurance coverage. 

3. Waivers of Sovereign or Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement 
shall preclude the Licensor from asserting its Governmental Immunity rights in the 
defense of third party claims. The Licensor's Governmental Immunity defense against 
third party claims, however, shall not be interpreted or deemed to be a limitation or 
compromise of any of the rights of privileges of the state, at law or in equity, under this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, those relating to damages 

4. Code of Ethics Policy. The Licensor hereby acknowledges and agrees to comply 
with the policies enumerated in "Connecticut Department of Transportation Policy 
Statement No. F&A-1 0 Subject: Code of Ethics Policy", June 1, 2007, a copy of which 
is attached hereto and made part hereof. 

5. Connecticut Required Contract/Agreement Provisions (SEEOR). That when the 
Licensor receives State or Federal funds it shall incorporate the "Connecticut Required 
Agreement Provisions, Specific Equal Employment Opportunity Responsibilities" 
(SEEOR), dated March 3, 2009, as may be amended from time to time, as a material 
term of any agreements it enters into with its contractors, consulting engineers or other 
vendors, and shall require the contractors, consulting engineers or other vendors to 
include this requirement in any of its subcontracts. The Licensor shall also attach a 
copy of the SEEOR, as part of any agreements with any of its contractors, consulting 
engineers or other vendors, and require that the contractors, consulting engineers or 
other vendors attach the SEEOR to its subcontracts. 

6. Executive Orders. This Agreement is subject to the provisions of Executive Order 
No. Three of Governor Thomas J. Meskill, promulgated June 16, 1971, concerning 

Page 3 of 6 



Town of Colchester Agreement No. 1.03-01(13) 

APPENDIX "A" 
Administrative Requirements 

labor employment practices, Executive Order No. Seventeen of Governor Thomas J. 
Meskill, promulgated February 15, 1973, concerning the listing of employment 
openings, and Executive Order No. Sixteen of Governor John G. Rowland, 
promulgated August 4, 1999, concerning violence in the workplace, all of which are 
incorporated into and are made a part of the Agreement as if they had been fully set 
forth in it. The Agreement may also be subject to the applicable parts of Executive 
Order No. 7C of Governor M. Jodi Rell, promulgated July 13, 2006, concerning 
contracting reforms and Executive Order No. 14 of Governor M. Jodi Rell, promulgated 
April 17, 2006, concerning procurement of cleaning products and services, in 
accordance with their respective terms and conditions. If Executive Orders 7C and 14 
are applicable, they are deemed to be incorporated into and are made a part of the 
Agreement as if they had been fully set forth in it. At the Licensor's request, the 
Department shall provide a copy of these orders to the Licensor. 

7. Litigation. The Licensor agrees that the sole and exclusive means for the 
presentation of any claim against the State arising from or in connection with this 
Agreement shall be in accordance with Chapter 53 of the Connecticut General Statutes 
(Claims against the State) and the Licensor further agrees not to initiate legal 
proceedings in any State or Federal Court in addition to, or in lieu of, said Chapter 53 
proceedings. 

8. Force Majeure. The term Force Majeure as employed herein shall mean acts of 
God, riots, embargoes, wars, blockades, insurrections, strikes and work stoppages, fires, 
snow, ice, floods, governmental orders or regulations, accidents and other contingencies 
beyond the reasonable control of the Licensor and which by the exercise of due diligence 
the Licensor is unable to prevent or overcome. 

In the event that the Licensor is rendered unable wholly or in part by a Force 
Majeure, as defined herein, to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, it is agreed 
that on notice to the State setting forth the particulars of such Force Majeure, in writing, the 
obligations of the Licensor to the extent affected by such Force Majeure shall be 
suspended during the continuance of any inability so caused but for no longer period, and 
such cause shall as far as possible be remedied with all reasonable dispatch. 

9. Jurisdiction and Forum. The Parties deem the Agreement to have been made in 
the City of Hartford, State of Connecticut. Both parties agree that it is fair and 
reasonable for the validity and construction of the Agreement to be, and it shall be, 
governed by the laws and court decisions of the State of Connecticut, without giving 
effect to its principles of conflicts of laws. To the extent that any immunities provided by 
Federal law or the laws of the State of Connecticut do not bar an action against the 
State, and to the extent that these courts are courts of competent jurisdiction, for the 
purpose of venue, the complaint shall be made returnable to the Judicial District of 
Hartford only or shall be brought in the United States District Court for the District of 
Connecticut only, and shall not be transferred to any other court, provided, however, 
that nothing here constitutes a waiver or compromise of the sovereign immunity of the 

Page 4 of 6 



Town of Colchester Agreement No. 1.03-01 (13) 

APPENDIX "A" 
Administrative Requirements 

State of Connecticut. The Licensor waives any objection which it may now have or will 
have to the laying of venue of any Claims in any forum and further irrevocably submits 
to such jurisdiction in any suit, action or proceeding. 

10. Non-waiver of State's Immunities. The Parties acknowledge and agree that 
nothing in the Agreement shall be construed as a modification, compromise or waiver 
by the State of any rights or defenses of any immunities provided by Federal law or the 
laws of the State of Connecticut to the State or any of its officers and employees, which 
they may have had, now have or will have with respect to all matters arising out of the 
Agreement. To the extent that this section conflicts with any other section, this section 
shall govern. 

11. Americans With Disabilities Act. This clause applies to those Licensors who are or 
will be responsible for compliance with the terms of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 ("Act"), Public Law 1 01-336, during the term of the License Agreement. The 
Licensor represents that it is familiar with the terms of this Act and that it is in compliance 
with the Act. Failure of the Licensor to satisfy this standard as the same applies to 
performance under this License Agreement, either now or during the term of the License 
Agreement as it may be amended, will render the License Agreement voidable at the 
option of the State upon notice to the Licensor. The Licensor warrants that it will hold the 
State harmless and indemnify the State from any liability which may be imposed upon the 
State as a result of any failure of the Licensor to be in compliance with this Act, as the 
same applies to performance under this License Agreement. 

12. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. As a condition to receiving federal financial 
assistance under the Agreement, if any, the Licensor shall comply with Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d- 2000d-7), all requirements imposed by 
the regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (49 CFR Part 21) 
issued in implementation thereof, and the 'Title VI Contractor Assurances", attached 
hereto, all of which are hereby made a part of this Agreement. 

13. Suspension or Debarment. Suspended or debarred contractors, second parties, 
suppliers, materialmen, lessors, or other vendors may not submit proposals for a State 
Contract or subcontract during the period of suspension or debarment regardless of 
their anticipated status at the time of contract award or commencement of work. 

(1) The signature on the License Agreement by the Licensor shall constitute 
certification that to the best of its knowledge and belief the Licensor or any person 
associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal 
investigator, project director, manager, auditor or any position involving the 
administration of Federal or State funds: 

(a) Is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible,. or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by Federal 
department or agency; 

Page 5 of 6 



Town of Colchester Agreement No. 1.03-01 ( 13) 

APPENDIX "A" 
Administrative Requirements 

(b) Has not within the prescribed statutory time period preceding this License 
Agreement, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against 
him/her for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) 
transaction or contract under a public transaction, violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes, or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, 
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving 
stolen property. 

(c) Is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
government entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any offenses 
enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

(d) Has not, with a five-year period preceding this License Agreement, had one 
or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

(2) Where the Licensor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, the Licensor shall attach an explanation to this License Agreement. 

The Licensor agrees to insure that the following certification be included in each 
subcontract to which it is a party, and further, to require said certification to be included 
in any subcontracts, sub-subcontracts and purchase orders. 

(a) The prospective subcontractor, sub-subcontractors participant certify by 
submission of its/their proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal 
department or agency. 

(b) Where the prospective subcontractors, sub-subcontractors participants are 
unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such 
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

14. Assignment or Transfer of Agreement. The Licensor warrants that it shall not 
sublet, subcontract, sell, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of the Agreement or any 
portion thereof, or of the work provided for therein, or of the Licensor's right, title, or 
interest therein, to any person, firm, partnership, or corporation without the written 
consent of the State. For breach or violation of the above stipulation the State shall 
have the right to annul this Agreement without liability. 

Page 6 of 6 



CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

SUBJECT: Code of Ethics Policy 

POLICY NO. F&A-10 
June 1, 2007 

The purpose of this policy is to establish and maintain high standards of honesty, integrity, and 
quality of performance for all employees ofthe Depmiment ofTransp01iation ("DOT" or 
"Department"). Individuals in government service have positions of significant tmst and 
responsibility that require them to adhere to the highest ethical standards. Standards that might 
be acceptable in other public or private organizations are not necessarily acceptable for the DOT. 

It is expected that all DOT employees will comply with this policy as well as the Code of Ethics 
for Public Officials, and strive to avoid even the appearance of impropriety in their relationships 
with members of the public, other agencies, private vendors, consultants, and contractors. This 
policy is, as is permitted by law, in some cases stricter than the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. 
Where that is tme, employees are required to comply with the more stringent DOT policy. 

The Code of Ethics for Public Officials is State law and governs the conduct of all State 
employees and public officials regardless of the agency in which they serve. The entire Code, as 
well as a summary of its provisions, may be found at the Office of State Ethics' web site: 
www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp. For formal and informal interpretations of the Code of 
Ethics, DOT employees should contact the Office of State Ethics or the DOT's Ethics 
Compliance Officer or her designee. 

All State agencies are required by law to have an ethics policy statement. Additionally, all State 
agencies are required by law to have an Ethics Liaison or Ethics Compliance Officer. The DOT, 
because of the size and scope of its procurement activities, has an Ethics Compliance Officer 
who is responsible for the Department's: development of ethics policies; coordination of ethics 
training programs; and monitoring of programs for agency compliance with its ethics policies 
and the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. At least annually, the Ethics Compliance Officer 
shall provide ethics training to agency personnel involved in contractor selection, evaluation, and 
supervision. A DOT employee who has a question or is unsure about the provisions of this 
policy, or who would like assistance contacting the Office of State Ethics, should contact the 
Ethics Compliance Officer or her designee. 

The DOT Ethics Compliance Officer is: 

Denise Radosevich, Managing Attorney 
Office ofLegal Services 

For questions, contact the Ethics 
Compliance Officer's Designee: 

Alice M. Sexton, Principal Attorney 
Office ofLegal Services 
2800 Berlin Turnpike 
Newington, CT 06131-7 546 
Tel. (860) 594-3045 

To contact the Office of State Ethics: 

Office of State Ethics 
20 Trinity Street, Suite 205 
Hartford, CT 061 06 
Tel. (860) 566-4472 
Facs. (860) 566-3806 
Web: www.ethics.state.ct.us 



Enforcement 

The Department expects that all employees will comply with all laws and policies regarding ethical 
conduct. Violations of the law may subject an employee to sanctions from agencies or authorities outside 
the DOT. Whether or not another agency or authority imposes such sanctions, the Department retains the 
independent right to review and respond to any ethics violation or alleged ethics violation by its 
employees. Violations of this policy or ethics statutes, as construed by the DOT, may result in 
disciplinary action up to and including dismissal from State service. 

Prohibited Activities 

1. Gifts: DOT employees (and in some cases their family members) are prohibited by the Code of Ethics 
and this Policy fi-om accepting a gift from anyone who is: (1) doing business with, or seeking to do 
business with, the DOT; (2) directly regulated by the DOT; (3) prequalified as a contractor pursuant to 
Conn. Gen. Stat. §4a-1 00 by the Commissioner of the Department of Administrative Services (DAS); 
or (4) known to be a registered lobbyist or a lobbyist's representative. These four categories of 
people/entities are refetTed to as "restricted donors." A list of registered lobbyists can be found on the 
web site ofthe Office of State Ethics (www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp). A list ofprequalified 
consultants and contractors, i.e., those seeking to do business with the DOT, can be found on the 
DOT's Intemet site under "Consultant Infonnation" and "Doing Business with ConnDOT," 
respectively. 

The term "gift" is defined in the Code of Ethics for Public Officials, Conn. Gen. Stat. § 1-79( e), and 
has numerous exceptions. For example, one exception pem1its the acceptance of food and/or 
beverages valued up to $50 per calendar year from any one donor and consumed on an occasion or 
occasions while the person paying or his representative is present. Therefore, such food and/or 
beverage is not a "gift." Another exception pennits the acceptance of items having a value up to ten 
dollars ($1 0) provided the aggregate value of all things provided by the donor to the recipient during a 
calendar year does not exceed fifty dollars ($50). Therefore, such items are not a "gift." Depending on 
the circumstances, the "donor" may be an individual if the individual is bearing the expense, or a 
donor may be the individual's employer/group if the individual is passing the expense back to the 
employer/group he/she represents. 

This policy requires DOT employees to immediately retum any gift (as defined in the Code of Ethics) 
that any person or entity attempts to give to the employee( s ). If any such gift or other item of value is 
received by other than personal delivery from the subject person or entity, the item shall be taken to 
the Office of Human Resources along with the name and address of the person or entity who gave the 
item. The Office of Human Resources, along with the recipient of the item of value, will mTange for 
the donation of the item to a local charity (e.g., Foodshare, local soup kitchens, etc.). The Office of 
Human Resources will then send a letter to the gift's donor advising the person of the item's donation 
to charity and requesting that no such gifts be given to DOT employees in the future. 

2. Contracting for Goods or Services for Personal Use With Department Contractors, Consultants, or 
Vendors: Executive Order 7C provides that: "Appointed officials and state employees in the 
Executive Branch are prohibited from contracting for goods and services, for personal use, with any 
person doing business with or seeking business with his or her agency, unless the goods or services are 
readily available to the general public for the price which the official or state employee paid or would 
pay." 

2 



3. Gift Exchanges Between Subordinates and Supervisors/Senior Staff· A recent change in the Code 
of Ethics prohibits exchanges of gifts valued at $100 or more between (i.e., to and from) supervisors 
and employees under their supervision. The Citizen's Ethics Advisory Board has advised that: (1) the 
monetaty limit imposed by this provision is a per-gift amount; (2) gifts given between supervisors and 
subordinates (or vice versa) in celebration of a "major life event," as defined in the Code of Ethics, 
need not comply with the $100 limit; and (3) the limitations imposed by this provision apply to a 
direct supervisor and subordinate and to any individual up or down the chain of command. The 
Citizen's Ethics Advisory Board has also advised that supervisors or subordinates may not pool their 
money to give a collective or group gift valued at $100 or more, even though each ofthe individual 
contributions is less than $100. 

4. Acceptance of Gifts to the State: A recent change to the Code of Ethics for Public Officials modified 
the definition of the term "gift" to limit the application of the so-called "gift to the State" exception. 
In general, "gifts to the State" are goods or services given to a State agency for use on State property 
or to supp01i an event and which facilitate State action or functions. Before accepting any benefit as a 
"gift to the State," DOT employees should contact the Ethics Compliance Officer. 

5. Charitable Organizations and Events: No DOT employee shall knowingly accept any gift, discount, 
or other item of monetaty value for the benefit of a charitable organization from any person or entity 
seeking official action from, doing or seeking business with, or conducting activities regulated by, the 
Department. 

6. Use of Office/Position for Financial Gain: DOT employees shall not use their public office, position, 
or influence from holding their State office/position, nor any information gained in the course of their 
State duties, for private financial gain (or the prevention of financial loss) for themselves, any family 
member, any member of their household, nor any "business with which they are associated." In general, 
a business with which one is associated includes any entity of which a DOT employee or his/her 
immediate family member is a director, owner, limited or general partner, beneficiary of a trust, holder 
of 5 percent or more stock, or an officer (president, treasurer, or executive or senior vice president). 

DOT employees shall not use or distribute State information (except as petmitted by the Freedom of 
Information Act), nor use State time, personnel, equipment, or materials, for other than State business 
purposes. 

7. Other Employment: DOT employees shall not engage in, nor accept, other employment that will either 
impair their independence of judgment with regard to their State duties or require or induce them to 
disclose confidential information gained through their State duties. 

Any DOT employee who engages in or accepts other employment (including as an independent 
contractor), or has direct ownership in an outside business or sole proprietorship, shall complete an 
Employment/Outside Business Disclosure F01m (see attached) and submit it to the Depatiment's Human 
Resources Administrator. Disclosure of other employment to the DOT Human Resources Administrator 
shall not constitute approval of the other employment for purposes of the Code of Ethics for Public 
Officials. 

Inquiries concerning the propriety of a DOT employee's other employment shall be directed to the 
Office of State Ethics to assure compliance with the Code ofEthics for Public Officials. Employees 
anticipating accepting other employment as described above should give ample time (at least one month) 
to the Office of State Ethics to respond to such outside employment inquiries. 

3 



No employee of the DOT shall allow any private obligation of employment or enterprise to take 
precedence over his/her responsibility to the Department. 

8. Outside Business Interests: Any DOT employee who holds, directly or indirectly, a financial interest in 
any business, firm, or enterprise shall complete an Employment/Outside Business Disclosure Form (see 
attached) and submit it to the Depmiment's Human Resources Administrator. An indirect financial 
interest includes situations where a DOT employee's spouse has a financial interest in a business, firm, 
or enterprise. A financial interest means that the employee or his spouse is an owner, member, partner, 
or shareholder in a non-publicly traded entity. Disclosure of such outside business interests to the DOT 
Human Resources Administrator shall not constitute approval of the outside business interest under this 
Policy or the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. DOT employees shall not have a financial interest in 
any business, firm, or enterprise which will either impair their independence of judgment with regard to 
their State duties or require or induce them to disclose confidential information gained through their 
State duties. Inquiries concerning the propriety of a DOT employee's outside business interests shall be 
directed to the Office of State Ethics to assure compliance with the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. 

9. Contracts With the State: DOT employees, their immediate family members, and/or a business with 
which a DOT employee is associated, may not enter into a contract with the State, other than pursuant to 
a court appointment, valued at $100 or more unless the contract has been awarded through an open and 
public process. 

10. Sanctioning Another Person's Ethics Violation: No DOT official or employee shall counsel, 
authorize, or othetwise sanction action that violates any provision of the Code of Ethics. 

11. Certain Persons Have an Obligation to Report Ethics Violations: If the DOT Commissioner, Deputy 
Commissioner, or "person in charge of State agency procurement" and contracting has reasonable cause 
to believe that a person has violated the Code of Ethics or any law or regulation concerning ethics in 
State contracting, he/she must rep011 such belief to the Office of State Ethics. All DOT employees are 
encouraged to disclose waste, fraud, abuse, and corruption about which they become aware to the 
appropriate authority (see also Policy Statement EX.0.-23 dated March 31, 2004), including, but not 
limited to, their immediate supervisor or a superior of their immediate supervisor, the DOT Office of 
Management Services, the Ethics Compliance Officer, the Auditors of Public Accounts, the Office of 
the Attorney General, or the Office of the Chief State's Attorney. 

12. Post-State Employment Restrictions: In addition to the above-stated policies of the Depmtment, DOT 
employees are advised that the Code of Ethics for Public Officials bars certain conduct by State 
employees after they leave State service. Upon leaving State service: 

• Confidential Information: DOT employees must never disclose or use confidential information 
gained in State service for the financial benefit of any person. 

• Prohibited Representation: DOT employees must never represent anyone (other than the State) 
concerning any "particulm· matter" in which they participated personally and substantially while in 
State service and in which the State has a substantial interest. 

DOT employees also must not, for one year after leaving State service, represent anyone other than 
the State for compensation before the DOT concerning a matter in which the State has a substantial 
interest. In this context, the term "represent" has been very broadly defined. Therefore, any 
f01mer DOT employee contemplating post-State employment work that might involve interaction 
with any bureau of DOT (or any Board or Commission administratively under the DOT) within 

4 



their first year after leaving State employment should contact the DOT Ethics Compliance Officer 
and/or the Office of State Ethics. 

• Employment With State Vendors: DOT employees who participated substantially in, or supervised, 
the negotiation or award of a State contract valued at $50,000 or more must not accept employment 
with a party to the contract (other than the State) for a period of one year after resigning fi·om State 
service, if the resignation occurs within one year after the contract was signed. 

13. Ethical Considerations Concerning Bidding and State Contracts: DOT employees also should be 
aware of various provisions of Pari IV of the Code of Ethics that affect any person or fi1m who: (1) is, 
or is seeking to be, prequalified by DAS under Conn. Gen. Stat. §4a-1 00; (2) is a pmiy to a large State 
construction or procurement contract, or seeking to enter into such a contract, with a State agency; or (3) 
is a party to a consultant services contract, or seeking to enter into such a contract, with a State agency. 
These persons or firms shall not: 

• With the intent to obtain a competitive advantage over other bidders, solicit any information fi·om an 
employee or official that the contractor knows is not and will not be available to other bidders for a 
large State construction or procurement contract that the contractor is seeking; 

• Intentionally, willfully, or with reckless disregard for the truth, charge a State agency for work not 
perf01med or goods not provided, including submitting meritless change orders in bad faith with 
the sole intention of increasing the contract price, as well as falsifying invoices or bills or charging 
unreasonable and unsubstantiated rates for services or goods to a State agency; and 

• Intentionally or willfully violate or attempt to circumvent State competitive bidding and ethics 
laws. 

Films or persons that violate the above provisions may be deemed a nonresponsible bidder by the 
DOT. 

In addition, no person with whom a State agency has contracted to provide consulting services to plan 
specifications for any contract, and no business with which such person is associated, may serve as a 
consultant to any person seeking to obtain such contract, serve as a contractor for such contract, or 
serve as a subcontractor or consultant to the person awarded such contract. 

DOT employees who believe that a contractor or consultant may be in violation of any of these 
provisions should bring it to the attention of their manager. 

Training for DOT Employees 

A copy of this policy will be posted throughout the Department, and provided to each employee either in 
hard copy or by e-mail. As set forth above, State law requires that certain employees involved in 
contractor/consultant/vendor selection, evaluation, or supervision must undergo annual ethics training 
coordinated or provided by the Ethics Compliance Officer. If you believe your duties meet these criteria, 
you should notify your Bureau Chief to facilitate compilation of a training schedule. In addition, the DOT 
Ethics Compliance Officer can atTange for periodic ethics training provided by the Office of State Ethics. 
Finally, the Department will make available, on its web site or otherwise, a copy of this policy to all 
vendors, contractors, and other business entities doing business with the Department. 

5 



Important Ethics Reference Materials 

It is strongly recommended that every DOT employee read and review the following: 

);.- Code of Ethics for Public Officials, Chapter 10, Part 1, Conn. General Statutes Sections 1-79 
through 1-89a found at: www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp 

>- Ethics Regulations Sections 1-81-14 through 1-81-38, found at: www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp 

;.... The Office of State Ethics web site includes summaries and the full text offmmal ethics advisory 
opinions interpreting the Code of Ethics, as well as summaries of previous enforcement actions: 
www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp. DOT employees are strongly encouraged to contact the 
Department's Ethics Compliance Officer or her designee, or the Office of State Ethics with any 
questions or concems they may have. 

(This Policy Statement supersedes Policy Statement No. F&A-1 0 dated Janumy 6, 2006) 

Attachment 

List 1 and List 3 

Ralph J. Carpenter 
COMMISSIONER 

(Managers and supervisors are requested to distribute a copy of this Policy Statement to all employees under 
their supervision.) 

cc: Office ofthe Govemor, Department of Administrative Services, Office of State Ethics 

6 



Emp&discForm 5/07 

Department of Transportation 
Employment & Outside Business 

Disclosure Form 

In accordance with Department of Transportation {Department} Policy Statement No. 
F&A-1 0, Code of Ethics Policy, I am hereby advising the Department that in addition to my 
current DOT position, I have other employment andjor a direct or indirect financial 
interest in an outside business as follows: 

1. Full name of outside employer, or entity in which I or my spouse have a financial 
interest (e.g., ownership or memberjpartnerJ: 

2. location of Employer/Entity disclosed above:-----------------

3. Nature of myjmy spouse's relationship to employerjentity disclosed above {check at 
least one}: 

__ Employee or Independent Contractor (circle one} 
__ OwnerjMemberjPartnerjetc. 
__ Family Member of OwnerjMemberjPartnerjetc. 

4. State agency(iesJ with which above employerjentity is doing business or seeking 
Business (write "NjA" if not applicable}: 

5. Job Title at Outside Employer: 

6. Job Responsibilities at Outside Employer:----·----------------

7. Current State Title:---------·------------------· 

8. Current State Job Responsibilities: 

9. NamejTitle of Current State Supervisor: 

I understand that the filing of this Disclosure with the DOT Human Resources 
Administrator does not relieve me of any obligations I have to comply with the Code of 
Ethics for Public Officials, and does not constitute approval of my outside employment 
andjor financial interests under the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. Employees 
engaging in outside employment are strongly urged to seek written approval of their 
outside employment from the Office of State Ethics, 20 Trinity Street, Hartford, CT 061 06. 
I also understand that if either my State or outside employment/financial interest changes 
in location or function I am required to notify the Department immediately. 

Signed: Date: -------------
Printed Name: 

7 



TITLE VL CONTRACTOR ASSURANCES 

For this document Contractor means Consultant, Consulting Engineer, second Party, or other 
entity doing business with the State and Contract shall mean the same as Agreement. 

During the performance of this Contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor"} agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor shall comply with the regulations 
relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the united States 
Department of Transportation (hereinafter, "USDOT"}, Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as 
the "Regulations»), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this· 
contract. 

2. Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during 
the Contract,· shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, 
age, or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including 
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate 
either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Subsection 5 of the 
Regulations, including. employment practices when the Contract covers a program set forth 
in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3. Solicitations for SUbcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: 
In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor 

for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or 
leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the 
Contractor of the Contractor's obligations under this contract and the Regulations 
relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or 
disability. · 

4. rn£ormation and Raports: The Contractor shall provide all information and reports 
required by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access 
to its books, records, accounts, other sourcea·of information, and ita facilities as may 
be determined by the Connecticut Department of Transportation (ConnDOT) or the Funding 
Agency (FHWA, FTA and FAA} to be pertinent to ascertain compliru,ce with such Regulations, 
orders, and instructions. Where any information required of a Contracto~ is in the 
exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this inf6rmation, the 
Contractor shall so certify to ConnDOT or the Funding Agency, as appropriate, and shall 
set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. . 

5. Sanctions fo~ Noncompliance: In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with 
the nondiscrimination provisions of this Contract, the· ConnDOT shall impose such sanctions 
as it or the Funding Agency may determine to be appropriate, including, but' not limited 
to: 

A. Nithholding contract payments until the Contractor is in-compliance;. and/or 

B. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor shall include the provisions of 
paragraphs 1 through 5 in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and 
leases of e~~ipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant 
thereto. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or 
procurement as the connDOT or the Funding Agency may ·direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, however, that in the ~vent a 
Contractor beeomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
supplier as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the ConnDOT to enter 
into such litigation to protect the.interests of the Funding Agency, and, in addition, th~ 
Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the 
interests of the United States. 

2 

I ,. 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

t 
I 

r 

I 
I 
i 

r 
j 

r 

~ 

I 
r 
t 
t 

I 
; 





TOWN OF COLCHESTER 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
& 

PERSONNEL POLICIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 
EMPLOYEE REVIEW – EDITS 



TOWN OF COLCHESTER 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK & PERSONNEL POLICIES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

         PAGE  
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
History        1 
Purpose        2 
Affirmative Action/Equal Employment Opportunity   2 
Sexual (and other) Harassment     3 
Americans with Disabilities Act Statement    4 
Anti-Discrimination       4 
Reporting Legal/Ethical Violations     4 
Workplace Threats and Violence     5 
Release of Employee Information     6 
Conflict of Interest       6 

 
II. YOUR JOB 

Employment Classification      7 
Employee Hiring and Dismissal     9 
Termination of Employment     10 
 Notice        11 
 Return of Equipment/Supplies     11 
 Benefits Continuation (COBRA)     11 
Employee Relations       11 
Performance Appraisal      12 
Development Opportunities      12 
Attendance        13 
Lunch and Breaks       14 
Personnel Records       14 

 
III. YOUR PAY AND BENEFITS 

Your Paycheck       15 
Non-Exempt Employee Pay      15 
Exempt Employee Pay      16 
Reporting Paycheck Concerns     16 
Overtime        16 
Benefits        16 
Holidays        17 
Vacations        18 
Medical and Dental Insurance     19 
Long-Term Disability (LTD)      21 
401(a) Plan        21 
457 Deferred Compensation Plan     23 
Life Insurance       23 
Longevity Bonus       23 
Performance Incentive      24 



         PAGE  
 
Leaves of Absence       25 
 Personal Days       25 
 Sick Leave       26 
 Employment Protection for Victims of Domestic Violence 27 
 Bereavement Leave      27 
 Military Leave     27 
 Jury Duty       28 
 Childbirth Leave      28 
 Newborn Leave       29 
 Family and Medical Leave     29 
 Reinstatement       32 
 Leave of Absence Without Pay     32 
Worker’s Compensation      33 
Return to Work Policy      33 

 
IV. GENERAL GUIDELINES 

Employee Responsibilities      34 
Dress Code        36 
Employment of Relatives      36 
Confidentiality       37 
Expense Reimbursement      37 
Smoking        37 
Care of Personal Belongings      38 
Inclement Weather       38 
Acceptable Computer Network and Office Equipment Use  38 

 
V. HEALTH, SAFETY, AND SECURITY 

General        40 
Safety-Related Discrimination and Harassment   40 
Alcohol and Drug-Free Policy     41 
 Employee Assistance      42 
 Drug Testing       42 
Security        43 

 
VI. CONCLUSION 

Severability        43 
Handbook & Policy Review      43 
Note to All Employees      43 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT       44 



 
 

NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER OF CONTRACT 
 

Nothing in this document is intended to create or constitute an expressed or implied 
contract of employment between the Town of Colchester and any of its present or future 
employees. The provisions of this document may be revoked or modified at any time by 
the Town of Colchester, in its absolute discretion. 
 
The Town of Colchester will not recognize or be bound by any contract of employment 
with any employee or group of employees unless such contract is in writing and is 
authorized by the Board of Selectmen and signed by both the First Selectman and the 
employee or the certified collective bargaining representative for a group of employees.  

 
Employment with the Town of Colchester is subject to termination, at will, by either the 
Town of Colchester or the employee, at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the First Selectman and the employee or the 
certified bargaining representative for a group of employees or as otherwise provided by 
state or local law. Both you and the Town of Colchester have the right to terminate 
employment at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, and with or without 
notice.  Should any provision of these policies conflict with any provision of a collective 
bargaining agreement between the Town of Colchester and the certified bargaining 
representative for a group of employees, the provision of the collective bargaining 
agreement shall prevail for the members of that bargaining unit. 
 
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
 
History 
 
The Town of Colchester, Connecticut was founded in 1698 at a point just north of 
the present Town Green at Jeremiah's Farm on land purchased by Nathaniel 
Foote from the Sachem of the Mohegan Indians. Colchester was the vision of a 
group of early English settlers who sought to lay out a new plantation in a large 
tract of virgin wilderness.  In the early 1900’s Colchester became the "Catskills of 
Connecticut". At least seven major hotels thrived. The tourist industry boomed 
throughout the 1930s.  In the last fifty years the beach traffic brought many 
through Colchester.  The Route 2 by-pass of the town was completed in the 
1960s. But for those who did not just pass through, Colchester's dedication to the 
public school system, its acceptance of all peoples and its quality of life 
increased its population to 7,761 by 1980. In 2005 it was ranked 57th on the "100 
Best Places to Live" in all of the United States, conducted by CNN. In 2010 
Colchester became the first town in Connecticut, and the 36th in the country, to 
be certified with the National Wildlife Federation (NWF) as a Community Wildlife 
Habitat. Colchester is one of the fastest growing towns in Connecticut. As of 
2012, over 300 years after the settling of Colchester, the population has grown to 
more than 16,000. 

1

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/CNN


 
From an employment standpoint, the Town of Colchester strives to maintain a creative, 
open, spirited, and confident atmosphere in which employees can strive for self-
fulfillment and career advancement.   
 
 
Purpose of Your Employee Handbook 
 
This employee handbook is intended to serve as a practical guide to the Town of 
Colchester's personnel policies and practices. However, since it is only a summary, 
compiled for the convenience of our employees and supervisors, it is not intended to 
cover all topics or circumstances. The Town of Colchester reserves the right to 
modify, revise, delete, or add to any and all programs, practices or procedures 
described in this handbook at any time, with or without advance notice, and in the 
Town’s sole discretion.  You may receive updated information concerning 
changes to this handbook.  The First Selectman’s Office will forward any 
documents to the appropriate people when necessary. Should you have any 
questions about any section of this handbook, ask your supervisor or the Human 
Resources office.  Until noted otherwise, for the purposes of this policy, the 
“Human Resources Office” shall mean the First Selectman’s Office.  We reserve 
the right to respond to specific situations in whatever manner we believe best suits the 
needs of the Town of Colchester and the employee involved. Where there are 
differences between the provisions of these policies and other written and approved 
employment related policies, or in collective bargaining agreements to which the 
Town of Colchester is a party, policies and collective bargaining agreements shall 
control take precedence. 
 
 
Affirmative Action / Equal Employment Opportunity  
 
The Town of Colchester is firmly committed and has as its long-standing policy to 
provide equal opportunity in employment to all qualified persons on the basis of job-
related skills, ability and merit. 
 
Except in cases of bona fide occupational qualification or need, the Town of Colchester 
will continue to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and 
employees are treated without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
ancestry, age, veteran status, or mental disorder (present or history thereof), physical 
disability, marital status, sexual orientation, genetic information, pregnancy, or other 
protected status. This policy applies to all employment actions taken by the Town, 
including, but not limited to: recruitment, job posting and advertising, hiring, promotion, 
upgrading, demotion or transfer, layoff and termination, rates of pay and other forms of 
compensation and benefits, and selection for training. 
 
 
 
 

2



 
Sexual (and other) Harassment 
 
Harassment of an employee, by a supervisor or co-worker on the basis of sex, race, 
color, religion/creed, national origin, ancestry, age, disability, citizenship, marital status 
or sexual orientation creates a harmful working environment. It is the policy of the Town 
of Colchester to maintain a working environment free from harassment, insults or 
intimidation on the basis of an employee's sex, race, color, religion/creed, national 
origin, ancestry, age, disability, citizenship, marital status or sexual orientation. Physical, 
verbal or non-verbal, (including electronic), conduct, by a supervisor or co-worker 
relating to any of these characteristics or factors which has the effect of creating an 
intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, unreasonably interfering with the· 
employee's work performance or adversely affecting the employee's employment 
opportunities, will not be tolerated. 
 
While it is difficult to define sexual harassment precisely, it does include any unwelcome 
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a 
sexual nature when: 
 

1. submission to or rejection of such conduct is made, either explicitly or 
implicitly, a term or condition of an individual's employment; 

2. submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the 
basis for employment decisions affecting such individual; or 

3. such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 
individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive 
work environment. 

 
Although not an exhaustive list, the following are examples of the type of conduct 
prohibited by the policy against sexual harassment: 
 

1. unwelcome sexual relations with a co-worker or supervisor;  
2. unwelcome attention of a sexual nature such as degrading comments, 

propositions, jokes, tricks or noises; or 
3. the threat, or suggestion, that continued employment, advancement, 

assignment, earnings or other terms and conditions of employment depend 
on whether or not the employee will submit to, or tolerate, harassment. 

 
The use of disability-related or racially derogatory jokes or comments, racial or religious 
epithets, or ethnic slurs that have the effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or 
offensive work environment, and insults or intimidation demonstrating age bias, are also 
examples of the type of conduct prohibited by this policy. 
 
Any infraction of this policy by supervisors or co-workers should be reported 
immediately to the Department Head or Human Resources Office. Confidentiality at the 
time of reporting the infraction is assured; however, complete confidentiality cannot be 
guaranteed in light of the Town's need to investigate such an infraction and resolve the 

3



matter. The Town reserves the right to take any appropriate action under all the 
circumstances to correct any violation of this policy. Retaliation against any employee 
for complaining about harassment on the basis of sex, race, color, religion, national 
origin, ancestry, age, disability, citizenship, marital status, sexual orientation, or any 
other characteristic protected by law is prohibited. 
 
Violations of this policy, including retaliation for filing any complaint or cooperating in 
any investigation under this policy will not be permitted and may result in discipline, up 
to and including dismissal.  
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act Statement 
 
The Town is committed to employing all individuals on the basis of ability rather 
than disability.  This commitment includes making reasonable accommodations 
for the known physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual.  
A reasonable accommodation may include any action which enables an 
individual with a disability to perform the essential functions of his or her 
position but which does not result in an undue hardship to the business. A 
“reasonable accommodation” is a change in the work environment or work 
procedures that gives a qualified individual with a disability the same 
employment opportunities as non-disabled individuals. 
 
If an individual requests an accommodation, we will determine whether the 
individual has a “disability” as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) or any other state or federal disability law and whether an accommodation 
is appropriate and reasonable.  This may require assistance from your physician 
or medical care provider.  To request an accommodation or other assistance, 
contact your supervisor or Human Resources. 
 
 
Anti-Discrimination 
  
We are committed to providing a work environment that is free from all forms of 
unlawful discrimination.  Discrimination in any form is illegal and all 
discriminatory practices are prohibited and will not be tolerated under any 
circumstances.  It is our policy to provide a work environment free from all forms 
of discrimination which may be considered harassing, offensive, coercive, 
hostile, intimidating, threatening or disruptive.  These behaviors include, but are 
not limited to, harassment, joking and demeaning remarks, stories, use of 
nicknames or other abusive conduct directed at an employee because of sex, 
race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, disability, citizenship, marital 
status, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic protected by law. 
 
Reporting Legal / Ethical Violations 
 

4



It is the philosophy of the Town of Colchester that every employee has the 
responsibility to take action to prevent problems and improve our operation.  If 
employees observe possible unethical or illegal conduct, they are encouraged to 
report their concerns.   
  
Employees and others may communicate suspected violations of law, policy, or 
other wrongdoing, as well as any concerns regarding questionable accounting or 
auditing matters (including deficiencies in internal controls) by contacting their 
supervisor, Human Resources, or the First Selectman. 
 
We will treat all communications under this policy in a confidential manner, 
except to the extent necessary to conduct a complete and fair investigation, or for 
review of operations.  All inquiries will be subject to Freedom of Information Act 
(FOIA) guidelines and regulations. 
 
The Town prohibits any form of retaliation against any employee for filing a good 
faith complaint under this policy or for assisting in a complaint investigation. 
 
 
Workplace Threats and Violence 
 
Nothing is more important to The Town of Colchester than regards the safety and 
security of its employees as critical. There is a zero tolerance policy towards any 
threats, threatening behavior, or acts of violence against employees, visitors, guests, or 
other individuals by employees on Town of Colchester property or in relation to 
employment with the Town will not be tolerated. Violations of this policy will lead to 
disciplinary action, which may include up to and including dismissal. Depending on 
the severity of the violation of this policy, the Town reserves the right to seek the 
arrest and possible prosecution of the employee.  
 
Any employee who makes substantial threats, exhibits threatening behavior threatens 
another employee (for example: harassment, intimidation, displaying a weapon, 
etc.), or engages in violent acts on Town property shall be removed from the premises 
as quickly as safety permits, and shall remain off Town premises pending the outcome 
of an investigation. The Town will initiate an appropriate response. This response may 
include, but not be limited to: suspension and/or termination, reassignment of job duties, 
suspension or termination of employment, and/or criminal prosecution of the employee 
or employees involved. 
 
All Town of Colchester personnel are responsible for notifying the management 
representative designated below of any threats, which they have witnessed, received, or 
have been told that another employee has witnessed or received. Even without an 
actual threat, personnel should also report any behavior they have witnessed which 
they regard as threatening or violent, when that behavior is job related or might be 
carried out on a Town-controlled site, or is connected to employment with the Town. 
Employees are responsible for making this report regardless of the relationship between 

5



the employee or persons who initiated the threat or threatening behavior and the 
employee or persons who were threatened or were the focus of the threatening 
behavior. If the designated management representative is not available, personnel 
should report the threat to their supervisor (or that individual's supervisor if the threat is 
made by the supervisor). 
 
All individuals who apply for or obtain a protective or restraining order which lists Town 
locations as being protected areas, must provide to the designated management 
representative a copy of the petition and declarations used to seek the order, a copy of 
any temporary protective or restraining order which is granted, and a copy of any 
protective or restraining order which is made permanent. 
 
The Town of Colchester understands the sensitivity of the information requested and 
has developed confidentiality procedures, which recognize and respect the privacy of 
the reporting employee(s). 

 
The designated management representative is: 

 
Name: Jenny Contois 
Title: First Selectman 
Telephone: 537-7220 
Location: Selectman's Office, Town Hall 

 
ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY ON WORKPLACE VIOLENCE 
 
The Town of Colchester maintains a zero tolerance policy on violence in the workplace. 
Any violent act is strictly prohibited. Participating in, provoking or otherwise contributing 
to any violent act in the workplace including but not limited to abuse, assault, battery, 
threats and/or harassment will result in severe disciplinary action up to and including 
discharge. 
 
 
Release of Employee Information 
 
Employee personnel files and records are subject to the Freedom of Information 
Act (FOIA) and may be requested for viewing from outside individuals, 
organizations, and agencies.  Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
(HIPAA) guidelines take precedent over FOIA regulations with regards to 
employee information being available and therefore personal medical records are 
not subject to FOIA requests. 
 
Conflict of Interest 
 
Employees have an obligation to conduct business within Town policies that 
prohibit actual or potential conflicts of interest.  This section establishes only the 
framework within which the Town of Colchester wishes to operate.  The purpose 

6



of these policies is to provide general direction so that employees can seek 
further clarification on issues related to the subject of acceptable standards of 
operation. All employees are bound by the Town of Colchester’s Code of Ethics. 
 
An actual or potential conflict of interest occurs when an employee is in a 
position to influence a work-related decision that may result in a personal gain for 
that employee or for a relative.  Personal gain may result not only in cases where 
an employee or relative has a significant ownership in a firm with which The 
Town does business, but also when an employee or relative receives any 
kickback, bribe, substantial gift, or special consideration as a result of any 
transaction or business dealings involving the Town. 
 
No “presumption of guilt” is created by the mere existence of a relationship with 
outside firms.  However, if an employee has any influence on transactions 
involving purchases, contracts, leases, etc., he or she must disclose the 
existence of any actual or potential conflict of interest as soon as possible to a 
manager so that safeguards can be established to protect all parties. 
 
Employees must not engage in any other employment or self-employment, or 
providing services to others, with or without compensation, during normal working 
hours. 
 
II. YOUR JOB 
 
Employment Classification 
 
An employee's classification is determined based upon the employee's regular hourly 
workweek with the Town of Colchester. While it does not alter the at-will nature of 
employment with the Town, an employee's classification is significant, as it determines 
what Town-provided benefits, if any, an employee is eligible to receive. 
 
The employment classifications for employees working for the Town of Colchester are 
as follows: 
 
A. Regular.  A regular employee is hired for “continuous” work and not hired to 
fulfill duties on a temporary or short-term basis. 
 
d.B. Temporary. A temporary employee is one who provides services to the Town of 
Colchester on an "as-needed," intermittent or seasonal basis. Temporary employees 
are not eligible for any benefits offered by the Town of Colchester.  
 
a.C. Full-time.  A full-time employee is one who has successfully completed a three (3) 
month probationary period of employment and who consistently is regularly scheduled 
works throughout the year for a minimum of thirty-five (35) hours per week. Full-time 
employees who meet all other qualifications required by the Town and/or its benefits 
provider(s), are eligible for all of the employee benefits offered by the Town, such as 

7



group insurance, holidays, vacation, sick leave, leaves of absence, and other benefits 
as set forth in this handbook. 
 
b.D. Part-time.  A part-time employee is one who has successfully completed a three 
(3) month probationary period of employement and who consistently works throughout 
the year is normally scheduled to work less than thirty-five (35) hours per week on a 
regular basis. Part-time employees are paid on an hourly or daily salary basis. There 
are two (2) different part-time classifications: 
 

1. Part-time employees who consistently are regularly scheduled to work a 
minimum of thirty (30) hours per week and who meet all other qualifications 
required by the Town are eligible to earn vacation, holidays, sick leave, paid 
time-off, longevity, and life insurance benefits and to participate in our IRA 
401(a) plan on a prorated basis as set forth in these personnel policies. 
Employees who consistently work a minimum of thirty (30) hours per week also 
receive the long-term disability benefit and may participate in the Town's 
Deferred Compensation 457 Plan as set forth in these personnel policies. 

 
2. Part-time employees who consistently work less than thirty (30) hours per 
week are not entitled to any fringe benefits offered by the Town, unless otherwise 
explicitly provided in this handbook and personnel policies. 

 
c.E. Probationary. During the first three months of any full-time or part-time employee's 
employment with the Town of Colchester, the employee will be considered a 
probationary employee. Probationary employees are not eligible for any benefits offered 
by the Town of Colchester. Sick leave, personal leave and vacation will accrue, but 
cannot be used, during probation this period. The probationary period for newly-
hired full-time or part-time employees may be waived with the permission of the 
First Selectman through a signed letter confirming such waiver. (NOTE: Option to 
waive waiting period will be added to a future section of the policy)  
 
F. Elected Official. An elected official is one who has been duly elected by the 
residents of the Town of Colchester or appointed to fill a vacancy and is 
otherwise considered a “full-time” employee as defined in this section.  The 
elected officials that this policy pertains to are solely the First Selectman, Town 
Clerk, and Tax Collector.  Elected officials are not subject to the three (3) month 
probationary period upon election or appointment.  Elected officials are eligible 
for all of the employee benefits offered by the Town, such as group insurance, 
vacation, holidays, sick leave, paid time-off, leaves of absence, and other benefits 
as set forth in these personnel policies effective the first day of the month 
immediately following their election or appointment.  Benefits provided to paid, 
full-time elected officials are to be determined by the Town of Colchester's Board 
of Selectmen and may be expanded or decreased as is deemed in the best 
interest of the Town. 
  

8



G. Exempt And Non-Exempt Status. Consistent with applicable federal and state 
wage and hour laws, employee classifications fall into one of two categories: 
“exempt” or “non-exempt.”  These terms are defined by the Fair Labor Standards 
Act, which is a federal law requiring that certain employees be paid at least the 
minimum wage and overtime for hours worked over 40 hours a week.  However, 
the law provides that some employees are “exempt” from this requirement, and 
therefore do not have to be paid a specific hourly wage or overtime.  You will be 
advised whether your position is an exempt or non-exempt position. 

 
Exempt: Exempt employees do not have any limits on the hours that may 
be worked in a given work or pay period.  They are expected to work the 
hours needed to accomplish their job responsibilities without receiving 
extra pay for overtime worked. 

 
Non-Exempt: Non-exempt employees are paid an hourly rate and are 
eligible for overtime pay at the rate of 1 ½ times their regular hourly rate of 
pay for hours worked in excess of 40 hours per work week. 

 
Employee Hiring and Dismissal (ADDED FROM CURRENT POLICY) 
 

Purpose 
  

The Town of Colchester Charter, Article IV The Board of Selectmen, § C-
402, C. “The appointment and dismissal of all Town employees shall be 
administered by the Board of Selectmen, but the Board of Selectmen may 
delegate such authority as is deemed necessary for the sound 
administration of Town government.” 

 
The Town of Colchester Charter, Article XIII Town Employees and 
Appointed Officials, § C-1301 “The appointment and dismissal of all Town 
employees, except those who are elected or are under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of Police Commissioners, shall be made by the Board of 
Selectmen, but the Board of Selectmen may delegate such authority as is 
deemed necessary for the sound administration of Town government. All 
appointments shall be made on the basis of merit and after examination of 
qualifications. The Board of Selectmen shall neither appoint nor dismiss 
Town employees associated with fire protection services except as 
recommended by the Fire Chief. Before the appointment or dismissal of 
any Town employee, the Board of Selectmen shall consult with the board, 
department or individual to whom the services of such employee are to be 
or have been rendered.” 

 
The purpose of this policy is to specify the Board of Selectmen’s 
delegation of authority for the hiring and dismissal of Town employees and 
joint Town/Board of Education (BOE) employees as it pertains to the 
language of the Town of Colchester charter. 

9



 
 
 
 
 

Town Employee Hiring and Dismissal 
 

The First Selectman shall hire and dismiss employees of the town, with the 
exception of employees whose employment is otherwise provided by law 
(i.e. elected officials), and department heads.  For the purposes of this 
policy, department heads are: Assessor, Building Official, CHVFD Chief, 
Cragin Memorial Library Director, Public Works Director, Recreation 
Manager, Senior Center Director, Town Engineer, Town Planner/Planning 
Director, and Youth & Social Services Director. 

  
The Board of Selectmen shall be given notice of all full-time and part-time 
employees who are hired or dismissed by the First Selectman prior to the 
next Board of Selectmen meeting immediately following the hire or 
dismissal. This notification requirement to the Board of Selectmen shall not 
apply to per-diem or temporary/seasonal employee hiring or dismissal 
actions. 

 
At either of its next two meetings following such hiring or dismissal 
notification to an employee, the Board of Selectmen, by a majority vote, 
may request a review of the decision to hire or dismiss and confirm or 
reverse the decision of the make a recommendation to the First Selectman. 
The authority to hire and dismiss department heads and employees whose 
employment is otherwise provided by law rests solely with the Board of 
Selectmen. 

 
  

Joint Town/Board of Education Employee Hiring and Dismissal 
 

Joint Town/Board of Education employees, including department heads 
serving as joint employees, may be hired or dismissed following the 
approval of the Board of Selectmen and Board of Education by majority 
vote or by the BOE its designee. The Chief Financial Officer’s hiring and 
dismissal shall be processed per the Town of Colchester Charter. 

 
 
Termination of Employment 
 
Termination of employment is an inevitable part of personnel activity within any 
organization, and many of the reasons for termination are routine.  Below are 
examples of some of the most common circumstances under which employment 
is terminated: 
 

10



    Resignation: voluntary employment termination initiated by an employee. 
 

    Discharge: involuntary employment termination initiated by the employer. 
 

   Layoff:  involuntary employment termination initiated by the employer that 
is generally not for disciplinary reasons. 

 
Some benefits may be continued at the employee's expense if the employee so 
chooses.  The employee will be notified in writing of the benefits that may be 
continued and of the terms, conditions, and limitations of such continuance. 
 
Notice 
We hope that you will remain with the Town; however, should you decide to 
resign, we request that you provide two weeks advance notice to your supervisor 
(in writing).    
 
 
Return of Equipment/Supplies 
 
Prior to the end of the last day of work the employee must return all Town 
equipment and property to his/her supervisor.  This includes, but is not limited to, 
the return of all uniforms, credit cards, badges, and keys.  Terminating employees 
are required to settle any outstanding debts prior to the last day of employment. 
 
  
Benefits Continuation (COBRA) 
Federal law may allow employees and their dependents who are covered by our 
health insurance program to temporarily continue that coverage following certain 
qualifying events (such as termination of employment), when health coverage 
would otherwise end.   
 
 
Employee Relations 
 
We have an open door policy.  There may be times when you will have a 
constructive suggestion or a complaint to make.  There also may be times when a 
difference of opinion will arise between you and another employee or your 
supervisor.  We encourage you to bring any questions, suggestions, and 
complaints to our attention.  We will give careful consideration to each of these in 
our continuing effort to improve our operations. 
 
We are committed to open and honest discussion of employee problems and 
concerns raised in good faith without fear of retaliation.  The best way to clarify a 
misunderstanding, solve a problem, or resolve a difference of opinion is to 
discuss the matter directly with the other person(s).  If the matter goes 
unresolved, we believe that the following procedure will ensure that complaints 
receive full consideration.  Should an unsatisfactory situation arise concerning the 

11



terms and conditions of your employment, it is important that you bring it to the 
attention of the appropriate person according to the following procedure: 
 

Step 1 - Talk to your supervisor within 15 working days of event.  It is your 
supervisor's responsibility to ensure that any complaint received is given 
prompt attention. 

 
Step 2 - In the event you feel the problem remains unresolved after 
discussing it with your supervisor, (or if your issue directly involves your 
supervisor), you are encouraged to meet with the Department Head within 15 
working days of event or non-resolution.  The Department Head has 15 
working days to respond to employee. 

 
Step 3 - If you still feel that your problem/complaint remains unresolved, you 
may request a meeting with the First Selectman within 15 working days of 
non-resolution and First Selectman has 15 working days to respond to the 
employee. 

 
 
Performance Appraisal 
 
Ongoing communication between employees and supervisors to establish goals, 
clarify job accountabilities, and determine performance standards is the key to 
effectively managing performance, ensuring that employees have the tools to be 
successful in their jobs and ultimately ensuring the success of the Town.  The 
performance management and appraisal process provides an ongoing means of 
communication between supervisors and employees resulting in an annual 
written performance appraisal.  Appraisals are prepared based on the 
performance activities of the past year. 
 
Performance appraisals will include a summary of the employee’s performance 
that is measured against job accountabilities description, performance standards 
and specific goals, and objectives during the performance period.  The appraisal 
will also be used to create goals and career development objectives for the new 
performance period. 
 
Your job performance and your ability to comply with policies and practices 
directly affect your career advancement, your pay, and your continued 
employment. 
 
 
Development Opportunities 
  
The Town of Colchester is committed to providing employees opportunities for 
individual growth and development in their jobs.  You should accept the 
challenge to grow and develop in your job.  The Town will provide you with the 

12



opportunity for training, future growth, and career development.  By the same 
token, it is expected that employees will take an active approach in self-
improvement by seeking out educational and training opportunities, with the 
approval of their department head.   
 
 
 
Attendance 
 
The Town of Colchester relies on all of its employees to report to work regularly and on 
time. If an employee is going to be late or absent, he or she must contact his or her 
supervisor immediately. If an employee has to leave work early, he or she must obtain 
advance approval from his or her supervisor.  
 
The Town will take disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, where an 
employee's attendance is unacceptable or where an employee fails to comply with the 
above notice requirements. 
 
You are important to our success, and each job is important to the smooth 
operation of our Town.  Reporting to work on time, continuing to work until the 
end of the workday, and being at work on a regular and consistent basis is 
expected of each employee.  Your attendance and punctuality record directly 
affects your performance evaluations, your opportunities for advancement and 
your continued employment. 
 
The Town does not tolerate unexcused absences.  An excused absence means 
that you have requested and received your supervisor’s permission to be absent 
for a certain day.  An “unexcused absence” is defined as all other absences when 
your supervisor has not approved the time off or where you have failed to make 
appropriate attempts to contact your supervisor.  With the exception of 
extenuating circumstances, more than three unexcused absences in a year will 
result in discipline up to and including discharge.  Consecutive absences may be 
treated as one incident. 
 
If you are absent from work for three (3) consecutive work days and fail to 
properly call in to your supervisor, you will be considered to have voluntarily 
resigned abandoned your job and may be subject to termination. 
 
If it should become necessary for you to be late or absent, you are required to 
inform your supervisor as soon as possible.  Speak directly with your supervisor. 
It is also expected that you will notify your supervisor in advance to request time 
off unless it is a case of illness or unexpected emergency situation.  Calling in to 
say that you are taking vacation time or time off for some other reason that could 
have been scheduled in advance is not acceptable. 
 

13



Even if reported and excused, absenteeism and tardiness that becomes 
excessive places a heavy burden on other employees.  What is “excessive 
absenteeism”?  Employees are provided with vacation, personal, and sick time.  
Absences in excess of this time are considered excessive – such situations will 
be addressed by disciplinary action and possibly termination of employment. 
However, excessive absenteeism does not include approved and documented 
leaves of absence, jury duty, military duty, approved and scheduled vacation 
time, or bereavement leave taken within Town guidelines.  Excessive 
absenteeism will result in discipline up to and including discharge. 
 
Tardiness is not acceptable.  Excessive tardiness is subject to disciplinary action. 
 
 
Lunch and Breaks 
 
Lunch times and length of lunch periods are to be determined by department 
management, in accordance with applicable labor laws.  You may not forego your 
lunch period in order to shorten your workday, unless authorized by your 
supervisor.  Employees are expected to work up to the start of the lunch period 
and be at their workstations ready to work at the end of the lunch period. 
 
 
Personnel Records 
 
Each employee is responsible for updating personnel information with the First 
Selectman Human Resources Office, in writing, when there is a change in the 
employee's address, telephone number, marital status, emergency contact, or number 
and names of dependents. 
 
Tax information must be kept current. W-4 forms are available in the Payroll Department 
Human Resources Office throughout the year.  
 
A personnel file will be maintained by the First Selectman Human Resources Office on 
each employee of the Town of Colchester and may contain any or all of the following 
items: 
 

1. Employment application, resume, letters of reference; 
2. Correspondence and agreements regarding employment with the Town of 

Colchester; 
3. Copies of any evaluations; 
4. Requests for vacation, leave, personal days and all other authorized 

absences; 
5. Copies of all correspondence or other records relating to employment, 

promotion, discipline, dismissal or resignation; 
6. Authorizations for withholding monies from pay for any lawful purpose; 
7. Authorizations for pay changes signed by the First Selectman. 

 

14



All records maintained by the First Selectman Human Resources Office are the 
property of the Town of Colchester and subject to the State's Record Retention 
Requirements, and the requirements of the Connecticut Freedom of Information Act. 
Employees may view their personnel files at mutually agreeable times. When reviewed, 
personnel files may not be taken from the Human Resources Office and must be 
reviewed with the supervision of an employee of the Human Resources Office. 
 
 
 
III. YOUR PAY AND BENEFITS 
 
Your Paycheck 
 
All employees are paid on a bi-weekly basis.  All required deductions for federal, 
state or local taxes, and all authorized voluntary deductions such as health or 
dental plans, 401(a), 457, etc. are withheld from your paycheck.  All paychecks 
will be directly deposited into your personal checking or savings account(s). 
 
 
Non-exempt Employee Pay 
 
If you are classified as a non-exempt employee, you must maintain a record of the 
total hours you work each day.  These hours must be accurately recorded on a 
time card that will be provided to you by your supervisor.  Your time card must 
accurately reflect all regular and overtime hours worked, any absences, late 
arrivals, early departures, and meal breaks.  Any absences will be verified by the 
employee and their supervisor and coded properly on the time card for payroll 
and record keeping purposes. 
 
Unless you are authorized by your supervisor, You should not work any hours 
that are not authorized by your supervisor.  Do not start work early, finish work 
late, work during a meal break or perform any other extra or overtime work unless 
you are authorized to do so and that time is recorded on your time card.  
Employees are prohibited from performing any "off-the-clock" work.  "Off-the-
clock" work means work you may perform but fail to report on your time card.  
Any employee who fails to report or inaccurately reports any hours worked will 
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 
 
It is a violation of the Town’s policy for any employee to falsify a time card, or to 
alter another employee's time card.  It is also a serious violation of Town policy 
for any employee or supervisor to instruct another employee to incorrectly or 
falsely report hours worked or alter another employee's time card to under- or 
over-report hours worked.  If any supervisor or employee instructs you to (1) 
incorrectly or falsely under- or over-report your hours worked, or (2) alter another 
employee's time records to inaccurately or falsely report that employee's hours 
worked, you should report it immediately to the Human Resources Office. 
 

15



  
Exempt Employee Pay 
 
If you are classified as an exempt salaried employee, with work hours specified in 
the relevant job description, you will receive a salary that is intended to 
compensate you for all hours you may work for the Town.  This salary will be 
established at the time of hire or when you become classified as an exempt 
employee.  While it may be subject to review and modification from time to time, 
such as during salary review times, the salary will be a predetermined amount 
that will not be subject to deductions for variations in the quantity or quality of 
the work you perform. 
 
Exempt employees must complete a bi-weekly time card and is are responsible 
for maintaining a record of time off taken due to vacation, illness, bereavement, 
etc. 
 
Your wages may be reduced for certain types of deductions such as your portion 
of the insurance premiums; state, federal or local taxes; social security; or, 
voluntary contributions to a 401(a) and/or 457 plan.   
 
 
Reporting Paycheck Concerns 
 
If you believe you have been subject to any improper deductions or your pay 
does not accurately reflect your hours worked, you should immediately report the 
matter to Payroll.  If Payroll is unavailable, you should immediately contact the 
Human Resources Office.   
 
In the event that your paycheck is lost or stolen, please notify your supervisor 
immediately or the Payroll Department.   
 
  
Overtime 
 
Non-exempt employees will be paid at the rate of time and one-half their regular 
hourly rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a 
workweek. For the purpose of calculating overtime, hours not worked but 
credited to an eligible, non-exempt employee include: holidays, paid sick leave, 
and vacation days. All overtime work must be authorized in advance by the 
employee's supervisor. 
 
 
Benefits 
 
The Town of Colchester provides the following benefits to full-time employees, as 
defined in these personnel policies. The Town of Colchester also provides pro-rated 

16



benefits as well as others as outlined in this policy to employees who work no less than 
30 hours per week, excluding health insurance. The Town of Colchester reserves the 
right to modify or eliminate any benefits from time to time in its sole discretion, and 
without prior notice to employees. The Town will provide such notice of benefit changes 
as is practical at the time of the change. Should any statement contained herein conflict 
with the terms of any actual benefit plan or contract, including any individual 
employment contract, the terms of such plan or contract shall prevail. 
 
Paid, full-time, elected Officials (First Selectman, Town Clerk, Tax Collector) are 
provided medical and dental benefits, long-term disability (LTD), as outlined in these 
policies, and may also participate in the Town's Deferred Compensation Plan. Benefits 
provided to paid, full-time elected officials are to be determined by the Town of 
Colchester's Board of Selectmen and may be expanded or decreased as is deemed in 
the best interest of the Town. 
 
 
Holidays 
 
Eligible Full-time employees and part-time employees regularly scheduled to work at 
least thirty (30) hours per week shall observe the following holidays off with pay 
annually: 
 

1. ½ Day New Year's Eve 
2. New Year's Day 
3. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 
4. Presidents' Birthday 
5. Good Friday 
6. Memorial Day 
7. Independence Day 
8. Labor Day 
9. Columbus Day 
10. Thanksgiving Day 
11. Day After Thanksgiving 
12. Veterans' Day  
13. ½ Day Christmas Eve 
14. Christmas Day 
15. One (1) Floating Holiday 

 
Employees eligible for holidays off with pay shall be paid for the hours they were 
regularly scheduled to work on the holiday a work day.  ,if they Eligible employees 
must work their full schedule on the first regularly scheduled work day immediately prior 
to the holiday and on the first regularly scheduled workday immediately following the 
holiday, or if they were be on an approved paid leave of absence with pay for such 
days. 
 

17



Regular, part-time employees who are consistently scheduled to work at least 
twenty (20) hours per week shall be eligible for holidays off with pay and 
according to the preceding guidelines. 
  
For the purpose of calculating overtime, hours credited to an eligible full-time employee 
for holiday pay will be considered as hours worked. If a holiday falls on a Saturday or 
Sunday it will be observed on the preceding Friday or the following Monday, at the sole 
discretion of the Town. 
 
 
 
Vacations 
 
All regular employees who work at least 20 30 hours per week will receive their 
vacation time on January 1st of each year, based on the prior year's accrual. 
Employees presently will accrue vacation days based on completed years of service as 
follows: 
 
 

Years of Completed, 
Continuous Full-Time 
Employment     Annual Vacation 

 
After 1 year     One week (5 working days) 
After 2 years     Two weeks (10 working days) 
After 7 years     Three weeks (15 working days) 
After 14 years    Four weeks (20 working days) 

 
 
  0 – less than six months   0 days 
  6 mos – 1 yr     3 days 
  1 year     10 days 
  2 years    11 days 
  3 years    12 days 
  4 years    13 days 
  5 years    15 days 
  6 years    16 days 
  7 years    17 days 
  8 years    18 days 
  9 years    19 days 
  10 years    20 days 
  More than 10 years  20 days 
 
 
 

18



Part-time employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least thirty (30) hours per 
week shall earn vacation on a pro-rated basis, but such employees shall, in no case, be 
entitled to more than two (2) weeks of vacation per year.  Part-time employees who 
are regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week shall earn 
vacation on a pro-rated basis, but such employees shall, in no case, be entitled to 
more than one (1) week of vacation per year. 
 
Full-time employees do not accrue or earn vacation benefits during unpaid leaves of 
absence when the leave lasts longer than 30 days. In such a situation, the An 
unpaid leave of absence will be deducted from the employee's total continuous years of 
service for the purpose of determining vacation entitlement. 
 
In the event a paid Town holiday falls within an employee's scheduled vacation period, 
that holiday will not count as an employee vacation day.  
 
Employees who request vacation time must complete a Time-Off Request Form 
(available in the Human Resources Office).  Vacation time must be pre-approved 
by the employee’s immediate supervisor.  Normally, individual vacation days will 
be requested three or more days in advance. In case of emergency or unusual 
circumstances, less notice may be given for vacation request. 
 
Any employee may take vacation days in conjunction with personal leave days, holidays 
or sick leave.  
 
Assignment of vacation time off will be based on the operational needs of the 
Town. 
 
Employees who work 30 hours or more and qualify for vacation benefits will be allowed 
to may carry over accrued unused vacation days to a maximum accumulation of 30 
days no more than 10 vacation days per year one year’s worth of allotted vacation 
leave.  Carryover of more than 10 vacation days one’s annual vacation allotment 
per year must be approved by the employee’s supervisor and the First Selectman. 
 
Upon termination or retirement, each employee will be paid for accrued vacation at 
his/her current base rate of pay. 
 
The First Selectman can grant newly-hired employees more vacation, than the 
above table allots, at his/her discretion, with the consent of the Board of 
Selectmen. 
 
Joint Town/Board of Education employees’ vacation time is accounted for on a 
fiscal year basis. 
 
 
Medical and Dental Insurance 
 

19



Each full-time employee may currently elect single, two-person or family coverage 
under one of the following medical plans: 

 
1. Century Preferred Managed Care Plan 
2. Blue Care Managed Care Plan 

 
All references in this Policy to types of benefits are solely for the purposes of description 
and identification, and in all cases the terms and provisions of insurance policies 
themselves shall govern any claim. The Town currently provides a copy of the 
insurance plans to all employees covered by this Policy. 
 
Employees shall be given the opportunity to change their election of a plan on an 
annual basis only. All full-time employees may elect to receive group insurance 
coverage provided by the Town for their employee group.  Whenever the Town 
changes the group insurance plans or contributions, employees of the affected 
group shall be given written notification of such change.  Detailed descriptions of 
the group insurance plans are available at the Human Resources Office. 
 
The benefit choices you make during the annual open enrollment period take 
effect July 1 and remain in effect until June 30 each year.  After July 1, you may 
only make changes to your benefits if you notify Human Resources within 30 
days of a qualifying event.  A qualifying event is a change in an employee’s or 
dependent’s status that results in a gain or loss of coverage or coverage options.  
The election change must be consistent with the change in status. 
 
The Town may change insurance carriers or modify the insurance policies described in 
this section at any time in its sole discretion and without prior notice to employees. The 
Town will provide such notice of benefit changes as is practical at the time of the 
change. 
 
Each eligible employee shall contribute, through weekly payroll deduction, seven and 
one-half percent (7.5%) of the monthly premium cost for individual, two-person or family 
medical benefit coverage for the Century Preferred Plan and seven and one-half 
percent (7.5%) for the monthly premium cost for individual, two-person or family medical 
benefit coverage for dental benefits. The Town contributes one hundred percent (100%) 
of the monthly premium cost for individual, two-person or family coverage for the Blue 
Care Managed Care Plan. The preceding contribution rates are subject to change 
without prior notice to employees. The Town will provide such notice of change as is 
practical at the time of the change. 
 
The Town currently maintains a plan under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code 
for the purpose of permitting employees to make their premium contributions on a pre-
tax basis, to the extent provided by law.  
 
The Town, in its sole discretion, may elect to implement a program of cost containment 
procedures, including, but not limited to pre-admission review, admission planning 

20



services, admission and continued stay review, second surgical opinions and hospital 
bill audits. Prior to implementing any such program, the town will provide information 
sessions for employees. For non-Medicare eligible employees who have been 
employed by the Town of Colchester for a minimum of 10 years, who retire on or after 
July 1, 2000, medical coverage for the most cost-effective plan offered to Town 
employees shall be provided for the retiree and the retiree's spouse at the group rate for 
such benefits for a period not to exceed five (5) years or upon the retiree's eligibility for 
Medicare with the cost of the monthly premium paid by the retiree. Once an employee 
opts out of such plan coverage, he or she will not be eligible for readmission.  
 
At such time as a retiree who retires on or after July 1, 2000 becomes eligible for 
Medicare, the Town shall provide for Medicare risk plan coverage as an alternative to 
Medicare with the cost of the monthly premium paid by the retiree as long as such plans 
are available to the Town. 
 
Long-Term Disability (LTD) 
 
An regular employee who works a minimum of 30 hours per week who is disabled for a 
period of 90 days due to an accident or sickness that is not compensable under the 
Worker's Compensation Act and who has exhausted all of his/her paid leave benefits 
shall be eligible for weekly accident/sickness disability insurance payments up to sixty 
percent (60%) of his/her base rate at the time of disability, to a maximum of two 
thousand dollars ($2,000) per month until age 65.  These benefits will be offset by 
weekly worker’s compensation benefits (not to include specific indemnity benefits 
covering specific loss or disfigurement), and other state or federally-mandated benefits 
the employee receives.  In no instance shall such benefits being until after 90 days of 
disability. 
 
Joint Town/Board of Education employees shall be eligible for weekly 
accident/sickness disability insurance payments up to sixty percent (60%) of 
his/her base rate at the time of disability, to a maximum of six thousand dollars 
($6,000) per month until age 65. 
 
 
Individual Retirement Account 401(a) Plan  
Full-time employees, are eligible to receive an I.R.A. plan contributed to, by the town, in 
an institution of the town's choice. 
 
After one year of continuous employment, the town contributes into the I.A.A. plan for 
full time employees based on the base wages (excluding overtime, longevity and any 
other pay on top of base pay) is three percent (3%). This contribution percentage 
increases to four (4%) at the beginning of the fiscal year following completion of the first 
four continuous years of service by the employee. As of July 1, 2000 this contribution 
percentage increases to five (5%) at the beginning of the fiscal year following 
completion of the six continuous years of service by the employee.  
 

21



It is the responsibility of the employee to abide by all I.R.S. guidelines concerning their 
I.A.A. Participation in this plan is subject to any and all requirements set forth in 
applicable laws, as the same may be amended from time to time. 
 
As of July 1, 2000 part-time employees working at least thirty hours per week on a 
continuous basis are eligible to receive an I.A.A. plan, contributed to, by the town, in an 
institution of the town's choice. 
 
After one year of continuous employment, the town contributes into the I.R.A. plan for 
thirty hour a week employees based on the base wages (excluding overtime, longevity 
and any other pay on top of base pay) is two percent (2%). This contribution percentage 
increases to three (3%) at the beginning of the fiscal year following completion of the 
first four continuous years of service by the employee. This contribution percentage 
increases to four (4%) at the beginning of the fiscal year following completion of the six 
continuous years of service by the employee. 
 
It is the responsibility of the employee to abide by all I.R.S. guidelines  concerning their 
I.R.A. Participation in this plan is subject to any and all requirements set forth in 
applicable laws, as, the same, may be amended from time to time. 
 
An employee may, in writing, request, if they are eligible, to have the town's I.R.A. 
contribution put into their existing 457 Deferred Compensation Plan instead of the I.R.A. 
 
The I.R.A. accounts cannot be closed by the employees without prior 
approval. 
 
Employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least thirty-five (35) hours per 
week, have the option to participate in a Section 401(a) Plan after the end of 
his/her probationary period.  For those who choose to participate, the Town and 
the employee will each contribute 6% of base pay (not including overtime, 
longevity, etc.) beginning on the employee's first day after the probationary 
period concludes. Employee contributions will be made on a pre-tax basis. The 
combined contribution by the Town and the Employee will not exceed the 
maximum allowed by law per year. Employees can voluntarily contribute more 
than the maximum percentages quoted above on an after tax-basis subject to 
annual limits allowed by law including pre-tax employer and employee 
contributions.   
 
For those employees who chose not to participate in the Section 401(a) Plan, the 
employee will not receive any matching contribution from the Town. 
 
Part-time employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least thirty (30) 
hours per week are eligible to participate in a Section 401(a) Plan after the end of 
his/her probationary period. The Town and the employee will each contribute 3% 
of base pay (not including overtime, longevity, etc.) beginning on the employee's 
first day after the probationary period concludes. Rules regulating full-time 

22



employees with regards to this plan shall govern part-time employees as well. 
Employees that are eligible to participate in the Town’s 401(a) Plan are subject to 
a five (5)–year vesting period, whereby the employee attains twenty percent (20%) 
rights to the Town’s contributions each year to a total of one hundred percent 
(100%) at the completion of five (5) years of employment with the Town.   
 
All employees hired prior to the adoption of this policy are considered 100% 
vested. 
 
 
457 Deferred Compensation Plan  
 
Each All full- and part-time employees has have the option of participating in 
contributing to the Town's Deferred Compensation Plan under Section 457 Plan of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. after their probationary period concludes. The 
Town will not make matching contributions to the 457 Plan. An employee, who 
wishes to participate in this plan, will be given both company representative 
names to contact with their questions. 
 
 
Life Insurance   
All regular, full-time, non-exempt employees who work at least thirty-five (35) hours 
per week are provided group life insurance in the amount ranging from $20,000 to of 
$50,000, as of July 1, 2000, depending on an employee’s classification and bargaining 
unit status. 
 
Full-time, exempt employees are provided group life insurance in the amount of 
$60,000.  
 
Part-time employees working at least thirty hours per week, as of July 1, 2000, are 
provided group life insurance in the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000).  
 
Joint Town/Board of Education employees are provided group life insurance in 
the amount of their annual base salary. 
 
Other life insurance amounts than the amounts listed here may be dictated by 
union contract. 
 
 
Longevity Bonus 
 
Employees hired on the date of or after the adoption of this handbook and 
personnel policy manual are not eligible for longevity bonuses. 
 
Full-time employees of the Town of Colchester, who have completed five (5) years of 
continuous, full-time employment with the Town, are eligible for the following yearly 

23



longevity bonus, determined by the employee's length of continuous full-time service 
with the Town as of July 1 of each year: 
 

Years of Completed, 
Continuous, Full-Time   Yearly 
Employment     Amount 
6 - 9th year    $450 
10 - 14th year   $500 
15 - 19th year   $600 
20th year and over   $750 

 
Employees who work no less than 30 hours per week, who have completed five (5) 
years of continuous full-time employment with the Town are eligible for a longevity 
bonus on a pro-rated basis. 
 

Years of Completed, 
Continuous, Full-Time   Yearly 
Employment     Amount 

 
6-9th Year    $386 
10-14th year    $430 
15-1 9th year    $515 
20th year and over   $600 

 
Longevity bonuses will be paid in July of each fiscal year to eligible employees. 
 
Any unpaid leave of absence will be deducted from the employee's total continuous 
years of service for the purpose of determining the employee's eligibility for a longevity 
bonus. 
 
Other longevity rules and rates may be dictated by union contract. 
 
 
Performance Incentive 
 
Non-union employees hired on or after the adoption of this handbook and 
personnel policy manual are eligible for an annual performance bonus. 
 
Non-union employees hired prior to the adoption of this handbook and personnel 
policy manual must opt out of the longevity bonus program permanently to be 
eligible for the annual performance bonus.   
 
Eligibility and receipt of performance bonuses is at the discretion of the First 
Selectman and with the approval of the Board of Selectmen. 
 
 

24



 
Leaves of Absence 
 

Personal Days 
 

Regular, Full-time employees who have completed three (3) months of 
continuous full-time employment their probationary period with the Town of 
Colchester will receive four (4) personal days each year on January 1st of the 
following year. Employees who work no less than thirty (30) hour per week 
receive personal days on a prorated basis - 2 personal days each year on 
January 1st of the following year.  

  
New employees hires will have personal days prorated as follows:  

 
 
FULL TIME EMPLOYEES: 

 
Start Date 
January 1 - March 31:   3 Days 
April 1 - June 30:   2 Days 
July 1 - September 30:  1 Day 
October 1 - December 31:   0 Day 

 
PART TIME (30 hour) EMPLOYEES: 

  
  Start Date  

January 1 - June 30:  1 Day 
July 1 - December 31:  0 Day 

 
Employees must use their personal days in the year earned. Under no 
circumstances will employees be permitted to accumulate personal days from 
one year to the next. The Town of Colchester does not reimburse, or in any other 
manner compensate, employees for unused personal leave days upon 
termination of employment. Employees forfeit all unused personal days at the 
expiration of each calendar year.  

 
It is the responsibility of the employee to submit a written request to his or her 
supervisor to take a personal leave day The First Selectman, on 
recommendation of the employee's supervisor, shall decide whether to grant an 
employee's request to take a personal leave day. Personal leave is to be used 
solely for the purpose of conducting personal business, which cannot be 
transacted outside of work hours (i.e. house closings, court appearances). Such 
request(s) shall not be unreasonably denied.  and permission to take such a 
personal leave day is contingent upon the supervisor’s approval.  

 
 

25



 
Sick Leave 

 
Regular full-time employees accrue paid sick leave at the rate of one (1) working 
day for each month of continuous, full-time employment with the Town of 
Colchester. No sick leave credit shall be earned for partial months of service. 
Full-time employees may accumulate up to sixty (60) days of paid sick leave, 
which may be carried over from year to year. 

 
Part-time employees who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of thirty 
(30) hours per week accrue paid sick leave on a prorated basis at a rate of 3.50 
days hours a month for each month of such continuous part-time employment 
with the Town of Colchester to a cap of forty (40) hours per year. No sick leave 
credit shall be earned for partial months of service.  Part-time employees who 
are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of thirty (30) hours per week 
may carry over unused sick time but cannot use more than forty (40) hours 
in a year. 

 
In adherence to current State and Federal law, all part-time employees who 
regularly work less than thirty (30) hours per week and more than 10 hours 
per week are entitled to earn one (1) hour of paid sick leave for every forty 
(40) hours worked.  Part-time employees may carry over sick leave but 
cannot use more than forty (40) hours in a year.  Such employees must 
work at least 680 hours before accrued, paid sick leave is available for use.  
If such an employee has vacated their position or no longer works for the 
Town of Colchester but returns for work on a consistent basis, any accrued 
sick time will be eliminated and accrual will re-start upon hiring, but any 
previous amount of hours worked will be retained.   

 
Any employee who is sick absent for three (3) or more consecutive working days 
must may be required to submit a physician's statement to his/her their 
supervisor documenting the reason for the absence, as well as expected date on 
which the employee will return to work. The Town of Colchester reserves the 
right, in its sole discretion, to require a physician's statement in other 
circumstances, including but not limited to cases of suspected abuse of sick 
leave benefits. In the event that any employee is unable to report to work, he or 
she they must notify his or her their supervisor of that fact prior to the start of the 
employee's scheduled work day, or as soon as possible thereafter. Eligibility of 
an employee to receive paid sick leave is contingent upon the employee’s 
compliance with granted only if the employee meets the advance notice 
requirement and the employer's request for production of a physician's statement 
and only after 40 hours of accrued sick time has been used in a calendar 
year. Exceptions are allowed for extenuating circumstances. 

 
For the purpose of bridging the ninety (90) day waiting period for Long Term 
Disability (LTD) insurance, employees may accumulate up to 30 additional days 

26



of sick leave which can also be drawn from in special circumstances involving 
serious health conditions at the discretion of the First Selectman unless 
otherwise specified in collective bargaining agreements. 

 
 Employment Protection for Victims of Domestic Violence 
 

Employees who are victims of domestic violence shall not be terminated, 
penalized, threatened, or coerced with respect to their employment 
because the employee: (1) is a victim of family violence; or (2) attends or 
participates in civil court proceedings related to a case in which they are a 
family violence victim.  Employees who are victims of family violence shall 
be allowed to take paid or unpaid leave to: (a) seek medical care or 
counseling for physical or psychological injury or disability; (b) obtain 
services from a victim services organization; (c) relocate due to the family 
violence; or (d) participate in any civil or criminal proceeding related to or 
resulting from such family violence.  The Town can limit the unpaid leave to 
twelve (12) days in a calendar year if they deem it is necessary. 

 
Bereavement leave 

 
All regular employees are eligible for bereavement leave.  In the event of a 
death in an full-time employee’s immediate family, leave with pay not to exceed 
three (3) consecutive days, the employee will receive up to three days 
bereavement pay, beginning with the date of death (or miscarriage) and ending 
with and/or the including the day after the funeral or final services. "Immediate 
family" includes the employee's spouse, civil union partner, parent, step 
parent, sibling, child, step-child, grandparent, grandchild, mother-in- law, father-
in-law or any other relative who is living in the employee's household.  For 
miscarriages, bereavement leave is available only for the affected woman 
or spouse. 

 
Additional bereavement leave without pay may be given to a full-time employee 
at the discretion of the First Selectman, upon recommendation of the employee's 
supervisor. 

 
All full-time employees shall be granted bereavement leave with pay for a 
maximum of one (1) day to attend the funeral or final services of a brother-in-law, 
sister-in-law, niece, nephew, uncle, or aunt. 

 
If a death in an employee's family occurs, the employee must notify his or her 
their supervisor as to the anticipated length of the employee's absence as soon 
as possible. The Town may require the employee to submit reasonable proof of 
death and/or funeral date. 

 
Military Leave 

 

27



Military leave will be provided in accordance with the applicable federal and 
state law. Employees must present any available documentation regarding call-
up for service at their earliest opportunity in order to provide appropriate notice to 
the Town. 

 
Jury Duty 

 
The Town of Colchester considers jury duty to be your civic responsibility.  
You must submit a copy of your official summons to your supervisor as 
soon as it is received.  In addition, proof of service must be submitted to 
your supervisor when you have completed serving. 

 
In accord with current Connecticut law, the Town will pay you your regular 
wages or salary for the first five days of jury duty leave.  Thereafter the 
state currently reimburses at the rate of $50 per day of service.  The Town 
will pay you the difference between your regular base pay and the pay you 
receive from the court for jury duty.  To accomplish this, the Town will 
continue your regular pay while you are serving, and you will provide 
copies of your jury duty paychecks to the Town upon receipt. 

 
You will also be paid for court appearances related to Town business; 
however such appearances must be compulsory for you to be paid, (or you 
may apply personal time). 
 
Childbirth Leave 

 
An employee who becomes pregnant shall notify her supervisor at least four (4) 
months prior to the employee's expected date of delivery. Such employee shall 
receive a leave of absence without pay for the reasonable period of physical 
disability due to childbirth. Except in the case of unusual medical difficulties, as 
verified by a physician's statement, such leave is expected not to exceed six (6) 
weeks after delivery. The Town of Colchester will comply with the provisions of 
the Family and Medical Leave Act when applicable to an eligible employee. The 
Town's Family and Medical Leave Policy is set forth in this policy manual. 
 
Full-time employees may be eligible for pro-rated paid leave of absence for 
the reasonable period of physical disability due to childbirth.  Eligible, full-
time employees are expected to use banked paid leave (i.e. vacation, sick, 
and personal leave) time during their FMLA leave period.  If an employee 
does not have four or more weeks of banked paid leave, the Town will pay 
the difference of banked leave, up to four weeks of paid maternity leave, 
commencing from the first day of maternity leave.  Eligible employees are 
expected to withhold using banked paid leave within the year of expected 
childbirth for such use.  If an eligible employee exhausts their banked paid 
leave prior to taking FMLA leave for childbirth, the Town will not be 
responsible for paying the employee the full four-week benefit. 

28



 
Upon return to work, the employee shall be assigned to her former position, if 
such position is available, or to a position of equivalent pay and benefits. 
Maternity Childbirth leave shall be treated the same as any other short-term 
disability and, therefore, will be paid to the extent of earned accumulated sick 
leave. The employee must contact her supervisor at least thirty (30) two (2) 
weeks prior to the end of such leave stating the employee's intention to return or 
not return to work. 

 
 Newborn Leave 
 

Employees whose spouse or partner has given birth are eligible for up to 
three days paid leave.  This leave shall commence the day of childbirth and 
continue for two business days thereafter. 

 
Family and Medical Leave 

 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for leaves taken by 
employees of the Town of Colchester under the Federal Family and Medical 
Leave Act (FMLA) of 1993 including any subsequent updates to the law. 

 
Eligibility: 

 
Employees who have worked for the Town of Colchester for at least twelve (12) 
months and who have worked at least 1,250 actual hours during the twelve (12) 
months immediately preceding the start of a leave, are eligible for unpaid leave 
under the FMLA. 

 
Reasons for Leave: 
 
Leaves under the FMLA may be taken for the following reasons: 
 
1. (a) Birth and/or care of the employee's newborn child; 
2. (b) The placement of a child with the employee by adoption or for foster care; 
3. (c) To care for the employee's spouse, child or parent who has a serious 

health condition as defined by the federal Family and Medical Leave Act; or 
4. (d) To care for the employee's own serious health condition defined by the 

federal Family and Medical Leave Act that renders the employee unable to 
perform the function of his or her position. 

 
Length of Leave 
 
If a leave is requested for one of the above-listed reasons, each eligible 
employee may take up to a total of twelve (12) weeks unpaid family or medical 
leave in any 12-month entitlement period, or 24 weeks within a two year 
period. Some exceptions do apply to the rule listed in the previous 

29



sentence, please consult Human Resources for details. In appropriate 
circumstances, the Town may designate an absence as FMLA leave without a 
request from the employee.  

 
The 12-month entitlement period for a family or medical leave is measured from 
the initial date of an employee's first leave under this policy. 

 
 Military Family Leave Entitlements 
 

Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty 
or call to-active-duty status in the National Guard or Reserves in support of 
a contingency operation may use their 12-week leave to address certain 
qualifying events. Qualifying events may include attending certain military 
events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and 
legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, and attending 
post-deployment reintegration briefings. 

 
FMLA includes a special leave entitlement that permits eligible employees 
to take up to twenty-six (26) weeks of leave to care for a covered service 
member during a single twelve (12)-month period.   A covered service 
member is a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of 
the National Guard or Reserves, who has a serious injury or illness 
incurred in the line of duty while on active duty that may render the service 
member medically unfit to perform their duties, for which the service 
member is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; or is in 
outpatient status; or is on the temporary disability retired list. 

 
Types of FMLA Leave and Conditions: 

 
Full-time unpaid leave may be taken for any of the reasons permitted by 
the FMLA. Full-time leave excuses the employee from work for a period of 
time. 

 
Intermittent leave means leave taken in separate periods of time, rather 
than for one continuous period of time. Examples of intermittent leave 
include leave taken one day per week over a period of a few months, or 
leave taken on an occasional / as-needed basis for medical appointments. 

 
Reduced schedule leave is leave that reduces the employee's usual 
number of work hours per day for some period of time. For example, an 
employee may request half-time work for a number of weeks so the 
employee can assist in the care of a seriously ill parent. 

 
An employee may take full-time, intermittent or reduced schedule leave 
whenever it is medically necessary for a serious health condition of the 
eligible employee, his or her spouse, child or parent. Intermittent leave or 

30



reduced schedule leave for other reasons will be permitted only with the 
approval of the First Selectman. 
 
If intermittent or reduced schedule leave is medically necessary, the First 
Selectman may, in his/her sole discretion, temporarily transfer the 
employee to another job with equivalent pay and benefits that better 
accommodates the type of leave requested. 
 
Both Spouses Working for the Same Employer: 
 
If both spouses are employees of the Town of Colchester and request 
leave for the birth, placement of a child by adoption or for foster care, or to 
care for a seriously ill parent, they will be entitled to a maximum combined 
total leave equal to twelve (12) weeks in any 12-month entitlement period. 
If either spouse (or both) uses a portion of the total 12-week entitlement 
for one of the purposes in the preceding sentence, each is entitled to the 
difference between the amount he or she has taken individually and the 12 
weeks for FMLA leave for their own or their spouse's serious health 
condition in the 12-month entitlement periods. 

 
Requests for Leave 
 
Requests for FMLA leaves must be submitted to the Payroll Department 
Human Resources Office at least thirty (30) days before the leave is to 
commence, if possible. If thirty-(30) days’ notice is not possible, please 
submit your request as soon as practicable under the circumstances.  
 
For leaves taken because of the employee's or a family member's serious 
health condition, the employee must submit a completed "Physician or 
Practitioner Certification" form before the leave begins if possible. This 
form may be obtained from the Payroll Department Human Resources 
Office. If such advance certification is not possible, the employee must 
provide the medical certification within fifteen (15) calendar days of the 
employer's request for the medical certification.  
 
If an employee takes leave to care for their own serious health condition, 
immediately upon return to work, the employee must provide medical 
certification that the employee is able to perform the functions of the job. 
This certification must be submitted to the Payroll Department Human 
Resources Office. 
 
Use of Unpaid Leave: 
 
The Town will require employees to use their paid time-off 
concurrently with FMLA leave and before they are listed as unpaid 
FMLA.  An employee may request to keep one week of vacation leave 

31



and one week of sick leave unused if they desire.  The amount of 
unpaid family or medical leave entitlement is reduced by the amount of 
paid leave that is substituted. 

 
Medical Insurance and Other Benefits during leaves 

 
During approved family and medical leaves of absence, the Town of Colchester 
will continue to pay its portion of health and dental insurance premiums, and the 
employee must continue to pay his/her their share of the premium. Failure of the 
employee to pay his/her their share of the health insurance premium may result 
in loss of coverage. If the employee does not return to work after the expiration 
of the leave, the employee will be required to reimburse the Town of Colchester 
for payment of health insurance premiums during the family and medical leave, 
unless the employee does not return because of the presence of "a serious 
health condition that prevents the employee from performing his/her job or other 
circumstances beyond the control of the employee. 

 
During unpaid leave, the employee shall not accrue longevity, seniority, pension 
retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation leave or personal days. However, 
unused employment benefits accrued by the employee up to the day on which 
the leave begins will not be lost upon return to work. Leave taken under this 
policy does not constitute an absence under the Town of Colchester's attendance 
policy. 

 
Reinstatement: 

 
Except for circumstances unrelated to the taking of family or medical leave, an 
employee who returns to work following the expiration of a family or medical 
leave is entitled to return to the job held prior to the leave or to an equivalent 
position with equivalent pay and benefits. 

 
Questions regarding this policy or applicable state or federal laws should be 
directed to the Human Resources Office. 

 
Leave of Absence Without Pay: 

 
A leave of absence without pay or other Town-provided benefits, not to exceed 
six (6) months in duration, may be granted for good cause to any employee at 
the discretion of the Board of Selectmen. A written request for an unpaid leave of 
absence must be submitted by the employee to his or her supervisor who will 
direct such request to the Board of Selectmen for their consideration. Such 
requests must be submitted at least sixty (60) days in advance, except in 
emergencies. The Board of Selectmen shall have sole and complete discretion 
over the decision to grant or deny an employee's written request for an unpaid 
leave of absence. 

 

32



Worker’s Compensation 
 

Should you become ill or injured as a result of your job, you may be eligible 
for Worker’s Compensation benefits.  Any work related illness, injury, or 
accident (no matter how minor) must be reported immediately to your 
supervisor.  Failing to immediately report an injury, accident, or illness may 
result in a delay or a rejection of worker’s compensation benefits.  Both 
you and your supervisor will be asked to complete an Accident Report 
Form.  You will be directed to a local occupational healthcare provider to 
provide initial medical treatment and assessment for work related illness 
and injury.  Questions regarding Worker’s Compensation benefits should 
be directed to Human Resources.  Employees will only receive the state-
approved amount of Workers’ Compensation pay after three (3) days out of 
work, if the claim is approved. 

 
 
Return To Work Policy (ADDED FROM CURRENT POLICY) 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The term "loss exposure", as applied to the workplace, is defined as the potential for 
accidents which result in illness or injury. Every employee of the Town of Colchester 
has a responsibility to minimize loss exposure as a factor in the work place by 
participating in quality improvement programs and strictly observing safety and standard 
operating policies and procedures. 
 
POLICY 
  
Employees of the Town of Colchester who are, or could be, on leave of absence from 
their duties as a result of a work related illness or injury or non-work related injury may 
be eligible for the Return-to-Work Program.  The medical care provider must certify that 
the employee may return to work with restrictions on physical requirements of the job in 
question, and those restrictions are not expected to laste for more than 60 days. Upon 
written certification, an employee may return to work with physical restrictions, 
and those restrictions are not expected to last for more than 60 days.  
 
A restriction identifies a physical condition, which prevents an employee from 
performing the full scope of their job duties as outlined in their job description or as 
performed historically. There are two types of restrictions: temporary and permanent. 
Temporary restrictions are defined as those limitations placed on an injured employee 
by a physician which are of a relatively short - duration (i.e., the employee is expected 
to fully recover and return to normal working conditions). 
 
Permanent restrictions are defined as those limitations placed on an employee by a 
physician which are expected to be long term or from which recovery is not expected 
and which prevent the employee from performing the essential functions of the 

33



employee's position. Those employees who fall in this category are not eligible for 
participation in the Return-to-Work Program. They may elect to seek alternative 
employment, or file for a "reasonable accommodation" under the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
When an employee is approved for participation in the Return-to-Work Program, 
primary consideration will be given to job placement within the employee's department 
and normal job duties. A secondary consideration will be alternative placement into 
another department or another assignment, which is within the same bargaining unit. A 
critical consideration is to place the injured employee in a position to perform productive 
work that is both useful to the Town of Colchester and achievable within the limits ofthe 
restrictions placed on the employee. 
 
An employee participating in the Return-to-Work Program is subject to all rules, 
regulations, standards, policies and procedures of the Town of Colchester. The terms 
and conditions contained in this policy do not supersede the terms and conditions in any 
collective bargaining agreement entered into by the Town. If any provision of this policy 
is in conflict with any federal and/or state law, such legal provisions shall prevail. The 
Town shall honor the confidentiality rights of the employee, as set forth in applicable 
law. 
 
Each situation will stand on its own merits. An Employee Return-to-Work Form, 
completed by a physician, noting an employee's restrictions, will be evaluated by 
department supervisor to determine whether or not an employee is able to return to their 
assigned position. The department supervisor will then forward their recommendation 
with appropriate documentation to the injured employee's department head for final 
determination. 
 
If an employee is approved for the Return-to-Work Program, they shall be provided 
tasks which fall within the physical restrictions identified by the treating physician. In no 
case will an employee authorized to participate in the Return-to-Work Program be 
placed in an area that will pose a health or safety risk to the Town of Colchester, other 
staff, or themselves. 
 
 
IV. GENERAL GUIDELINES 
 
Employee Responsibilities 
 
The Town of Colchester has always maintained the highest standards of public service. 
Therefore, in all dealings with the public, and with each other, all Town employees are 
expected to act in a professional manner at all times.  This also applies whenever they 
are conducting Town business or otherwise representing the Town. With the foregoing 
in mind, the Town has developed policies and rules for the benefit of the Town and its 
employees. 
 

34



Some of the policies have already been outlined earlier in the policy statement this 
employee handbook. Others are contained in the following list. All employees are 
encouraged to read this list of actions and to understand it fully. This list is not 
exhaustive, is subject to change, and is designed only to provide examples of 
misconduct, which can lead to disciplinary action. If any one of these actions, or any 
one of the previously mentioned actions, or any other similar action, is taken by any 
employee, it can result in disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. In each 
case, the level of discipline will depend upon the severity of the conduct in question in 
light of all relevant circumstances with the ultimate decision to be made in the Town's 
sole discretion. 
 

1. Improper or unprofessional treatment of a fellow employee or member of the 
public. 

2. Failing to follow instructions of, or to perform work requested by, a supervisor or 
manager (or other insubordinate action). 

3. Failing to meet a Town measure or standard of efficiency and/or productivity. 
4. Failure to work assigned overtime. 
5. Unauthorized or excessive absences (including late arrival and early departure) 

from work. 
6. Sleeping while on Town property or during the time in which the employee is 

supposed to be working, unless authorized by the department supervisor. 
7. Abusing, wasting or stealing Town property, or the property of any Town 

employee or non-employee. 
8. Removing Town property or records without written authorization. 
9. Falsifying an employee's employment application or other personnel records. 
10. Falsifying Town reports or records (including time sheets and mileage 

reimbursements). 
11. Failure to obey safety rules. 
12. Harassing other employees. 
13. Use of abusive, threatening, or derogatory language. 
14. Violating the law. 
15. Fighting or starting a disturbance on Town premises, or while performing job 

duties, including, but not limited to, assaulting or intimidating a Town employee or 
member of the public. 

16. Unauthorized possession of firearms, weapons, dangerous instruments, or 
dangerous substances. 

17. Reporting to work in a condition unfit to perform the employee's duties, including 
reporting to work under the influence of illegal drugs or controlled substances or 
alcohol or consuming, possessing, dispensing or selling such materials on Town 
premises and/or while on duty. 

18. Smoking, eating or drinking in prohibited areas. 
19. Violating a Town safety rule or practice, or creating or contributing to unhealthy 

or unsanitary conditions. 
20. Engaging in conduct which creates, or appears to create, a conflict with the 

interest of the Town, including, but not limited to, soliciting and/or taking money 

35



or gifts or favors in connection with the employee's performance of regular job 
duties. 

21. Disclosing confidential Town information without authorization. 
22. Using profanity towards others 
23. Neglect of duty. 
24. Using Town facilities after normal working hours without authorization. 
25. Interfering with, obstructing, or otherwise hindering the production or work 

performance of another employee. 
26. Originating or spreading false statements concerning employees or the Town. 
27. Engaging in immoral or indecent conduct on Town property. 
28. Using any piece of equipment or property of the Town without being authorized 

to do so. 
29. Violating any Town policy on fair treatment, equal opportunity, or 

nondiscrimination. 
30. Unsatisfactory work performance. 
31. Any conduct which is determined by the First Selectman to be detrimental or 

contrary to the goals or best interest of the Town. 
 

 
Dress Code 
 
Town employees should exercise their best judgment  when selecting outfits 
that are appropriate for work. Proper attire for town hall employees is regularly 
considered, “business casual,” but may require more formal attire when dealing 
with scheduled meetings, conferences, interviews, etc. 
 
Business dress is required when testifying or meeting public officials at the 
General Assembly or as required by the First Selectman at his/her discretion. 
 
Department heads can approve jeans or other attire for employees when they are 
working in the field.  Employees are encouraged to use their best judgment 
regarding dress upon returning to work from the field.  If jeans are worn upon 
return to work, such jeans shall not be visibly dirty or ripped, as to present 
unprofessional attire. 
 
 
Employment of Relatives 
 
It is the goal of the Town of Colchester to avoid creating or perpetuating circumstances 
in which the possibility of favoritism, conflicts of interest, or impairment of efficient 
operations may occur. Members of an employee's immediate family will be considered 
for employment by the Town of Colchester, provided that the applicants possess all the 
qualifications required for the available position for which employment is sought. 
Immediate family members of an employee may not be hired, however, if a direct or 
indirect supervisory/subordinate relationship with the current employee would be 
created by the employment of such an applicant.  

36



 
For purposes of this policy, "immediate family" shall include a current employee's 
spouse, brother, sister, parents, children, stepchildren, son/daughter-in-law, father-in-
law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparent, uncle, aunt, niece, 
nephew and any other relative who is a member of the current employee's household. 
 
Confidentiality 
 
Employees of the Town may learn confidential information of one type or another during 
the course of their employment. During and after employment with the Town, 
confidential information may not be shared with any non-employee of the Town and 
may only be shared with the Town's employees on a strict need-to-know basis. If an 
employee violates this policy, disciplinary action will be taken against such employee, 
up to and including immediate discharge. 
 
Expense Reimbursement 
 
Employees who are required to use their personal vehicles for official Town business 
are reimbursed for such travel at the rate of thirty-two cents ($0.32) per mile. current 
IRS mileage reimbursement rate. All reimbursable travel must have prior authorization 
of your supervisor. To be eligible for reimbursement, the employee must submit a 
written record of travel expenditures to his or her supervisor within ten (10) working 
days of the date of the employee’s reimbursable travel for approval on a monthly 
basis. 
 
 
No Smoking 
 
The Town of Colchester is committed to the well-being of our employees. Smoke 
related diseases are among the leading causes of death and illness in this country. By 
providing a smoke-free environment we hope to reduce the risk of smoke-related 
illnesses. 
 
Therefore, In accordance with Connecticut State law, Sec. 31-40q, the Town of 
Colchester has decided to declare its entire workplace as “Smoke Free.” Colchester 
town buildings and facilities are “smoke free.” The burning of tobacco products 
within town facilities is expressly prohibited, including cigars, cigarettes, pipe tobacco 
or any other matter or substance containing tobacco. 
 
Those employees who continue to smoke tobacco products may do so outside of the 
workplace outside of the buildings. At Town Hall it would be outside of the building at 
the side entrances. Employees choosing to smoke may do so only in their allotted break 
time. Excessive time away from work duties for the purpose of smoking will not be 
tolerated and may result in disciplinary action. 
 
 

37



Care of Personal Belongings 
 
Your personal belongings are your responsibility at all times.  The Town’s 
insurance does not cover loss of personal belongings or monies.  Employees 
should use considerable care to safely store personal belongings and valuables 
while at work. 
 
 
Inclement Weather 
 
Town Hall will remain open during inclement weather unless the severity of 
conditions prohibits remaining open.  Employees should make every reasonable 
effort to get to work, or continue working if already present, unless otherwise 
notified.  In the event that Town Hall closes, we will make every effort to have the 
details concerning the closing announced in a pre-determined manner.  
Employees are urged to contact their immediate supervisor if they are uncertain 
about operation.  If operations are canceled after a shift has started, hourly 
employees will be paid for the time worked.  If there is an early dismissal, non-
exempt employees will be paid through the official release time. 
 
 
Acceptable Computer Network and Office Equipment Use (ADDED FROM 
CURRENT POLICY) 
 
The use of electronic communications and Internet access is intended for official 
town business and may not be used for personal business unless approved by 
the First Selectman.  All information and communication on the Town of 
Colchester’s computer network(s) are the property of the Town of Colchester. 
 
Electronic communications includes but is not limited to computers, electronic 
mail (E-mail), electronic bulletin boards, listservs, internet use, facsimile, 
telephones, cell phones, pagers, voice mail, radios, walkie talkies, personal 
digital assistances, television, and communications infrastructure. 
 
The First Selectman and management have the right to review, audit, intercept, 
access and/or disclose all messages and /or images created, received or sent 
over the electronic mail system.  The contents of electronic mail may be 
disclosed without the permission of the employee. There is no expectation of 
privacy.  The First Selectman may limit or deny individual’s access to the system. 
 
Employees are responsible for observing copyright and licensing agreements 
that may apply when downloading files, documents and software. 
 
Employees are expected to appropriately use and become proficient in the use of 
computer hardware and software, electronic communications and Internet 
access. 

38



 
Employees must work in cooperation with network administration to ensure all 
security measures are met.  The following is strictly prohibited: 
 

1. Releasing passwords to individuals not authorized by the town 
2. Allowing passwords to be visible to others 
3. Use of another individual’s password 
4. Creating unauthorized accounts/passwords 
5. The use of video games 
6. Viewing of non-work related videos 
7. Using equipment for personal profit or partisan political purposes 
8. Leaving a workstation without logging out or locking 
9. Installing/uninstalling software or hardware without approval of the IT 

department 
10. Allowing non-town personnel use of hardware/software without 

authorization from the administration 
11. Transmitting or receiving messages or images that violate Town of 

Colchester policies or are offensive or discriminatory as defined by the 
Town of Colchester Personnel Policies and Nondiscrimination Resolution 

12.  Communications containing offensive, sexually explicit images, 
messages or cartoons, ethnic/racial slurs, or anything that can be 
construed as harassment 

13. Vandalizing any system components 
14. Sending network-wide non-business related E-mails, e.g. jokes, chain 

letters 
15. Browsing the internet for purposes not work related during work hours 
16. Unauthorized attempts or entry into any computer or any part of the 

system/network  
 
 
Phones: 
 
Town phones and voice mail are property of the Town of Colchester.  Excessive 
use of the phone for personal calls may be considered a performance issue and 
may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.  The use of 
personal cell phones during business hours is only permitted in the case of 
emergency or brief personal contact with family via voice mail, text, or call 
(excessive use may be considered a performance issue and may result in 
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge).  In such cases, cell phones 
should be put on “silent” mode.  Texting is not permitted while driving or 
operating equipment. 
 
Printers, Scanners: 
 
It is expected that all employees will use this equipment for business purposes 
only and treat such office equipment with care. 

39



 
 
V. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY 
 
It is the policy of the Town of Colchester to provide a safe and healthy workplace 
for all employees. To accomplish this goal, a joint effort on the part of 
management and employees is required to share in the responsibility to protect 
worker safety.  
 
It is the responsibility of the department head to, insofar as reasonably possible, 
provide a workplace free from recognized hazards. In order to achieve this, 
he/she must oversee the administration of safety practices in their departments 
and be aware of accident statistics, When warranted, this will include follow 
disciplinary procedures (verbal and written warnings, suspension and possible 
dismissal) for situations in which there has been a flagrant disregard of safety 
policies., Managers are expected to take appropriate, corrective action to ensure 
continued improvement in eliminating or minimizing hazards, to prevent or 
reduce injuries on the job. Investigations of all occupational illness or injuries 
must be conducted, and written reports including corrective actions taken must 
be provided immediately to the First Selectman's Office. Safety audits should be 
conducted periodically to identify and correct potential hazards. Management 
must make the commitment to follow-through with required repairs and 
preventive maintenance of equipment and workplace. When the necessity of 
repairs or preventative maintenance is recognized, it is expected that managers 
will undertake actions to implement these and initiate actions necessary to 
complete such repairs or maintenance. 
 
Employee cooperation is also necessary to achieve a harmonious effort in 
providing a safe and healthy workplace. It is the responsibility of the employee to 
report perceived hazardous conditions to management. Employees should refrain 
from participating in activities that may jeopardize the safety of fellow workers. 
Inoperative equipment or equipment with defects should be reported 
immediately. Job-related illnesses or injuries, no matter how slight, should be 
immediately reported to management and treatment promptly sought.  
 
While management attention to accident prevention is an important component of 
a safety program, it is each employee who carries the greatest responsibility for 
protecting his/her own health. Though we realize that accidents do happen, we 
hope and expect that all employees work together with managers to minimize the 
risk of work-related illness and injuries. 
 
 
 
Safety-Related Discrimination and Harassment 
 

40



It is the policy of the Town of Colchester that no employee be discriminated 
against or harassed in any form because of their involvement in Safety and 
Health related matters.  
 
Discrimination or harassment may take any form in which an employee is 
intentionally treated differently than other employees of the same rank, 
qualification, and department solely because of their involvement with, or 
comments relative to, safety and health matters.  
 
Complaints may be made in confidence to the Department Head or First 
Selectman. 
 
 
Alcohol and Drug-Free Policy 
 
 

Purpose 
 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a workplace, which is free of the 
negative effects of alcohol, and free from drug abuse. By accomplishing 
this purpose, the Town also seeks to ensure a safer, healthier working 
environment for all employees and to reduce absenteeism, tardiness and 
other job performance problems which may be caused by alcohol and drug 
abuse. This policy is adopted in accordance with the Drug Free Workplace 
Act. 

 
Statement of Policy 

 
Employees shall not be involved with the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, possession, or use of an illegal drug, controlled substance or 
alcohol while on Town premises or while conducting Town business off 
Town premises. Any employee who discovers illegal drugs on Town 
premises shall notify the First Selectman who shall investigate the matter 
and notify appropriate Town officials.  

 
An employee must report any conviction or plea of nolo contendere under 
a criminal drug statute for violations occurring on or off Town premises 
while on Town business, to the First Selectman within five (5) days after the 
conviction. The Town will notify any agency awarding a grant to the Town 
of such conviction, within ten (10) days thereafter, if such notice is required 
by the granting agency. Upon request, the First Selectman or his/her 
designee shall meet with the employee and a Union representative, where 
employee is part of a collective bargaining unit, before taking any further 
action. 

 

41



Employees shall only use prescription drugs on town premises which have 
been prescribed by a licensed medical practitioner, and such drugs shall 
be used only as prescribed.  

 
An employee shall not consume alcohol on town premises or off Town 
premises, while conducting Town business. An employee who is on duty 
shall not be under the influence of alcohol. 

 
Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including discharge. 

 
 

Employee Assistance  
 

In appropriate circumstances, the Town shall provide an employee with an 
opportunity for rehabilitation in overcoming addiction to, dependence upon 
or other problems with alcohol or drugs.  Normally, the opportunity for 
rehabilitation as an alternative to disciplinary action shall be available only 
once.  

 
An employee who feels he or she has developed an addiction to, 
dependence upon or other problem with alcohol or drugs is encouraged to 
seek assistance. Certain benefits for alcoholism or drug addiction are 
provided under the Town's group medical insurance plan. An employee will 
be given one opportunity to participate in a rehabilitation program, which 
requires absence from work for bona fide treatment. Such absence may be 
charged to the employee's accrued and unused sick leave, subject to the 
provisions of the employee's collective bargaining agreement or the 
Town's Personnel Rules and Regulations as applicable. 

 
Any request for assistance with a drug or alcohol problem will be treated 
as confidential. 

 
Drug Testing 

 
Pre-employment drug testing is conducted on all employees whose job 
entail driving or work in “safety-sensitive positions”.  At management 
discretion, random drug testing may occur for those employees whose 
jobs involve driving or if employees work in “safety sensitive” positions.   

 
If there is suspicion to believe that an employee is working under the 
influence of alcohol or non-prescribed drugs, the Town may require that a 
drug test be performed on that employee.  If the employee is found to be 
under the influence of alcohol or non-prescribed drugs, disciplinary action 
will occur, up to, and possibly including dismissal. 

 

42



Security 
 
Town facilities are equipped with alarm systems.  Employees who regularly have 
a need to enter the building during “off hours” will be issued an alarm code and 
an outside door key.  Employees who enter and leave the building during normal 
work hours do not need to have outside door keys or alarm codes. 
 
The First Selectman will determine to whom keys and alarm codes should be 
issued.  All employees are issued badges, which they are expected to wear, or 
have in their possession at all times. 
 
Lockdown procedures are followed in emergency situations and are addressed in 
a separate procedure. 
 
 
VI. CONCLUSION 
 
Severability 
 
Should any provision or part of this policy be declared or rendered illegal or 
unenforceable by legislative or judicial authority, the balance of the policy shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Handbook & Policy Review 
 
The Town of Colchester Employee Handbook and Personnel Policies shall be 
reviewed, and revised, if necessary, no less than once every two years, starting 
from the adoption of this revised and Board of Selectmen approved personnel 
policies. 
 
To All Employees 
 
Should any employee need further clarification or additional information relating to 
employment, please speak to your supervisor or the Human Resources Office. 
 
Since it is not possible to foresee all conditions and circumstances surrounding the 
employment relationship, the Town reserves the right to alter, modify, amend or 
terminate the provisions of this handbook at any time.  Notices of such changes will 
be posted on all appropriate bulletin boards and distributed to you for you to 
include in your handbook. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT 

 
 
 
 
 
 

I, __________________________________, have received a copy of the Town of 
Colchester's employee handbook, including the notice and disclaimer of any contract of 
employment, and I fully acknowledge the at-will nature of my employment with the Town, 
which I understand is subject to the provisions of any applicable collective bargaining 
agreement. I further acknowledge that these policies are subject to change, with or without 
prior notice by the Town, again subject to the provisions of any applicable collective 
bargaining agreement and the duty to bargain over secondary effects of substantive 
changes under prevailing labor laws. I understand that should the content of these policies 
be changed in any way, the Town of Colchester may require a further signature from me to 
indicate that I am aware of and understand any new policies. I further understand that I am 
responsible for reading and knowing the content of this employee handbook.  I hereby 
agree to comply in full with the Town of Colchester's Personnel Policies but understand that 
where the policies are in direct conflict with a collective bargaining agreement between the 
Town of Colchester and a duly recognized union, the provision(s) in conflict will be 
superseded by the collective bargaining agreement.  The content of this handbook 
supersedes all prior handbooks issued. 

 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____/____/_____ 
Employee      Date 

44



EMPLOYEE SUGGESTED REVISIONS TO UPDATED PERSONNEL POLICIES 

 

PG. 6 

Release of Employee Information 

Employee personnel files and records are subject to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) and may be 
requested for viewing from outside individuals, organizations, and agencies.  Employees will be notified 
when there is a FOI request for their personnel file. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
(HIPAA) guidelines take precedent over FOIA regulations with regards to employee information being 
available and therefore personal medical records are not subject to FOIA requests. 

 

PG. 8 

Employee Classification 

F. Elected Official. An elected official is one who has been duly elected by the residents of the Town of 
Colchester or appointed to fill a vacancy and is otherwise considered a “full-time” employee as defined 
in this section.  The elected officials that this policy pertains to are solely the First Selectman, Town 
Clerk, and Tax Collector.  Elected officials are not subject to the three (3) month probationary period 
upon election or appointment.  Elected officials are eligible for all of the employee benefits offered by 
the Town, such as group insurance, vacation, holidays, sick leave, paid time-off, leaves of 
absence, 401(a) and 457 Plan, and other benefits as set forth in these personnel policies effective the 
first day of the month immediately following their election or appointment.  Benefits provided to paid, 
full-time elected officials are to be determined by the Town of Colchester's Board of Selectmen and may 
be expanded or decreased as is deemed in the best interest of the Town. 

 

PG. 10 

Town Employee Hiring and Dismissal 

The Board of Selectmen shall be given notice of all full-time and part0time employees who are 
hired, resign, or are dismissed by the First Selectman prior to the next Board of Selectmen meeting 
immediately following the hire or dismissal change of employment status.  

 

PG. 11 

Notice of Resignation 



PG. 11 

Employee Relations 

The Town has We have an open door policy. 

The Town is We are committed to open and honest discussion of employee problems and concerns 
raised in good faith without fear of retaliation. 

 

PG. 15 

III. YOUR PAY AND BENEFITS 

Your Paycheck 

All employees are paid on a bi-weekly basis.  All required deductions for federal, state or local taxes, and 
all authorized voluntary deductions such as health or dental plans, 401(a), 457, etc. are withheld from 
your paycheck.  All paychecks will be directly deposited into your personal checking or savings 
account(s), unless the First Selectman determines there are extenuating circumstances that necessitate 
a printed paycheck. 

 

PG. 16 

Exempt Employee Pay 

If you are classified as an exempt salaried employee, with work hours specified in the relevant job 
description, you will receive a salary that is intended to compensate you for all hours you may work for 
the Town. 

 

PG. 17 

Holidays 

Eligible employees must work their full schedule on the first regularly scheduled workday immediately 
prior to the holiday and on the first regularly scheduled workday immediately following the holiday, or if 
they were be on an approved paid leave of absence with pay for such days. 

 

 

 



PG. 22 

401(a) Plan 

Employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least thirty-five (35) hours per week, will be 
enrolled have the option to participate in a Section 401(a) Plan after the end of his/her probationary 
period. 

 

PG. 25 

Leaves of Absence – Personal Days 

It is the responsibility of the employee to submit a written request to his or her supervisor to take a 
personal leave day The First Selectman, on recommendation of the employee's supervisor, shall decide 
whether to grant an employee's request to take a personal leave day. Personal leave is to be used solely 
for the purpose of conducting personal business, which cannot be transacted outside of work hours (i.e. 
house closings, court appearances). Such request(s) shall not be unreasonably denied.  and permission 
to take such a personal leave day is contingent upon the supervisor’s approval.  
 
(Selectman recommended change) 
 
Personal leave should be requested in advance from your supervisor. This should be done on the 
appropriate form provided for this purpose.  To allow proper operation of your department, personal 
leave will be granted at the discretion of your supervisor.  You should check with him or her as soon as 
you anticipate the need for personal leave.  The Town recognizes that this may not always be possible.  
In the event of an emergency or other issue which precludes your ability to request personal leave using  
the normal procedure, and you must be absent from work you or, if you are incapacitated, a family 
member or friend should contact your supervisor of the Selectman’s office to notify the Town as soon as 
practical.   In such cases your supervisor can allow use of personal Leave without prior notice.   
 

PG. 26 

Sick Leave 

Eligibility of an employee to receive paid sick leave is contingent upon the employee’s compliance 
with granted only if the employee meets: the advance notice requirement, and the employer’s request 
for production of a physician’s statement, and only after 40 hours of accrued sick time has been used in 
a calendar year. 

 

PG. 37 

Expense Reimbursement 



Employees who are required to use their personal vehicles for official Town business are reimbursed for 
such travel at the rate of thirty-two cents ($0.32) per mile. current IRS mileage reimbursement rate. All 
reimbursable travel must have prior authorization of your supervisor. To be eligible for reimbursement, 
the employee must submit a written record of travel expenditures to his or her supervisor within ten 
(10) working days of the date of the employee’s reimbursable travel for approval on a monthly 
quarterly basis. 

 

 

PG. 38 

Inclement Weather 

If operations are cancelled after a shift has started, non-exempt hourly employees will be paid for the 
time worked.  If there is an early dismissal, non-exempt employees will be paid through the official 
release time. 

 

PG. 38 

Acceptable Computer Network and Office Equipment Use (ADDED FROM CURRENT POLICY) 

The First Selectman and management hasve the right to review, audit, intercept, access and/or disclose 
all messages and /or images created, received or sent over the electronic mail system.  The contents of 
electronic mail may be disclosed without the permission of the employee. There is no expectation of 
privacy.  The First Selectman may limit or deny individual’s access to the system. 



 

Town of Colchester  Page 1 of 5  
  

 
 
 

 
Town of Colchester 

Employee Hiring and Dismissal Policy 
 

1.0 Purpose 
 

1.1 The Town of Colchester Charter, Article IV The Boar d of Selectmen, § C-
402, C. “The appointment and dismissal of all Town employees shall be 
administered by the Board of Selectmen, but the Board of Selectmen may 
delegate such authority as is deemed necessary for the sound administration 
of Town government.” 
 

1.2 The Town of Colchester Charter, Article XIII Town E mployees and 
Appointed Officials, § C-1301  “The appointment and dismissal of all Town 
employees, except those who are elected or are under the jurisdiction of the 
Board of Police Commissioners, shall be made by the Board of Selectmen, 
but the Board of Selectmen may delegate such authority as is deemed 
necessary for the sound administration of Town government. All appointments 
shall be made on the basis of merit and after examination of qualifications. 
The Board of Selectmen shall neither appoint nor dismiss Town employees 
associated with fire protection services except as recommended by the Fire 
Chief. Before the appointment or dismissal of any Town employee, the Board 
of Selectmen shall consult with the board, department or individual to whom 
the services of such employee are to be or have been rendered.” 

 
1.3 The purpose of this policy is to specify the Board of Selectmen’s delegation of 

authority for the hiring and dismissal of Town employees and joint 
Town/Board of Education (BOE) employees as it pertains to the language of 
the Town of Colchester charter noted in sections 1.1 and 1.2 of this policy. 

 
2.0 Town Employee Hiring and Dismissal 
 

2.1 The First Selectman shall hire and dismiss employees of the town, except 
employees whose employment is otherwise provided by law, and except 
department heads (Appendix A). 

 
2.2 The Board of Selectmen shall be given notice of all full-time and part-time 

employees who are hired or dismissed by the First Selectman prior to the 
next Board of Selectmen meeting immediately following the hiring or 
dismissal. This notification requirement to the Board of Selectmen shall not 
apply to per-diem or temporary/seasonal employee hiring or dismissal 
actions. 

 
2.3 At either of its next two meetings following such hiring or dismissal notification 

to an employee, the Board of Selectmen, by a majority vote, may request a 



 

Town of Colchester  Page 2 of 5  
  

review of the decision to hire or dismiss and following such review confirm or 
modify such decision. 
 

2.4 The authority to hire and dismiss department heads and employees whose 
employment is otherwise provided by law rests solely with the Board of 
Selectmen. 
 

3.0 Joint Town/Board of Education Employee Hiring a nd Dismissal 
 

3.1  Joint Town/Board of Education employees, including department heads 
serving as joint employees, may be hired or dismissed following the approval 
of the Board of Selectmen and Board of Education by majority vote or its 
designee. The Chief Financial Officer’s hiring and dismissal shall be 
processed per the Town of Colchester Charter. 

 
 
4.0 Personnel Hiring Process 
 
 4.1 Purpose and Intent. 
 

This policy is adopted to codify the intent of the Board of Selectmen that 
hiring practices be consistent to insure interested and qualified candidates 
are afforded the opportunity to seek positions with the Town of Colchester.  
The objective of this policy is to provide guidance to managers and staff 
on the process which the town will follow when hiring is initiated by the 
First Selectman for new or  vacant positions. 

 
 4.2 Pre-search activities. 
 

When the need to fill a vacant or new position in a town department is 
recognized and the position is authorized and funded the First Selectman 
shall meet with the appropriate manager(s) and/or Department Head(s) 
who will supervise the candidate hired through this process.  The First 
Selectman and Department Manager(s) or Supervisor(s) will confer on the 
nature and duties of the position to determine if changes in hours, 
responsibilities, or classification of the position being considered are 
appropriate and in the best interest of the Town. Should such adjustments 
to the position be  determined by the First Selectman to be needed the 
hiring process will be suspended until approval of revised job descriptions, 
compliance with union agreement(s) and financial impacts are obtained 
from the Board of  Selectmen or The Board of Finance (if required by 
funding adjustments) and Memoranda of Understanding have been 
agreed to in accordance with appropriate Collective Bargaining 
Agreements. 

 
 
 4.3 Search Process 
 



 

Town of Colchester  Page 3 of 5  
  

 Once the position to be filled is fully approved and funded the search 
 process shall begin. 
 

1. For Department Heads the First Selectman shall present a selection 
process to the Board of Selectmen for approval and shall be 
responsible for carrying out that process.  The final three candidates 
being considered for appointment to a Department Head level position 
shall be interviewed by the Full Board of Selectmen and the final 
decision on hiring shall rest with the Board of Selectmen. 

2. For positions which are subject to advance consideration of personnel 
in a bargaining unit the Department Head or Manager for position 
being sought or the First Selectman will post details of the intention to 
fill this position as required in any applicable collective bargaining 
agreement. 

3. Upon completion of Collective Bargaining time specifications as 
mentioned in #2 above the Position shall be announced on the Town 
Web Site and Posted in a public place at Town Hall.  The 
Announcement shall indicate the title of the position and a brief 
description of the job duties.  The announcement shall provide 
information on how to obtain the full Job Description and an application 
and shall include the date after which applications for the position will 
not be considered. Applications normally will be submitted to the Office 
of the First Selectman who acts as the Human Resource office for the 
Town 

4. All open positions shall be publicly posted and applications accepted 
for a minimum period of two weeks (14 Days).  In a case that the need 
to fill the position is urgent a request to shorten the application period 
shall be forwarded to the First Selectman for presentation to the full 
Board of Selectmen at its’ next regular meeting.  Upon approval of the 
Board of Selectmen the posting period may be reduced. 

5. Upon completion of the search process all applications received shall 
be sent to the First Selectman and Department Manager(s) who will be 
supervising the eventual candidate hired. 

6. The First Selectman, or if delegated by the First Selectman the  
Department Manager(s), shall conduct the Selection and Evaluation 
process as outlined in 4.4 below. 

 
4.4 Candidate Selection and Evaluation Process 
 

1. Prior to the close of the Search Process the First Selectman and/or 
Department Head(s) or Manager(s) who will evaluate candidate 
qualifications shall develop a method by which they will consider all 
applications.  This method may include but is not limited to: 

a. Rating Matrix for Interview based on Job Description Duties and 
experience 

b. Interview Panel 



 

Town of Colchester  Page 4 of 5  
  

c. Skills Testing (Proficiency in software and/or customary systems 
or equipment normally used in the position) 

d. Other means deemed appropriate. 
2. The First Selectman’s advice and consent shall be sought in 

developing this process by Department Managers in cases where the 
responsibility has been delegated to that level. 

3. The Selection and Evaluation Process may be developed in Steps and 
allow short listing of applicants. 

4. At the completion of the Selection and Evaluation process the 
Manager(s) shall prepare a written recommendation for the hiring of 
the selected candidate and forward to the First Selectman.   

5. The First Selectman is the formal hiring authority and may interview 
the candidate(s). 

6. Should the First Selectman find reason to disagree with the 
recommendation of the Department Head or Manager(s) he shall meet 
with the manager(s) to discuss his evaluation.  The final decision for 
hiring shall be made by the First Selectman (subject to further review 
by the Board of Selectmen as noted in Sections 2.2 and 2.3 above). 

 
 

4.5 Vacancies for a specific job title which may occur within in one year of the close 
of applications for a similar position announced under this policy may be filled 
from the list of candidates seeking that position or the First Selectman may 
re-announce the position in accordance with this policy.  Nothing in this 
section waives the requirement to comply with applicable Collective 
Bargaining agreements.



 

 

Appendix A – Department Heads 
 
The following positions are identified as department heads for purposes of this policy as referenced 
in section 2.1: 
 
Assessor 
 
Building Official 
 
CHVFD Chief 
 
Cragin Memorial Library Director 
 
Public Works Director 
 
Recreation Manager 
 
Senior Center Director 
 
Town Engineer 
 
Town Planner/Planning Director 
 
Youth and Social Services Director 
 
 
 
  


	Board of Selectmen Agenda 05/02/13
	3. Commission Chair Minutes 04/18/13
	4. BOS Minutes 04/18/13
	5. BOS Minutes 04/25/13
	10. Appreciation Day
	11. Land Transfer
	12. Resident Trooper Contract
	13. YSB Software Program
	14. License Agreement
	15. Personnel Policies




